
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS

AUGUST 10, 2020

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the governing body of the City of
Navasota will be held on the 10th of August, 2020 at 6:00 PM at the City Hall in the
City Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street, Navasota,
Texas 77868 , at which time the following subjects will be considered, to wit:
 
To watch the City Council meeting live please visit the City of Navasota’s Youtube
here: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCltnx7BQt0TCIYJRiZ14g5w

If you have any questions during the meeting please email them to
council@navasotatx.gov or text 936-825-5557. Please ensure to provide your full
name and home address.

If you prefer to call-in please dial +13462487799 and enter Meeting ID: 709 770 2250
#

To Join Meeting virtually please click link below:

https://zoom.us/j/7097702250
 
1. Call to Order.

2. Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

3. Remarks of visitors: Any citizen may address the City Council on any matter.
Registration forms are available on the podium and/or table in the back of the city
council chambers. This form should be completed and delivered to the City
Secretary by 5:45 p.m. Please limit remarks to three minutes. The City Council will
receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a
future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City
Manager.



4. Staff Report:

(a) COVID-19 response;

(b) Introduction of new employees;

(c) Recognition of Little League All Stars;

(d) Arts Council quarterly report for 3rd quarter;

(e) Board and Commission reports; and

(f) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests,
including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information
regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized
or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community
events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be
attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent
threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after
the posting of the agenda.

5. Consideration and possible action on award of bid for the 2016 GLO CDBG-DR,
Railroad Storm Sewer Extension Project.

6. Consideration and possible action on a professional services agreement with Hdl
Companies for consulting of sales tax and use collections.

7. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 677-20, accepting the water,
sewer, gas, street and storm drainage improvements of Phase three section one in
Pecan Lakes Estates Subdivision, except signage, common areas and maintenance
of open channel storm drainage, in the City of Navasota, Texas.

8. Consideration and possible action on employee health, vision, dental and life
insurance benefits for Fiscal Year 2020-2021.

9. Consideration and possible action on agreement from XEROX Business solutions
Southwest for copier rental and maintenance.

10. Consideration and possible action on acceptance of bids for the sale of City
properties legally described as Park Place, Block H, Lot 1, 2 and H&TC, Block J, Lot
4 (S21') 5 located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868.

11. Consideration and possible action on the addendum lease agreement between the
City of Navasota and Anderson-Grimes, LLC.

12. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 679-20, authorizing
submission of an application to the Texas Department of Agriculture for a 2020
Texas Capital Fund Program Downtown Revitalization grant to construct sidewalk
and handicap-accessibility improvements in the designated downtown district.



13. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 678-20, a resolution of the
City of Navasota, Texas, finding that conditions exist within the designated Historic
Commercial District of the City which are detrimental to the public health, safety
and welfare of the community and, therefore, are declared to constitute a blighted
area.

14. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 936-20,
amending Chapter 12 Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04 Parking of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas regarding parking regulations.

15. Consideration and possible action on approval of the order of election for the
November 3, 2020 election to elect three City Councilmembers to Positions 1, 2
and 3.

Consideraci'on y acci'on posible en aprobar la orden de la elecci'on para que la
elecci'on del 3 de noviembre de 2020 elija tres la ciudad Councilmembers a las
posiciones 1, 2 y 3.

16. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 937-20,
vacating a remaining portion of a public alleyway located at Block 3 of the McNair
addition of the City of Navasota, Texas, and authorizing execution of an
instrument conveying said property to abutting property owners.

17. Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and
vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor
or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the
regular agenda.

Consent Items are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of July 2020;
and

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of July
2020.

18. Consideration and possible action on approval of the creation of a Financial Analyst
position in Finance Department.

19. Workshop on proposed budget for fiscal year 2020-2021.

20. Adjourn.

DATED THIS THE 6TH OF AUGUST, 2020

/BS/

BY: BRAD STAFFORD, CITY MANAGER



I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above notice of
meeting of the governing body of the CITY OF NAVASOTA, is a true and
correct copy of said notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said
notice in the glass bulletin board, in the foyer, on the south side of the
Municipal Building as well as in the bulletin board on the north side of the
Municipal Building of the City of Navasota, Texas, a place convenient and
readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said notice was
posted on the 6th of August, 2020 at 09:47 AM and will remain posted
continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said
meeting. Agendas may be viewed at www.navasotatx.gov.

The City Council reserves the right to convene in Executive Session at any
time deemed necessary for the consideration of confidential matters under
the Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071-551.084.

DATED THIS THE 6TH OF AUGUST, 2020

/SMH/

BY: SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATIONS OR
INTERPRETIVE SERVICES MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS
MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE
AT(936) 825 6475 OR (936) 825 6408 OR BY FAX AT (936) 825 2403.



City Manager’s Message 

An Executive Summary of Agenda Items and Current Issues 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council Meeting 

8-10-2020 

 

 

1.  Call to order 

 

2. Invocation and Pledges of Allegiance 

  

3. Remarks of Visitors 

Staff is unaware of anyone wishing to address the City Council. 

 

4.  Staff Report: 

(a) COVID-19 response – Staff will provide the latest information on the response 

to COVID-19 

 

(b) Introduction of new employees – Staff will introduce the new Librarian, and 

new employees in the Facilities Maintenance Department. 

 

(c) Recognition of Little League All Stars – The Grimes County Little League 

Machine Pitch All-Stars competed in the District 13 All Star tournament in 

Bellville and won the Championship.  According to Wes Male it has been many 

years since Grimes County won the championship. 

 

(d) Arts Council quarterly report for 3rd quarter – Staff will briefly review the 

Arts Council quarterly report. 

 

 

5.  Consideration and possible action on award of bid for the 2016 GLO CDBG-

DR, Railroad Storm Sewer Extension Project.  

 The City applied for a received hazard mitigation grant funding in the amount of 

$2,000,000 for a drainage improvement project.  The project is to connect to the 

new storm drain installed by the EDC parking and drainage project.  To improve 

drainage in the downtown area, this project will include removal of a 36-inch 

storm sewer and replace it with a 7-foot by 7-foot box culvert and replace the 

street and sidewalk.  The City received 7 bids for the project, and the low bidder 

is Larry Young Paving. The bid price for the base bid and alternate 1&2 is 

$1,799,053.  Staff and engineers met with a representative from Larry Young 

Paving after bids were opened to make sure they understood the project and that 

we were comfortable with recommending award of bid to them.  Staff and 

engineer recommend awarding the bid to Larry Young Paving. 

 



6.  Consideration and possible action on a professional services agreement with 

Hdl Companies for consulting of sales tax and use collections.  

 The City contracted with a consultant for several years to assist in auditing and 

collection of sales taxes.  Recently we began visiting with Hdl Companies who 

provides consulting services, and among the services are some helpful reporting 

tools that we will be able to utilize, along with audits and collection.  The contract 

with the other company expired, and staff recommends an agreement with Hdl 

Companies for sales tax consulting services. 

 

7.  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 677-20, accepting the 

water, sewer, gas, street and storm drainage improvements of Phase three 

section one in Pecan Lakes Estates Subdivision, except signage, common 

areas and maintenance of open channel storm drainage, in the City of 

Navasota, Texas. 

 Section one of phase three of Pecan Lakes Estates Subdivision is nearing 

completion.  The contractor feels he will have the infrastructure with a few 

exceptions completed by council meeting and is requesting acceptance of the 

infrastructure.  Staff is working with the contractor to make sure everything meets 

city requirements and will have the recommendation Monday night.  If the project 

is not completed to city standards prior to the council meeting, we will ask you to 

hold off on acceptance until everything is complete.  The housing developer is 

pushing the subdivision to complete the project soon so they may begin building 

more homes. 

 

8.  Consideration and possible action on employee benefits for Fiscal Year 2020-

2021.  

 Last year the City signed on with Brinson Benefits to assist in the bidding process 

and employee assistance with benefits.  Brinson accepted bids for the city this 

year on our comprehensive benefit package, and along with staff recommend 

staying with TML-Health Benefits.  TML implemented a small increase of 4.15%, 

and after review and consideration Brinson and staff feel we are better off in 

today’s climate with COVID-19 virus issues staying with TML.  In an effort to 

save the City and staff some money, we did make a few changes to the plan.  

Previously staff could go to an emergency room for $100, and this ends up 

costing us more money in the long run.  Staff and Brinson felt making a change to 

that would help encourage employees and families to go to a family physician or 

an urgent care center rather than emergency room and in return save them and the 

city money.   

 

9.  Consideration and possible action on agreement from Xerox Business 

Solutions Southwest for copier rental and maintenance.  

 The current contract for copiers expires in June of 2021.  Current copiers have 

been having mechanical issues.  Xerox Business Solutions Southwest proposed a 

new 5-year agreement with new copiers that would begin with no penalties for 

early out, if approved.  This would upgrade current copiers and improve usability 



while saving the city money.  The old contract was $1,969.74 and the new 

contract will be $1,876 per month. 

  

10.  Consideration and possible action on acceptance of bids for the sale of City 

properties legally described as Park Place, Block H, Lot 1, 2 and H&TC, 

Block J, Lot 4 (S21') 5 located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868. 

City Council approved the sale of two parcels of land owned by the City.  Staff 

advertised the sale of the property by utilizing the bid method.  Each parcel 

received one bid.  Parcel #1, Park Place property received a bid of $9,000 from 

Javier Olvera and Parcel #2, H&TC (downtown) property received a bid of 

$10,105 from Janice Sheve. Both bids meet the minimum bid requirement.  Staff 

recommends acceptance of both bids. 

  

11.  Consideration and possible action on the addendum lease agreement between 

the City of Navasota and Anderson-Grimes, LLC.  

 Anderson Grimes (Dearings) are wanting to construct another set of T-Hangars 

north of the existing T-Hangars.  The construction will require additional ramp on 

the north side.  They are proposing to design and build the ramp and construct the 

hangar and asked that the city reimburse them for the ramp.  The additional ramp 

will allow the city to lease more spaces for small hangars, and we have a couple 

of people interested in building in that location.  The airport fund currently has a 

balance of $464,742, so there is ample funding to pay for the ramp, and still have 

money for future projects. 

 

12.  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 679-20, authorizing 

submission of an application to the Texas Department of Agriculture for a 

2020 Texas Capital Fund Program Downtown Revitalization grant to 

construct sidewalk and handicap-accessibility improvements in the 

designated downtown district.  

The Texas Department of Agriculture is accepting applications for 2020 Texas 

Capital Fund Downtown Revitalization grants.  This year we can qualify for 

$500,000 and the match is $75,000.  The Navasota EDC agreed to cover the 

matching funds.  The plan is to go east from LaSalle on Washington to Nolan, and 

on the east side of LaSalle go south to Holland.   

 

13.  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 678-20, a resolution of 

the City of Navasota, Texas, finding that conditions exist within the 

designated Historic Commercial District of the City which are detrimental to 

the public health, safety and welfare of the community and, therefore, are 

declared to constitute a blighted area.  

 The Downtown Revitalization grant requires that the elected body designate the 

area planned for redevelopment as a blighted area.  The area has cracked, broken 

and uneven sidewalks and are in need of repair or replacement. 

 

 



14.  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 936-

20, amending Chapter 12 Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04 Parking of the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas regarding parking 

regulations.  

 Portions of the City Code pertaining to parking are out of date and have not been 

enforced for many years.  Alicia Ortman (intern) reviewed the ordinance and 

made multiple changes to update it. Legal Counsel reviewed the ordinance for 

accuracy and legal compliance.   

 

15.  Consideration and possible action on approval of the order of election for the 

November 3, 2020 election to elect three City Councilmembers to Positions 1, 

2 and 3.  

Consideraci'on y acci'on posible en aprobar la orden de la elecci'on para que 

la elecci'on del 3 de noviembre de 2020 elija tres la ciudad Councilmembers a 

las posiciones 1, 2 y 3.  

The City Council election is normally held in May, however, due to the COVID-

19 virus, Governor Abbott allowed entities the opportunity to move the election to 

November to hopefully avoid some of the issues of the virus.  The statutory last 

day to order the general election for November is August 17th. 

 

16.  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 937-

20, vacating a remaining portion of a public alleyway located at Block 3 of 

the McNair addition of the City of Navasota, Texas, and authorizing 

execution of an instrument conveying said property to abutting property 

owners. 

 A few months back the City received a request and abandoned a twenty-foot (20) 

alleyway located at Block 3 of the McNair Addition abutting N. Jones Street, 

however, staff realized that the ordinance only closed half of the alleyway.  This 

ordinance will abandon the other half, which was the original intent. 

 

17.  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion 

and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by 

the Mayor or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed 

from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City 

Council as part of the regular agenda.  

Consent Items are: 

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of July 2020; 

and 

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of July 

2020.  

 

18.  Consideration and possible action on approval of the creation of a Financial 

Analyst position in Finance Department. 

 During the council planning retreat it was determined that we should look into 

adding a few positions to improve services.  One position we felt was needed was 

someone to assist in the finance department.  We need assistance with budgeting, 



accounts payable, debt structuring and someone to handle things when the 

Finance Director is out on vacation or ill.  Staff evaluated the situation and feels a 

Financial Analyst would be beneficial.  Currently we have an intern in a position 

that is performing the functions and would like to create the full-time position.  

The current budget will accommodate the salary for the remainder of the fiscal 

year, and the position is budgeted in the proposed budget. 

 

19.  Workshop on proposed budget for fiscal year 2020-2021. 

 Staff continues to work through the budget, and now has the budget in the black.  

We do have some new positions and projects included.  We are still working on a 

few items and will present information on possible bond for Capital Improvement 

project.  Maybe during the next workshop, we can discuss possible salary 

adjustments. 

 

Calendar of Events 

 

August 7th     TCMA Board Meeting 

9:00 a.m. - Noon   Zoom call 

 

August 10th    City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

August 18th     Brad attend Deer Park Council meeting 

7:30                     Presentation of City Council of the year award from TCMA 

 

August 24th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

September 7th     Labor Day Holiday 

City offices Closed 

 

September 11th    Brad – TCMA Region 3 meeting 

11:00 a.m.    Graham, Texas 

 

September 14th    City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.     Municipal Building 

 

September 28th    City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.     Municipal Building 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Brad Stafford 

City Manager 



 
 
 
 

Vision Statement: 
 

Navasota 2027:  What America Wants To Be 
“A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service-oriented, 

close-knit community filled with 
historical charm and promise for people and business.” 

 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains 
our heritage, culture, and uniqueness while 

maximizing our economic and social development.” 
 
 
 



 
 
 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA 
COUNCIL LEADERSHIP POLICY 

 
 
It is the desire of the Navasota City Council to demonstrate responsible 
leadership by: 
 

(a) Establishing a 2027 Strategic Growth Map for the City of Navasota. 
 
(b) Assuring stable and effective city operations. 
 
(c) Developing and adopting policies that will guide the growth of the City 

of Navasota. 
 
(d) Facilitating private/public sector partnerships at the local, regional, 

state and federal level that will invest in the future of Navasota. 
 
(e) Ensuring all Navasota boards, commissions and committees are 

aligned with the Council’s growth policies. 



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

S.M.A.R.T. GOAL SETTING SYSTEM 

Area Today’s Date Target Date Date Achieved 

City Council Retreat 10/2/19 2019-2020  
 

Goal Statement: A descriptive statement of the DESIRED OUTCOME. 
(a S.M.A.R.T. Goal is Specific, Measurable, Actionable, Responsible and Time-bound) 

 
The Management Connection, Inc. provided professional facilitation to the City of Navasota Council on 

September 4th, 2019. This document captures the Council’s direction to staff.  
 

 

Action Steps (List the specific actions you will take to achieve this goal) Target Date Who 
Percentage 
Completion 

Outcomes 

Direction from Council  
1. There needs to be a discussion on how to get 

state lawmakers to partner with the City.  
a. Potentially inviting Schwertner, 

Leman, and Kolkhorst to visit and 
tour the city  

b. Alan Bojorquez is creating a report 
card on all the legislature and looking 
for help 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

2. Figure out a way to speed up the billing 
cycle to reduce the lag time from end of 
month to bill date for payments 

a. We can make every period longer or 
each period 31 days—it will take a 
few years, but you’ll catch up 

b. Propose a staff member under Lance 
and Rita to handle all meters—Meter 
Maintenance Technician 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

3. The City Manager will do a cost benefit 
analysis on the Boys and Girls Club  

a. Benefit of having them in the 
community along with the mechanics 
of it to present to the council 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

4. The Council will move forward with the 
concept of bonds for utility and street 
improvements  

a. Bonds will be broken into three-year 
small increments 

i. Focus will be on high traffic 
roads first 

ii. Host community meetings to 
get more buy in from the city 

iii. City Manager will present the 
numbers to council 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

5. Gather a proposal for a new look and cost of 
renovating fire station at the current 
location.  

a. A rendering needs to be created to 
show the public 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

6. Review the Social Media policy (specifically 
# 3 & 4) as it relates to non-city employees 
and council members.  

a. It’s a developing area legally. We 
should review the policy because it’s 
from 2014 and make sure it’s in 
accordance with current situation. 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

7. Design the new website  
a. Have 2-3 citizens sit in to consult 

about the ease of receiving 
notifications. Get a mixture of people 
who are and aren’t familiar with 
computers  

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

8. Find more ways to get coverage in the news 
a. neighbors@theeagle.com - send 

pictures to get included 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

9. Develop relationships with Boards and 
Commissions: 

a. Have a mandatory annual meeting 
with members to talk about what a 
comp plan is, what the Council’s 
expectations are, and that they need 
to be able to make decisions as a 
board. They need to know about open 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

meetings act, public information act, 
Robert’s Rules of Order, ect.  

i. By being involved, we have a 
chance to educate them about 
how the city works  

ii. We don’t want to take away 
their ability to think, but we 
can give them parameters  

iii. We should create a statement 
to be read before each meeting 
that says “we are our own 
board, we work toward the 
goals of the city and will stand 
by the final decision”. It’s a 
reminder that we’re all here to 
do the best for the city. A 
mission statement to go at the 
top of the packet. 

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 4. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Staff Report:

(a) COVID-19 response;

(b) Introduction of new employees;

(c) Recognition of Little League All Stars;

(d) Arts Council quarterly report for 3rd quarter;

(e) Board and Commission reports; and

(f) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of
community interests, including expressions of thanks,
congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday
schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming
events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding
social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored
by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City
officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent
threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that
has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

Brad Stafford, City Manager



STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Arts Council Quarterly Report - 3rd

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596633663x_at.pdf


 
 

Page 1 of 7 

 
  

APR - JUN 2020 QUARTERLY REPORT NARRATIVE 
CITY OF NAVASOTA FUNDING 

 
THE ARTS COUNCIL PROGRAMS 

 
Arts Council & Visitor Center Operations 
 

The Arts Council & Visitor Center is the hub of the arts, culture and heritage community in 
our region and home to a unique two-tier mezzanine gallery and three working studios, 
providing exhibit and retail space for works of art created by local artists and artists 
throughout Texas. The new facility and galleries celebrated one year open on October 8, 
2019. On average, The Arts Council hosts meetings for more than 20 affiliate groups per 
month and averages roughly 450 visitors and program participants each month. Due to the 
dangers proposed by novel coronavirus, The Arts Council’s closed our public meeting spaces 
on March 20th and reopened for staff, studio artists, and public gallery visits on May 20th with 
a limit of 10 people in the building. Our facility currently remains closed to affiliate or other 
group meetings, and we have postponed or made virtual our events. Visitation since our 
reopening has been significantly less, around 50 visitors and program participants through 
June. 

 
During the third quarter, the galleries continued hosting Exploring Light and Color by local 
watercolorist Monika Pate. Monika was generous enough to extend her exhibit for several 
months when our next planned exhibit for April had to be postponed. Monika is a world-
renowned artist, member of the American Watercolor Society and juried member of the 
International Guild of Realism, and has pieces in collections all over the world. She has 
worked with watercolor for over 25 years and uses a complicated layering technique that 
allows her to gradually develop luminous colors and value. The transparent nature of the 
watercolor medium allows the light to capture the brilliant colors of each layer as it is 
reflected from the paper’s white surface.  
 
On June 22nd, we opened our Heroes of COVID exhibit, featuring artwork from Houston artist 
Kristi Nelson and local artist Amanda Dominguez. The exhibit features portraits of 
healthcare workers and frontline responders wearing their masks. When the COVID-19 
pandemic hit, and her friends on the front lines were affected, Kristi felt a need to do 
something to show her support for what they were experiencing and risking. Kristi inspired 
Amanda (also a nurse) to do the same for her friends and coworkers in the Brazos Valley. 
The exhibit has been featured on many media spots and will run through September 2020. 
 
We were able to record virtual tours of our current gallery show and three artists’ studios to 
provide remote options for visitors to view and enjoy art during the shelter-in-place 



 
 

Page 2 of 7 

restrictions. The virtual tours are hosted on our YouTube channel and shared on our website 
and social media pages. 
 
Funding Opportunities 
 

Perhaps the longest-standing means of support to the regional artistic community, The Arts 
Council funds programs, projects and education through its funding programs below. 
 

• Annual Program and Marketing Grants support affiliate organization projects that 
significantly promote arts, culture and heritage in the Brazos Valley through 
hotel/motel taxes from the City of College Station and the City of Bryan. The Arts 
Council distributed $100,646.00 in Annual Program and Marketing grant funding to 
its affiliates in the third quarter of FY 2020 in May and June. The following affiliates 
are recipients of funding of Annual Program and Marketing grants for FY 2020: Ballet 
Brazos, Brazos Educational Radio, Brazos Valley African American Museum, Brazos 
Valley Chorale, Brazos Valley Museum of Natural History, Brazos Valley Symphony 
Society, Brazos Valley Worldfest, Children’s Museum of the Brazos Valley, Fiestas 
Patrias Mexicanas of Bryan/College Station, Friends of Chamber Music, George Bush 
Presidential Library and Museum, MSC OPAS, Museum of the American G.I., Stage 
Center Community Theater, TAMU’s Dance Science Program, TAMU’s Wright Gallery, 
and The Theatre Company of Bryan/College Station. 

• The Arts Council distributed $2,275.00 in Navasota Annual Program and Marketing 
funding during the third quarter.  Grimes County Chamber of Commerce, Navasota 
Theatre Alliance, and Washington on the Brazos State Park Association are the 
recipients of Navasota Annual Program and Marketing funds in FY 2020. 

• Rural Grants assist Arts Council affiliates operating in the rural portions of the Brazos 
Valley with program needs up to $2,500.  Funding is provided by The Arts Council for 
this program.  The Arts Council opened applications for local nonprofits for this 
funding opportunity in January 2020 and distributed awards in March 2020. A total 
of $8,000 was distributed to Brenham Children’s Chorus, Navasota Theatre Alliance, 
Texas Cotton Gin Museum, Troupe Over the Hill, Unity Theatre, and Washington on 
the Brazos State Park. 

• The Arts Council offers an annual scholarship program from seniors graduating from 
high school in the seven-county Brazos Valley region.  These seniors must plan to 
attend an accredited 2- or 4-year university to study a degree plan in arts, culture, or 
heritage. The Arts Council selected six high school seniors to receive awards totaling 
$20,200. These students will attend arts- or culture-related degree programs in the 
fall of 2020 at four different schools across the country. Scholarship checks are 
distributed directly to the students’ school accounts early in the fourth quarter. 

 
 



 
 

Page 3 of 7 

Following is a detailed chart of the impact of this funding in the community as provided by individual affiliates in their quarterly reports.  

AFFILIATE GRANT RECIPIENT 
FY 2020  

Q3 Grant 
Distributions 

Persons 
Impacted 

by 
Programs 

Projected 
Restaurant 

Impact 
(meals) 

Hotel 
Impact 
(room 
nights) 

PROGRAMS FUNDED 

Navasota Grimes Co. Chamber of 
Commerce $0.00 0 0 0 No funded programs/marketing during this 

quarter 
Navasota Theatre Alliance $2,275.00 0 0 0 All events cancelled due to COVID 

Washington on the Brazos Historical 
Foundation $0.00 16,205 103 55 

Marketing only funded during this time. The 
site was intermittently closed during this 

quarter, and all programs and events 
cancelled. 

TOTALS $2,275.00 16,205 103 55  



 
 

Page 4 of 7 

Artistic Learning Opportunities 
 

• In the third quarter, The Arts Council had to cancel our in-person Art After School classes 
due to coronavirus. We continued to provide free art lessons with our teacher, Tonja 
Mason, through Facebook live programs. 

• Beginning in mid-June, The Arts Council also hosted in-person summer camps following 
the Governor’s Day Camp guidelines.  Camps began on June 15th and run every week 
throughout the summer. Registration was kept low to ensure safe social distancing.  Sara 
Jordan, an art teacher with College Station ISD, taught one camp, leading students 
through a “USA Art Tour.”  Lisa Urban, an artist and educator at St. Joseph’s school, hosted 
a Fiber Arts camp, and Navasota Artist in Residence Apinya Srikhwanthong taught a 
Nature-Inspired Fine Arts camp. Additionally, we worked with some of our summer camp 
teachers to record several art project demo videos which we shared on our Facebook 
page.   

• Our three studio artists (Sherry Killingsworth, Coleen Bradfield, and Chris Wilson) were 
allowed to return to their studio operations when our building reopened in May.  Their 
studio spaces are open to the public when the artists are present, and the artists are 
encouraged to safely engage with the visiting public and discuss their art.  

• The Arts Council, working with the City of Navasota, continued the Navasota Artist in 
Residence program.  The spring 2020 round of artists - Dusty Levenberg (mixed-media 
artist from Maryland), Jade Phillips (painter from Colorado), and returning artist 
Apinya Srikhwanthong – were impacted by Coronavirus shutdowns. Dusty and Jade 
elected to return home, and Apinya remained and moved back into the Horlock House. 
The Horlock Galleries reopened to the public in May, and Apinya’s residency has been 
extended to ensure she has proper time to complete her goals.  

• In May, Stephanie Cobb from Baton Rouge, Louisiana began her tenure in the College 
Station Summer Artist Residency. The summer residency is open to current or recently-
graduated students and provides them an opportunity to create their first solo exhibit.  
Stephanie is a talented oil painter who explores relationships through portraiture.  She 
is using the residency to expand her portfolio, and her solo show will run in August in 
The Arts Council’s galleries. 

• Devin Cogger from Portland, Oregon wrapped up his time in the Bryan Artist in 
Residence program. Housed in the Kasparov Lofts in Downtown Bryan, Devin was an 
active participant in the art scene, participating in First Fridays and Third Thursday 
ArtSteps. Devin left the program in early July, and the next Bryan Artist in Residence 
will move in in the third quarter. 

 
Community Outreach  
 

The Arts Council operates community outreach efforts designed to create access to artistic 
opportunity. Efforts include marketing, support of affiliate organizations, placement of art in 
public venues, and involvement in community events, such as First Fridays and collaboration 
with Experience B/CS and city Parks and Recreation. 
 
 
 



 
 

Page 5 of 7 

Marketing 
• Innumerable residents and visitors are served through regular marketing and 

outreach programs from mailings, advertisements, brochures, newspaper articles, 
television and radio spots/interviews, and our website, www.acbv.org.  

• The Arts Council regularly and extensively promotes affiliate events, Arts Council 
programs, and local art events through social media and paid online and print 
advertising. Marketing efforts target a statewide audience as well as providing up to 
date information to residents and visitors. Additionally, Bryan Broadcasting, KBTX 
and KAGS donate significant amounts of air time to run Arts Council Art Spots and 
interviews. Marketing efforts in the third quarter focused on supporting our affiliates 
and arts community, promotion for our virtual tours and talks, and ads for our 
summer camp opportunities. 

• The ACBVoice e-newsletter was sent to over 3,000 subscribers weekly during the 
third quarter. The newsletter promotes upcoming arts events in the Brazos Valley in 
addition to providing updates on Arts Council programs and projects.  

• Arts Council staff records regular interviews at the WTAW studios. These interviews 
were cancelled during the shutdown and began again in June. Three weekly 
interviews were recording with our three artists in residence. 

• The Arts Council temporarily suspended our Art Spots, which are distributed directly 
to every hotel in Bryan/College Station and read as public service announcements on 
media outlets in the region. We have focused on updating our arts calendar and 
sharing affiliate Art Spots on our website, newsletter, and social media. We hope to 
resume our physical distribution and PSA recordings in the fourth quarter. 

• The Arts Council also pivoted to presenting a great deal of content in a virtual format 
through our Facebook page and website. Executive Director Sheree Boegner recorded 
interviews via Zoom that were live streamed on Facebook and recorded and shared 
on our website. Interviews included volunteer celebrations with affiliates, 
discussions with scholarship winners, live tours with gallery and studio artists, and 
live critiques with our artists in residence. These live events will continue through the 
fourth quarter. 

• The Arts Council worked to advocate for the importance of arts in our community 
during the COVID-19 pandemic through a social media campaign titled Arts Matter. 
This campaign allowed us to not only increase the visibility of both our organization 
and of impactful art programs in our area, but also provided us with anecdotal 
evidence concerning how arts programs related to the Arts Council have improved 
our community. For this program, participants would create a social media post 
describing how the arts influenced their lives during the pandemic, use the hashtag 
#ArtsMatterinBV, and tag the Arts Council in their posts. Likewise, they could 
respond to a Google Form asking them to share their story. We received 25 Google 
Form responses and recorded 82 uses of the hashtag in social media posts. 

 
Support of Affiliate Organizations  

• We support over 55 affiliated arts, culture and heritage organizations across the 
Brazos Valley through funding, promotion, advocacy and partnership-building 
programs. In addition, the Arts Council facilities are typically available for use free of 



 
 

Page 6 of 7 

charge to all affiliates during regular business hours (Monday-Friday, 9am-5pm, 
Saturday, 1pm-4pm) and are typically used by many of these groups monthly. We 
hope to resume affiliate meetings at our facility in the fourth quarter. 

• The Arts Council continued to assist with the organization of the Brazos Valley 
Museum Collective and the Brazos Valley Theatre Collective.  The Museum Collective, 
made up of galleries and museums throughout the Brazos Valley, met virtually three 
times during the third quarter. These meetings discussed the cancellation of the Texas 
Association of Museum conference, discussions of sculpture/artwork policies and 
Black Lives Matter, and a roundtable discussion on reopening procedures and 
coronavirus safety protocols.  The Brazos Valley Theatre Collective suspended their 
meetings during the shutdown but have remained in regular communication through 
group emails. The group hopes to resume in person meetings in the fourth quarter.  

• The Arts Council and our affiliates are regularly covered in The Eagle and on local 
news stations as a result of our public relations efforts. 
 

Art in Public Places 
• The Arts Council curates several Community Galleries at Large (CGALs).  

o One of these Community Galleries at Large, the Brazos Valley Council of 
Governments’ building, hosted a show of artwork by area high school 
students. This show was taken down in April to return the artwork to the 
students, and was replaced with a show by studio artist Coleen Bradfield. 

o The Community Gallery-at-Large space at College Station City Hall continued 
to host an exhibit of artwork by students at the School for Little People. 

o The City of Bryan gallery space continued to host a new exhibit of fluid art by 
local artist Emily Laughlin. 

o The Navasota City Hall space continues to feature a group show by Navasota 
High School students.  

o The Brazos Valley Plastic Surgery space continues to host a show by Allen 
Academy student artists. 

• Featuring twenty outdoor sculptures and over thirty art benches, the Public Art 
program is supported by local business partners and the cities of Bryan and College 
Station. This program aesthetically improves and fosters appreciation of the role of 
the arts in our community. 

• Hand of God by local artist John Magee continues to attract crowds to the ArtFill 
installation site in Downtown Bryan. 

   
Community Events 

• Unfortunately, due to the restrictions on activities and the dangers of coronavirus, 
The Arts Council was unable to host any direct, in-person events. 

• Our participation in the Texas Association of Museums conference was moved to 
virtual options when the conference was cancelled in person. We worked with the 
organizers to record promotion videos of The Arts Council, its programs, and its 
affiliates to air during the conference. 

• Our annual Red Wasp Film Festival, scheduled originally for the weekend of May 16th, 
was indefinitely postponed early in the shutdown. The committee is working with 



 
 

Page 7 of 7 

sponsors and filmmakers to move the festival to a virtual presentation in the fourth 
quarter.  

 
FINANCIAL REPORT CITY OF NAVASOTA  

APRIL - JUNE 2020 
 

o In Q1 of FY 2020 the Arts Council received a total of $28,800.00 from City of Navasota 
Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenue funds via check #013422, dated October 22, 2019. The 
balance of these funds after Q1&2 expenses were utilized for the following in Q3:    
 

• $2,275.00 was utilized to fund quarterly affiliate grants on Jun 5. See chart on 
page 3 for detailed grant allocations. 

• The remainder of funds will be carried over for expenses in Q4. 
 

Attachments 
• Profit & Loss and Current Balance Sheet as of end of Q3 FY2020 
• Affiliate FY 2020 Q3 Reports and Supplemental Documentation 

 



Total
ASSETS

   Current Assets

      Bank Accounts

         10100 Well's Fargo Business Checking 325,255.77  

         10120 Well's Fargo Money Market 17,478.91  

         10125 PayPal 4,235.82  

         10200 Prosperity - ABC 431,356.44  

         10400 American Momentum Money Market 102,124.78  

         10450 American Funds 36,408.53  

         10950 Cash in Drawer 634.77  

         12300 Community Foundation of BV 7,478.14  

      Total Bank Accounts $                                                 924,973.16  

      Accounts Receivable

         11001 Accounts Receivable 20,100.00  

            11006 Discount on Pledge Receivable -30,845.45  

            11200 Pledges Receivable 355,640.00  

         Total 11001 Accounts Receivable $                                                 344,894.55  

      Total Accounts Receivable $                                                 344,894.55  

      Other Current Assets

         1692 Prepaid Insurance 4,171.76  

         1693 Prepaid Advertising 1,200.00  

      Total Other Current Assets $                                                     5,371.76  

   Total Current Assets $                                              1,275,239.47  

   Fixed Assets

      14000 Fixed Assets

         14100 Furniture and Equipment 125,104.81  

         14200 Buildings - Operating 7,503.00  

         14300 Permanent Collection 677,023.02  

         14999 Accum Depreciation -105,831.98  

      Total 14000 Fixed Assets $                                                 703,798.85  

      14101 New Building 1,021,146.45  

      14101.1 Building Improvements 652,626.26  

      14102  Credit to Building Cost -30,296.00  

      15000 Land 392,430.00  

      16000 Construction in Progress 8,415.05  

   Total Fixed Assets $                                              2,748,120.61  

   Other Assets

      18800 Inventory 15,105.00  

   Total Other Assets $                                                   15,105.00  

TOTAL ASSETS $                                              4,038,465.08  

The Arts Council of Brazos Valley
Statement of Financial Position

As of June 30, 2020



LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Liabilities

      Current Liabilities

         Accounts Payable

            20000 Accounts Payable 151,000.00  

         Total Accounts Payable $                                                 151,000.00  

         Credit Cards

            21500 Wells Fargo Business Card - Salvaggio 5,200.42  

            21600 Wells Fargo Business Card - Boegner 459.73  

         Total Credit Cards $                                                     5,660.15  

         Other Current Liabilities

            21000 PPP Loan 31,102.00  

            22000 Payroll Liabilities 0.00  

               22100 Federal Tax Payable -87.89  

               22200 Texas Unemployment Payable 162.10  

               22400 Blue Cross Blue Shield Payable -775.16  

               22500 Guardian Insurance Payable -161.54  

               22600 HSA Payable 127.00  

            Total 22000 Payroll Liabilities -$                                                       735.49  

            23000 Deferred Membership Dues 100.00  

            23100 Deferred Income 4,998.75  

            24300 Accrued Compensated Absences 4,029.94  

            25500 Sales Tax Payable 4,623.99  

               Texas Comptroller Payable (do not use) 139.61  

            Total 25500 Sales Tax Payable $                                                     4,763.60  

            25800 Unearned or Deferred Revenue 8,000.00  

            27201 Due to COCS- Reimbursements 16.00  

         Total Other Current Liabilities $                                                   52,274.80  

      Total Current Liabilities $                                                 208,934.95  

      Long-Term Liabilities

         27101 Notes Payable 735,297.91  

      Total Long-Term Liabilities $                                                 735,297.91  

   Total Liabilities $                                                 944,232.86  

   Equity

      31300 Perm. Restricted Net Assets 5,050.00  

      32000 Unrestricted Net Assets 2,712,152.30  

      Net Revenue 377,029.92  

   Total Equity $                                              3,094,232.22  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $                                              4,038,465.08  

Wednesday, Jul 29, 2020 07:00:43 AM GMT-7 - Accrual Basis



Actual Budget % of Budget
Revenue

   430 Contributed Income 196,158.93  200,000.00  98.08%

      431 Membership Dues

         431.1 Individual Membership 9,401.70  10,000.00  94.02%

         431.2 Affliates Membership 3,650.00  4,000.00  91.25%

         431.3 Business Membership 3,494.20  4,500.00  77.65%

      Total 431 Membership Dues $        16,545.90  $        18,500.00  89.44%

      432 Fundraising Events

         4324 Celebrate the Arts 6,025.00  70,000.00  8.61%

         4325 Boots & BBQ 17,168.78  17,000.00  100.99%

         4326 Empty Bowls, Jr. 12,976.07  13,000.00  99.82%

         4327 Celebrate the Arts Scholarship 13,500.00  15,000.00  90.00%

      Total 432 Fundraising Events $        49,669.85  $      115,000.00  43.19%

      433 Government Grants

         4331 College Station 26,250.03  35,000.00  75.00%

         4332 College Station HOT 572,232.03  687,976.00  83.18%

         4332-1 COCS HOT Reimbursements 729.00  3,000.00  24.30%

         4333 Bryan HOT 148,950.00  180,000.00  82.75%

         4333-1 COB HOT Reimbursements 0.00  600.00  0.00%

         4334 Brazos County 8,000.00  8,000.00  100.00%

         4335 TCA 10,861.00  9,500.00  114.33%

         4336 Navasota HOT 28,800.00  28,800.00  100.00%

      Total 433 Government Grants $      795,822.06  $      952,876.00  83.52%

      434 Foundation & Trust Grants 5,000.00  5,000.00  100.00%

   Total 430 Contributed Income $   1,063,196.74  $   1,291,376.00  82.33%

   440 Program Service Revenue

      440.1 Red Wasp 1,043.65  2,000.00  52.18%

      440.2 Classes 224.46  1,000.00  22.45%

      440.3 Camps 5,427.98  8,500.00  63.86%

      440.4 Community Festival 480.00  480.00  100.00%

      440.6 Artist Call for Entry 2,068.94  2,000.00  103.45%

   Total 440 Program Service Revenue $          9,245.03  $        13,980.00  66.13%

   450 Other Revenue

      450.1 Miscellaneous Revenue 2,221.25  2,200.00  100.97%

      450.2 Investments 7,201.15  2,000.00  360.06%

      450.3 Rentals 7,637.50  15,000.00  50.92%

   Total 450 Other Revenue $        17,059.90  $        19,200.00  88.85%

   46000 Merchandise Sales 16,318.36  16,200.00  100.73%

Total Revenue $   1,105,820.03  $   1,340,756.00  82.48%

Gross Profit $   1,105,820.03  $   1,340,756.00  82.48%

The Arts Council of Brazos Valley
Budget vs. Actuals: FY2020

October 2019 - June 2020

Total



Expenditures

   600 Awards and Grants

      601 Awards & Grants-Organizations 348,009.00  467,976.00  74.36%

         601-1 Returned Grants 1,113.08  3,600.00  30.92%

      Total 601 Awards & Grants-Organizations $      349,122.08  $      471,576.00  74.03%

      602 Awards & Grants-Individuals 0.00  15,000.00  0.00%

   Total 600 Awards and Grants $      349,122.08  $      486,576.00  71.75%

   610 Salaries and Related Expenses

      611 Salaries & Wages 134,914.79  190,000.00  71.01%

         6115 Family Natl Paid Sick Leave 1,004.50  0.00  

         6116 FMLA Expansion Paid Leave 4,995.50  0.00  

      Total 611 Salaries & Wages $      140,914.79  $      190,000.00  74.17%

      612 Employer IRA Contributions 3,533.92  5,000.00  70.68%

      613 Employee Benefits-Other 510.00  700.00  72.86%

      614 Payroll taxes & fees 6,104.60  15,762.00  38.73%

      616 Employer Health Ins. Contribution 6,157.88  7,913.00  77.82%

   Total 610 Salaries and Related Expenses $      157,221.19  $      219,375.00  71.67%

   620 Fees for Services

      621 Accounting Fees 15,362.57  20,000.00  76.81%

      622 Legal Fees 651.13  1,000.00  65.11%

      624 Marketing Intern Fees 6,625.00  10,000.00  66.25%

      625 Contractor Fee 560.00  500.00  112.00%

   Total 620 Fees for Services $        23,198.70  $        31,500.00  73.65%

   630 Advertising, Printing, Promo. 33,013.29  60,500.00  54.57%

   631 Programs

      6312 ART for Life 11,016.43  13,500.00  81.60%

      6313 Gallery 4,151.26  12,000.00  34.59%

      6314 Camps 2,392.90  7,500.00  31.91%

      6315 Community Festivals 54.97  400.00  13.74%

      6316 Public Art 0.00  1,000.00  0.00%

      6317 Classes 1,587.86  2,000.00  79.39%

      6319 Red Wasp 1,000.00  2,000.00  50.00%

      6320 Artist Connect 6,300.00  7,000.00  90.00%

      6325 Programs-Other 5,634.46  7,000.00  80.49%

      6327 Empty Bowls, Jr. 6,869.67  6,900.00  99.56%

      6328 Artist in Residence 2,707.70  8,500.00  31.86%

   Total 631 Programs $        41,715.25  $        67,800.00  61.53%

   632 Fundraising

      6324 Celebrate the Arts 3,481.50  45,000.00  7.74%

      6329 Boots & BBQ 5,097.96  5,100.00  99.96%

      6330 Fundraising -  Other 7,009.62  9,900.00  70.80%

   Total 632 Fundraising $        15,589.08  $        60,000.00  25.98%

   640 Office Expenses 1,789.24  2,500.00  71.57%

      641 Postage, Mailing Service 333.25  500.00  66.65%

   Total 640 Office Expenses $          2,122.49  $          3,000.00  70.75%

   650 Information Technology 3,167.00  4,500.00  70.38%



   660 Occupancy

      662 Security 825.00  1,000.00  82.50%

      663 Janitorial 6,113.75  13,000.00  47.03%

      6635 Repairs & Maintenance 1,615.90  5,000.00  32.32%

      664 Pest Control 255.00  500.00  51.00%

      665 Utilities 12,814.99  17,000.00  75.38%

      667 Mortgage Interest 16,988.89  39,000.00  43.56%

   Total 660 Occupancy $        38,613.53  $        75,500.00  51.14%

   661 Facilities & Equipment Rental 1,365.99  1,980.00  68.99%

   669 Property Purchase 0.00  280,800.00  0.00%

   670 Mileage 0.00  0.00  

      671 Travel & In-Region Mileage 1,499.45  1,800.00  83.30%

   Total 670 Mileage $          1,499.45  $          1,800.00  83.30%

   680 Insurance 13,381.10  13,200.00  101.37%

   690 Other expenses

      691 Bank Charges 661.49  1,500.00  44.10%

      6911 Investment Losses 5,927.09  600.00  987.85%

      694 Memberships and Dues 1,775.00  1,600.00  110.94%

      695 Training & Development 6,204.00  9,500.00  65.31%

      697 Artist Commission 11,778.42  12,000.00  98.15%

      699 Other Costs 22,434.96  23,000.00  97.54%

   Total 690 Other expenses $        48,780.96  $        48,200.00  101.21%

Total Expenditures $      728,790.11  $   1,354,731.00  53.80%

Net Operating Revenue $      377,029.92  -$       13,975.00  -2697.89%

Net Revenue $      377,029.92  -$       13,975.00  -2697.89%

Annual Loan Paydown to Prosperity 307,498.66  

Difference between Net Revenue and Loan Payment $        69,531.26  

Wednesday, Jul 29, 2020 07:04:21 AM GMT-7 - Accrual Basis



John McNally Navasota Grimes County Chamber of Commerce

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 1

Reds, Wheats & Blues Festival
2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant

 

Navasota Grimes County Chamber of Commerce
Mr. John Hugh McNally Jr. 
117 S. LaSalle Street
POB 530
Navasota, TX 77868

executivedirector@navasotagrimescham
ber.com
O: 936-825-6600
M: 936-355-6605

Mr. John Hugh  McNally  Jr.
117 S. LaSalle Street
POB 530
Navasota, TX 77868

executivedirector@navasotagrimeschamber.com
O: 936-825-6600
M: 936-355-6605



John McNally Navasota Grimes County Chamber of Commerce

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 2

FollowUp Form

Quarter 3
Please fill out and electronically submit this report by July 20th, 2020. Only include information (tourism impact 
and expenses) from the third quarter (April 1st - June 30th, 2020).

Program Information
Project name 

Reds, Wheats & Blues Festival

Organization name* 
Navasota Grimes County Chamber of Commerce

Name of program(s) or event(s)* 
Only list grant-funded events occurring this quarter. If no programs or events funded, list "Marketing Only" or 
"None" as appropriate.

None

Beginning date of program(s)* 
If no programs, enter the beginning date of the quarter.

04/01/2020

Ending date of program(s)* 
If no programs, enter the ending date of the quarter.

06/30/2020

Amount received from Navasota this quarter* 
The amount of your quarterly grant check.

$0.00



John McNally Navasota Grimes County Chamber of Commerce

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 3

Amount of grant funds spent this quarter* 
Please enter the total amount of grant funds that were spent IN THIS QUARTER ONLY.

$0.00

Expense chart 
Please download and use this form to itemize your quarterly expenses. Then re-upload the completed form 
here.  If you need assistance, please email Amy at deputy@acbv.org.

Q3 2020 Report.pdf

Tourism Impact
Only include tourism impact numbers from all your events/activities occurring THIS QUARTER (NOT pre-sales of 
tickets, website traffic, etc.).  Please only include raw numbers collected, not projections or extrapolations.

Total program attendance* 
Please list each program/event this quarter and the number of attendees. If just reporting on marketing funds, 
please still list the total attendance for each event/program this quarter, if any.

N/A - no events this quarter

Hotel impact* 
Please enter the total number of room nights at local hotels that your visitors reported in their surveys.  Please 
enter a whole number.

0

Restaurant patronage* 
Please enter the total number of restaurant meals reported in your visitor surveys. Please enter a whole number.

0

What methods did you use to collect your tourism impact numbers?* 
Did you do intercept surveys, ticket-purchase surveys, block rooms at a hotel, etc.?  If you have a report, please 
upload that here. PLEASE DO NOT INCLUDE PERSONAL INFORMATION OF YOUR ATTENDEES.
If you would like to break down the tourism impact by programs, or show extrapolated numbers, you may do so 
here.

N/A - no events this quarter

https://d38trduahtodj3.cloudfront.net/files.ashx?t=fg&rid=ACBV&f=FY2020-QuarterlyReportExpenseChart.pdf


John McNally Navasota Grimes County Chamber of Commerce

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 4

Examples of funded advertising/promotional campaigns 
Please attach samples of grant-funded marketing showing how the City and The Arts Council were recognized in 
your advertising/promotional campaigns.

Additional advertising/promotional samples 
Please attach any other marketing or promotional samples here.

Signature
Signature* 
Please type the name of the person completing this form. By typing your name, you certify that the information 
presented in this report is complete and accurate to the best of your knowledge.

Johnny McNally

Title* 
Please list your title at the organization.

Executive Director

Contact Email* 
executivedirector@navasotagrimeschamber.com

Contact Phone* 
936.825.6600

Date* 
07/10/2020



John McNally Navasota Grimes County Chamber of Commerce

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 5

File Attachment Summary
Applicant File Uploads
•   Q3 2020 Report.pdf
 



Annual Marketing &Program Grant 
Quarterly Report Expense Chart 

FY 2019-2020 

Date Payment Method  
(Include Check #) 

Payee  
(must match approved items on contract for 

grant-funded items) 

Total Payment 
Amount 

Amount Attributed 
to Grant 

Funded by which 
city? 

Amount Attributed 
to Matching 

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

       

 
 
 

      

Q2 2020
4-7-20

None None 0 0 N/A N/A



Dawn Jourdan Navasota Theatre Alliance

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 1

Programing and marketing support for the 2019-2020 
season
2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant

 

Navasota Theatre Alliance
Dawn Jourdan 
104 W. Washington Avenue
Navasota, TX 77868

navasotatheatrealliance@gmail.com
O: 936-825-3195

Dawn  Jourdan  
dawnjourdan@arch.tamu.edu
O: 816-739-4416



Dawn Jourdan Navasota Theatre Alliance

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 2

FollowUp Form

Quarter 3
Please fill out and electronically submit this report by July 20th, 2020. Only include information (tourism impact 
and expenses) from the third quarter (April 1st - June 30th, 2020).

Program Information
Project name 

Programing and marketing support for the 2019-2020 season

Organization name* 
Navasota Theatre Alliance

Name of program(s) or event(s)* 
Only list grant-funded events occurring this quarter. If no programs or events funded, list "Marketing Only" or 
"None" as appropriate.

None Due to COVID Postponements

Beginning date of program(s)* 
If no programs, enter the beginning date of the quarter.

05/01/2020

Ending date of program(s)* 
If no programs, enter the ending date of the quarter.

08/31/2020

Amount received from Navasota this quarter* 
The amount of your quarterly grant check.

$2,275.00



Dawn Jourdan Navasota Theatre Alliance

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 3

Amount of grant funds spent this quarter* 
Please enter the total amount of grant funds that were spent IN THIS QUARTER ONLY.

$0.00

Expense chart 
Please download and use this form to itemize your quarterly expenses. Then re-upload the completed form 
here.  If you need assistance, please email Amy at deputy@acbv.org.

Tourism Impact
Only include tourism impact numbers from all your events/activities occurring THIS QUARTER (NOT pre-sales of 
tickets, website traffic, etc.).  Please only include raw numbers collected, not projections or extrapolations.

Total program attendance* 
Please list each program/event this quarter and the number of attendees. If just reporting on marketing funds, 
please still list the total attendance for each event/program this quarter, if any.

The theatre has been closed since March 11th.  We are hosting an online summer camp the last two weeks 
of July.  Marjorie Prime is being recorded and will be presented virtually in Mid August.  We hope Sugar Bean 
Sisters can be live on stage in October but are uncertain.

Hotel impact* 
Please enter the total number of room nights at local hotels that your visitors reported in their surveys.  Please 
enter a whole number.

0

Restaurant patronage* 
Please enter the total number of restaurant meals reported in your visitor surveys. Please enter a whole number.

0

What methods did you use to collect your tourism impact numbers?* 
Did you do intercept surveys, ticket-purchase surveys, block rooms at a hotel, etc.?  If you have a report, please 
upload that here. PLEASE DO NOT INCLUDE PERSONAL INFORMATION OF YOUR ATTENDEES.
If you would like to break down the tourism impact by programs, or show extrapolated numbers, you may do so 
here.

Ticket Purchase surveys.  Not relevant this quarter as now tickets were sold.

https://d38trduahtodj3.cloudfront.net/files.ashx?t=fg&rid=ACBV&f=FY2020-QuarterlyReportExpenseChart.pdf


Dawn Jourdan Navasota Theatre Alliance

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 4

Examples of funded advertising/promotional campaigns 
Please attach samples of grant-funded marketing showing how the City and The Arts Council were recognized in 
your advertising/promotional campaigns.

Additional advertising/promotional samples 
Please attach any other marketing or promotional samples here.

Signature
Signature* 
Please type the name of the person completing this form. By typing your name, you certify that the information 
presented in this report is complete and accurate to the best of your knowledge.

Dawn Jourdan

Title* 
Please list your title at the organization.

President

Contact Email* 
navasotatheatrealliance@gmail.com

Contact Phone* 
8167394416

Date* 
07/12/2020



Dawn Jourdan Navasota Theatre Alliance

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 5

File Attachment Summary
Applicant File Uploads
No files were uploaded
 



Ginger Moreland Washington on the Brazos State Park Association

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 1

Year Round Marketing Support
2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant

 

Washington on the Brazos State Park Association
Mrs. Ginger Yvonne Moreland 
P.O. Box 1
23400 Park Rd. 12
Washington, TX 77880

office@wheretexasbecametexas.org
O: 979-830-1824
M: 979-830-1824

Mrs. Ginger Yvonne  Moreland  
P.O. Box 1
23400 Park Rd. 12
Washington, TX 77880

office@wheretexasbecametexas.org
O: 979-830-1824
M: 979-830-1824



Ginger Moreland Washington on the Brazos State Park Association

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 2

FollowUp Form

Quarter 3
Please fill out and electronically submit this report by July 20th, 2020. Only include information (tourism impact 
and expenses) from the third quarter (April 1st - June 30th, 2020).

Program Information
Project name 

Year Round Marketing Support

Organization name* 
Washington on the Brazos Historical Foundation

Name of program(s) or event(s)* 
Only list grant-funded events occurring this quarter. If no programs or events funded, list "Marketing Only" or 
"None" as appropriate.

marketing only

Beginning date of program(s)* 
If no programs, enter the beginning date of the quarter.

04/01/2020

Ending date of program(s)* 
If no programs, enter the ending date of the quarter.

06/30/2020

Amount received from Navasota this quarter* 
The amount of your quarterly grant check.

$4,370.00



Ginger Moreland Washington on the Brazos State Park Association

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 3

Amount of grant funds spent this quarter* 
Please enter the total amount of grant funds that were spent IN THIS QUARTER ONLY.

$3,459.00

Expense chart 
Please download and use this form to itemize your quarterly expenses. Then re-upload the completed form 
here.  If you need assistance, please email Amy at deputy@acbv.org.

QUARTERLY REPORT 3.pdf

Tourism Impact
Only include tourism impact numbers from all your events/activities occurring THIS QUARTER (NOT pre-sales of 
tickets, website traffic, etc.).  Please only include raw numbers collected, not projections or extrapolations.

Total program attendance* 
Please list each program/event this quarter and the number of attendees. If just reporting on marketing funds, 
please still list the total attendance for each event/program this quarter, if any.

April-4,150 visitors
May 7,341
June-4,714
total for the quarter-16,205
The site was intermittenly open and closed due to COVID concerns. Juneteenth Heritage Celebration was 

cancelled, and some Living History programs were cancelled as well.

Hotel impact* 
Please enter the total number of room nights at local hotels that your visitors reported in their surveys.  Please 
enter a whole number.

55

Restaurant patronage* 
Please enter the total number of restaurant meals reported in your visitor surveys. Please enter a whole number.

103

What methods did you use to collect your tourism impact numbers?* 
Did you do intercept surveys, ticket-purchase surveys, block rooms at a hotel, etc.?  If you have a report, please 
upload that here. PLEASE DO NOT INCLUDE PERSONAL INFORMATION OF YOUR ATTENDEES.

https://d38trduahtodj3.cloudfront.net/files.ashx?t=fg&rid=ACBV&f=FY2020-QuarterlyReportExpenseChart.pdf


Ginger Moreland Washington on the Brazos State Park Association

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 4

If you would like to break down the tourism impact by programs, or show extrapolated numbers, you may do so 
here.

Surveyed 274 visitors during our Texas Independence Day Celebration, representing total number in 
their party of 1163. 20% stayed overnight in a nearby hotel or bnb, and 37% ate at an area restaurant.

Examples of funded advertising/promotional campaigns 
Please attach samples of grant-funded marketing showing how the City and The Arts Council were recognized in 
your advertising/promotional campaigns.

Eagle ad .jpg

Additional advertising/promotional samples 
Please attach any other marketing or promotional samples here.

1250x700.jpg

Signature
Signature* 
Please type the name of the person completing this form. By typing your name, you certify that the information 
presented in this report is complete and accurate to the best of your knowledge.

Ginger Moreland

Title* 
Please list your title at the organization.

Administrator

Contact Email* 
office@wheretexasbecametexas.org

Contact Phone* 
979-830-1824



Ginger Moreland Washington on the Brazos State Park Association

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 5

Date* 
07/13/2020



Ginger Moreland Washington on the Brazos State Park Association

Printed On: 28 July 2020 2020 Navasota Program & Marketing Grant 6

File Attachment Summary
Applicant File Uploads
•   QUARTERLY REPORT 3.pdf
•   Eagle ad .jpg
•   1250x700.jpg
 



Annual Marketing &Program Grant 
Quarterly Report Expense Chart 

FY 2019-2020 

Date Payment Method  
(Include Check #) 

Payee  
(must match approved items on contract for 

grant-funded items) 

Total Payment 
Amount 

Amount Attributed 
to Grant 

Funded by which 
city? 

Amount Attributed 
to Matching 

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

 
 
 

      

       

 
 
 

      

4/8/2020 check#5577 TourTexas.com $879 $879 Navasota 

6/22/2020 
1/31/2020

check# 5589 
check #5496

Texas Monthly $2000 $2000 Navasota 

6/25 debit Houston Public Media $580 $580 Navasota







ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on award of bid for the
2016 GLO CDBG-DR, Railroad Storm Sewer Extension Project.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The 2016 GLO CDBG-DR, Railroad Street Storm Sewer Extension
Project includes replacing and installing a storm sewer pipe,
junction boxes, culverts and all associated appurtenances. 

Bids were received from the following:

BPI, BSI, Dudley, Larry Young Paving, Palasota, Solid Bridge and
Texcon.

Low bidder for the project was Larry Young Paving.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
Grant award amount $ 2,000,000.00

City match amount $ 20,000.00

Combined total of grant award & match $ 2,020,000.00

Grant amount allocated for construction $ 1,705,300.00

Engineer's estimate $

Low bid $1,799,053.00
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Brad Stafford, City Manager



Staff recommends awarding the 2016 GLO CDBG-DR, Railroad
Street Storm Sewer Extension Project to Larry Young Paving, in
the amount of $1,799,053.00

 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Recommendation of Award & Bid Tabulation

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596487154x_at.pdf


 
 
 
 

 

August 3, 2020 
 
City of Navasota 
Brad Stafford, City Manager 
200 E. McAlpine 
Navasota, Texas 77868 
 
Re: Railroad St. Storm Sewer Extension 
City of Navasota Railroad Street Target Area, 2016 Flood CDBG – Disaster Recovery (19-076-
034-B687) 
 
Mr. Stafford: 
 
Accompanying this letter is a bid tabulation of the bids received June 25th, 2020, for the City of 
Navasota Railroad Street Target Area, 2016 Flood CDBG – Disaster Recovery (19-076-034-
B687), Railroad Street Storm Sewer Extension Project. Seven (7) bids were received, consisting 
of a Base Bid (Railroad St. from Washington to McAlpine), Alternate 1 (McAlpine to Holland), 
Alternate 2 (Holland to Johnson), Alternate 3 (Johnson St. from Railroad to Alley), Alternate 4 
(Alley from Johnson to Manley) and Alternate 5 (Johnson St. from Alley to Farquhar).  Current 
funding only allows the Base Bid, Alternate 1 and Alternate 2 to be constructed, with the lowest 
bidder being Larry Young Paving Inc. with a bid of $1,799,053.00.  The next closest bid was 
$1,900,164.00.   
 
The total would include the total reconstruction of Railroad Street (storm sewer improvements, 
reconfiguring/extension of the sidewalk from Washington to McAlpine, and utility improvements) 
from Washington to Holland.  The storm sewer will also be reconstructed from Holland to Johnson 
as part of this project, with the ability to be extended as funding becomes available.  Larry Young 
Paving, Inc. is a well-known general contractor in the Bryan/College Station area that performs 
public and private projects similar to the work in the Railroad St. Storm Sewer Extension Project.  
They have previously worked for the City of Navasota on the Foster Street project and various 
street improvement projects.  
 
Therefore, based on LYP’s bid total, ability to perform, and completed application, I recommend 
that the contract for the Railroad St. Storm Sewer Extension be awarded to BPI in the amount of 
$1,799,053.00.  As always, please contact me with any questions you have related to this project.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Johnnie Price, P.E., CFM 
Senior Project Manager 
 
Attachment 
Bid Tabulation 
Bid Summary 



1 Mobilization & Overhead 1 LS $58,871.68 $58,872 $68,600.00 $68,600.00 $42,590.75 $42,590.75 $107,301.34 $107,301.34 $56,000.00 $56,000.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $45,000.00 $45,000.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00

2 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, File Notice of Intent with TCEQ, Maintain Records 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000 $4,672.00 $4,672.00 $17,036.30 $17,036.30 $2,858.12 $2,858.12 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

3 Traffic Control 1 LS $7,500.00 $7,500 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $17,036.30 $17,036.30 $8,574.36 $8,574.36 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

Subtotal $69,372 $79,772.00 $76,663.35 $118,733.82 $73,000.00 $180,000.00 $80,000.00 $180,000.00

4 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Pavement, All Thicknesses 1640 SY $24.00 $39,360 $12.00 $19,680.00 $5.00 $8,200.00 $25.72 $42,180.80 $11.00 $18,040.00 $20.00 $32,800.00 $36.00 $59,040.00 $40.00 $65,600.00

5 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Curb & Gutter 740 LF $14.00 $10,360 $13.00 $9,620.00 $15.00 $11,100.00 $8.00 $5,920.00 $4.75 $3,515.00 $20.00 $14,800.00 $10.00 $7,400.00 $15.00 $11,100.00

6 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Sidewalk, All Thicknesses 525 SY $29.00 $15,225 $14.00 $7,350.00 $5.00 $2,625.00 $20.58 $10,804.50 $11.00 $5,775.00 $20.00 $10,500.00 $30.00 $15,750.00 $25.00 $13,125.00

7 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Storm Downspout Drains 56 LF $15.00 $840 $30.00 $1,680.00 $25.00 $1,400.00 $13.72 $768.32 $15.00 $840.00 $20.00 $1,120.00 $30.00 $1,680.00 $30.00 $1,680.00

8 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 15" Storm Sewer Line 18 LF $15.00 $270 $20.00 $360.00 $25.00 $450.00 $32.14 $578.52 $15.00 $270.00 $25.00 $450.00 $50.00 $900.00 $30.00 $540.00

9 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 18" Storm Sewer Line 70 LF $15.00 $1,050 $25.00 $1,750.00 $25.00 $1,750.00 $36.05 $2,523.50 $18.00 $1,260.00 $25.00 $1,750.00 $30.00 $2,100.00 $30.00 $2,100.00

10 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 30" Storm Sewer Line 45 LF $18.00 $810 $30.00 $1,350.00 $25.00 $1,125.00 $42.13 $1,895.85 $21.00 $945.00 $40.00 $1,800.00 $35.00 $1,575.00 $35.00 $1,575.00

11 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 36" Storm Sewer Line 332 LF $20.00 $6,640 $35.00 $11,620.00 $25.00 $8,300.00 $32.46 $10,776.72 $21.00 $6,972.00 $40.00 $13,280.00 $30.00 $9,960.00 $35.00 $11,620.00

12 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Storm Sewer Manhole & Junction Box 3 EA $1,145.00 $3,435 $1,800.00 $5,400.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,143.25 $3,429.75 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,000.00 $6,000.00 $2,000.00 $6,000.00

13 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Storm Sewer Grate Inlet/Partially Completed Inlet 4 EA $770.00 $3,080 $1,800.00 $7,200.00 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $743.11 $2,972.44 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,250.00 $5,000.00 $2,000.00 $8,000.00

14 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 6" Water Line; including Fittings & Appurtenances 335 LF $24.00 $8,040 $20.00 $6,700.00 $20.00 $6,700.00 $30.97 $10,374.95 $39.00 $13,065.00 $20.00 $6,700.00 $15.00 $5,025.00 $20.00 $6,700.00

15 Grout Fill & Abandon Existing 6" Water Line 95 LF $12.50 $1,188 $45.00 $4,275.00 $20.00 $1,900.00 $17.15 $1,629.25 $300.00 $28,500.00 $40.00 $3,800.00 $40.00 $3,800.00 $20.00 $1,900.00

16 Remove Existing 6" Valve Box and Stem 1 EA $775.00 $775 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $500.00 $500.00 $400.14 $400.14 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $500.00 $500.00 $750.00 $750.00

17 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Water Service; including Fittings & Appurtenances 136 LF $12.00 $1,632 $20.00 $2,720.00 $25.00 $3,400.00 $5.72 $777.92 $15.00 $2,040.00 $20.00 $2,720.00 $12.00 $1,632.00 $20.00 $2,720.00

18 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Utility Pole 4 EA $1,000.00 $4,000 $560.00 $2,240.00 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $514.46 $2,057.84 $800.00 $3,200.00 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $600.00 $2,400.00

19 Remove Existing Planter Boxes 4 EA $500.00 $2,000 $650.00 $2,600.00 $500.00 $2,000.00 $114.32 $457.28 $200.00 $800.00 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $250.00 $1,000.00 $500.00 $2,000.00

20 Excavation & Removal of Spoils 2900 CY $15.66 $45,414 $20.00 $58,000.00 $20.00 $58,000.00 $24.01 $69,629.00 $19.00 $55,100.00 $20.00 $58,000.00 $10.00 $29,000.00 $18.00 $52,200.00

Subtotal $144,119 $143,545.00 $118,450.00 $167,176.78 $147,622.00 $163,020.00 $154,362.00 $190,010.00

21 4" Thick Reinforced Concrete Sidewalk w/ Concrete Pavers 105 SY $150.00 $15,750 $125.00 $13,125.00 $69.00 $7,245.00 $100.61 $10,564.05 $95.00 $9,975.00 $150.00 $15,750.00 $55.00 $5,775.00 $150.00 $15,750.00

22 6" Thick Reinforced Concrete w/ Pavers 11 SY $170.00 $1,870 $250.00 $2,750.00 $65.00 $715.00 $115.47 $1,270.17 $43.00 $473.00 $180.00 $1,980.00 $58.00 $638.00 $500.00 $5,500.00

23 4" Thick Reinforced Concrete Sidewalk 870 SY $57.00 $49,590 $60.00 $52,200.00 $54.00 $46,980.00 $59.45 $51,721.50 $38.00 $33,060.00 $45.00 $39,150.00 $58.00 $50,460.00 $54.00 $46,980.00

24 24" High Concrete Sidewalk Toe Wall 100 LF $40.00 $4,000 $45.00 $4,500.00 $60.00 $6,000.00 $28.58 $2,858.00 $19.00 $1,900.00 $100.00 $10,000.00 $25.00 $2,500.00 $60.00 $6,000.00

25 6" Thick Reinforced Concrete Pavement 1,719 SY $85.00 $146,119 $58.00 $99,702.00 $60.00 $103,140.00 $54.88 $94,338.72 $43.00 $73,917.00 $48.00 $82,512.00 $63.00 $108,297.00 $55.00 $94,545.00

26 Reinforced Concrete Curb & Gutter 652 LF $39.00 $25,428 $18.00 $11,736.00 $28.00 $18,256.00 $16.01 $10,438.52 $8.25 $5,379.00 $25.00 $16,300.00 $11.00 $7,172.00 $20.00 $13,040.00

27 ADA Curb Ramp 6 EA $1,250.00 $7,500 $850.00 $5,100.00 $1,200.00 $7,200.00 $971.76 $5,830.56 $600.00 $3,600.00 $1,000.00 $6,000.00 $500.00 $3,000.00 $950.00 $5,700.00

28 ADA Parking Sign w/ Bollard 1 EA $520.00 $520 $509.60 $509.60 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $520.18 $520.18 $500.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $500.00 $500.00 $570.00 $570.00

29 Lighted Bollard 9 EA $2,000.00 $18,000 $5,639.20 $50,752.80 $3,800.00 $34,200.00 $4,001.37 $36,012.33 $6,000.00 $54,000.00 $1,000.00 $9,000.00 $1,150.00 $10,350.00 $6,600.00 $59,400.00

30 Signage 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500 $1,764.00 $1,764.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,800.62 $1,800.62 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

31 Hand Rail 270 LF $50.00 $13,500 $180.00 $48,600.00 $58.00 $15,660.00 $274.38 $74,082.60 $200.00 $54,000.00 $175.00 $47,250.00 $50.00 $13,500.00 $160.00 $43,200.00

32 Pavement Striping 1 LS $3,500.00 $3,500 $2,788.80 $2,788.80 $2,900.00 $2,900.00 $2,846.69 $2,846.69 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $3,125.00 $3,125.00

Subtotal $287,277 $293,528.20 $245,296.00 $292,283.94 $241,804.00 $238,942.00 $219,192.00 $295,810.00

33 Pre-Cast 7' x 7' I.D. Reinforced Concrete Box Culvert 263 LF $1,030.00 $270,890 $985.00 $259,055.00 $700.00 $184,100.00 $721.05 $189,636.15 $700.00 $184,100.00 $888.00 $233,544.00 $880.00 $231,440.00 $725.00 $190,675.00

34 Pre-Cast 6' x 6' I.D. Reinforced Concrete Box Culvert 67 LF $750.00 $50,250 $895.00 $59,965.00 $600.00 $40,200.00 $664.08 $44,493.36 $600.00 $40,200.00 $690.00 $46,230.00 $800.00 $53,600.00 $650.00 $43,550.00

35 15" RCP, Structural Backfill 8 LF $90.00 $720 $100.00 $800.00 $100.00 $800.00 $206.66 $1,653.28 $100.00 $800.00 $50.00 $400.00 $50.00 $400.00 $100.00 $800.00

36 3' x 3' I.D. Reinforced Concrete Junction Box 1 EA $3,500.00 $3,500 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,001.37 $4,001.37 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $7,200.00 $7,200.00 $5,800.00 $5,800.00

37 24" RCP, Structural Backfill 108 LF $115.00 $12,420 $110.00 $11,880.00 $67.00 $7,236.00 $207.74 $22,435.92 $100.00 $10,800.00 $180.00 $19,440.00 $60.00 $6,480.00 $143.00 $15,444.00

38 24" RCP, 45° Elbow 2 EA $500.00 $1,000 $2,800.00 $5,600.00 $285.00 $570.00 $2,113.76 $4,227.52 $600.00 $1,200.00 $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $750.00 $1,500.00

39 30" RCP, Structural Backfill 70 LF $146.00 $10,220 $125.00 $8,750.00 $75.00 $5,250.00 $274.25 $19,197.50 $200.00 $14,000.00 $210.00 $14,700.00 $90.00 $6,300.00 $215.00 $15,050.00

40 10' x 5' I. D. Cast-in-Place Reinforced Concrete Junction Box 1 EA $12,200.00 $12,200 $20,560.00 $20,560.00 $12,800.00 $12,800.00 $17,720.35 $17,720.35 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

41 5' Wide Reinforced Concrete Curb Inlet w/ (2) 5' Extenstions 6 EA $7,600.00 $45,600 $6,800.00 $40,800.00 $5,500.00 $33,000.00 $5,144.62 $30,867.72 $6,000.00 $36,000.00 $6,000.00 $36,000.00 $8,500.00 $51,000.00 $8,500.00 $51,000.00

42 10' Wide Reinforced Concrete Curb Inlet w/ (1) 5' Extension 1 EA $7,600.00 $7,600 $5,600.00 $5,600.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00 $6,630.84 $6,630.84 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $11,200.00 $11,200.00

43 Sidewalk Trench Drain 45 LF $150.00 $6,750 $185.00 $8,325.00 $400.00 $18,000.00 $198.16 $8,917.20 $300.00 $13,500.00 $425.00 $19,125.00 $25.00 $1,125.00 $200.00 $9,000.00

44 Existing Storm Sewer Connection to Proposed Inlet or Elbow 3 EA $1,000.00 $3,000 $1,850.00 $5,550.00 $550.00 $1,650.00 $342.97 $1,028.91 $700.00 $2,100.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,500.00 $4,500.00 $2,500.00 $7,500.00

45 Proposed Strom Sewer Connection to Existing Junction 1 EA $1,200.00 $1,200 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $550.00 $550.00 $6,287.87 $6,287.87 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

46 TV Inspection of Storm Sewer 516 LF $3.50 $1,806 $4.00 $2,064.00 $5.00 $2,580.00 $3.56 $1,836.96 $6.25 $3,225.00 $5.00 $2,580.00 $3.00 $1,548.00 $10.00 $5,160.00

47 Trench & Excavation Protective System(s) 494 LF $35.00 $17,290 $3.50 $1,729.00 $1.00 $494.00 $9.15 $4,520.10 $3.00 $1,482.00 $5.00 $2,470.00 $5.00 $2,470.00 $95.00 $46,930.00

Subtotal $424,150 $437,678.00 $318,430.00 $363,455.05 $330,407.00 $404,989.00 $402,063.00 $421,109.00

48 8" PVC Water Line, CL200 (C900) 9 LF $60.00 $540 $85.00 $765.00 $50.00 $450.00 $299.24 $2,693.16 $120.00 $1,080.00 $50.00 $450.00 $100.00 $900.00 $40.00 $360.00

49 6" PVC Water Line, CL200 (C900) 359 LF $54.00 $19,386 $60.00 $21,540.00 $40.00 $14,360.00 $51.85 $18,614.15 $69.00 $24,771.00 $40.00 $14,360.00 $30.00 $10,770.00 $38.00 $13,642.00

50 6" Water Line Cased Bore; 14" x 3/8" Steel Casing with Certa-Lok (C900) DR14 Restrained Joint Water Line by Dry Bore. To Include All Necessary Spacers and End Seals 63 LF $400.00 $25,200 $685.00 $43,155.00 $150.00 $9,450.00 $290.39 $18,294.57 $400.00 $25,200.00 $200.00 $12,600.00 $150.00 $9,450.00 $467.00 $29,421.00

51 4" PVC Water Line, CL200 (C900) (fire supression line) 89 LF $45.00 $4,005 $142.00 $12,638.00 $30.00 $2,670.00 $30.62 $2,725.18 $100.00 $8,900.00 $40.00 $3,560.00 $50.00 $4,450.00 $151.00 $13,439.00

52 4" PVC Water Line, CL200 (C900) (Connection from Existing Fire Line to New Water Line) 1 EA $500.00 $500 $3,800.00 $3,800.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,772.04 $1,772.04 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

53 8" M.J., D.I. Gate Valve 1 EA $1,350.00 $1,350 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,314.74 $1,314.74 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00

54 6" M.J., D.I. Gate Valve 2 EA $1,200.00 $2,400 $1,400.00 $2,800.00 $800.00 $1,600.00 $914.60 $1,829.20 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $700.00 $1,400.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00

55 6" x 45° M.J. Elbow 8 EA $390.00 $3,120 $400.00 $3,200.00 $280.00 $2,240.00 $314.39 $2,515.12 $400.00 $3,200.00 $300.00 $2,400.00 $125.00 $1,000.00 $400.00 $3,200.00

56 8"x6" M.J. Tee 1 EA $550.00 $550 $485.00 $485.00 $240.00 $240.00 $445.87 $445.87 $700.00 $700.00 $450.00 $450.00 $125.00 $125.00 $500.00 $500.00

57 6"x6" M.J. Tee 1 EA $500.00 $500 $465.00 $465.00 $230.00 $230.00 $428.72 $428.72 $600.00 $600.00 $400.00 $400.00 $125.00 $125.00 $500.00 $500.00

58 6"x4" M.J. Tee 6 EA $500.00 $3,000 $450.00 $2,700.00 $400.00 $2,400.00 $386.42 $2,318.52 $600.00 $3,600.00 $400.00 $2,400.00 $200.00 $1,200.00 $500.00 $3,000.00

59 4" Gate Valve and lockable lid w/ 3'x3' Concrete Knock Out Box  (Sprinkler Isolation Valve) 5 EA $800.00 $4,000 $1,250.00 $6,250.00 $3,000.00 $15,000.00 $2,073.73 $10,368.65 $3,000.00 $15,000.00 $2,500.00 $12,500.00 $1,500.00 $7,500.00 $2,500.00 $12,500.00

60 Standard Fire Hydrant Assembly 1 EA $4,150.00 $4,150 $4,850.00 $4,850.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $2,943.87 $2,943.87 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,150.00 $4,150.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00

61 Adjustment of Water Line 2 EA $3,000.00 $6,000 $4,000.00 $8,000.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $514.46 $1,028.92 $4,000.00 $8,000.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $8,000.00

62 Water Meter Vault 2 EA $210.00 $420 $6,500.00 $13,000.00 $16,000.00 $32,000.00 $109.03 $218.06 $200.00 $400.00 $18,000.00 $36,000.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $500.00 $1,000.00

63 Water Service 1" Short Side (Meter provided by City) 1 EA $1,300.00 $1,300 $850.00 $850.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $857.44 $857.44 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $800.00 $800.00 $650.00 $650.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

64 Water Service 1" Long Side (Meter Provided by City) 1 EA $1,800.00 $1,800 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $280.00 $280.00 $1,086.09 $1,086.09 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

Subtotal $76,421 $128,098.00 $94,720.00 $69,454.30 $106,451.00 $103,620.00 $52,020.00 $100,812.00

65 4-4" Schedule 40 PVC Telecommunications Conduit 329 LF $49.00 $16,121 $56.00 $18,424.00 $65.00 $21,385.00 $23.31 $7,668.99 $60.00 $19,740.00 $65.00 $21,385.00 $8.00 $2,632.00 $60.00 $19,740.00

Subtotal $16,121 $18,424.00 $21,385.00 $7,668.99 $19,740.00 $21,385.00 $2,632.00 $19,740.00

66 1-3" Schedule 40 PVC Electrical Conduit 273 LF $24.00 $6,552 $31.36 $8,561.28 $18.00 $4,914.00 $10.14 $2,768.22 $34.00 $9,282.00 $59.00 $16,107.00 $78.00 $21,294.00 $35.00 $9,555.00

67 Electrical Pull Box 3 EA $370.00 $1,110 $728.00 $2,184.00 $5,500.00 $16,500.00 $1,143.25 $3,429.75 $800.00 $2,400.00 $8,000.00 $24,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $815.00 $2,445.00

68 Street Light & Pole Base 2 EA $6,500.00 $13,000 $7,548.80 $15,097.60 $9,000.00 $18,000.00 $12,575.73 $25,151.46 $8,000.00 $16,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $7,460.00 $14,920.00

Subtotal $20,662 $25,842.88 $39,414.00 $31,349.43 $27,682.00 $50,107.00 $34,294.00 $26,920.00

69 Planter Boxes 4 EA $1,000.00 $4,000 $2,000.00 $8,000.00 $1,679.70 $6,718.80 $2,400.82 $9,603.28 $1,500.00 $6,000.00 $1,800.00 $7,200.00 $800.00 $3,200.00 $1,900.00 $7,600.00

70 Block Sod 150 SY $10.00 $1,500 $4.15 $622.50 $15.75 $2,362.50 $6.86 $1,029.00 $4.75 $712.50 $10.00 $1,500.00 $10.00 $1,500.00 $17.00 $2,550.00

71 2" Schedule 40 PVC Irrigation Water Sleeves 156 LF $12.00 $1,872 $16.00 $2,496.00 $10.00 $1,560.00 $8.33 $1,299.48 $6.00 $936.00 $20.00 $3,120.00 $8.00 $1,248.00 $8.00 $1,248.00

72 1" Poly Irrigation Water Line 160 LF $10.00 $1,600 $25.00 $4,000.00 $2.07 $331.20 $13.72 $2,195.20 $12.00 $1,920.00 $20.00 $3,200.00 $5.00 $800.00 $4.00 $640.00

73 Backflow Preventer, Irrigation Control Valve & Assembly Box 1 EA $1,750.00 $1,750 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $2,252.80 $2,252.80 $1,657.71 $1,657.71 $2,250.00 $2,250.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

74 Inlet Protection 5 EA $175.00 $875 $125.00 $625.00 $100.00 $500.00 $148.62 $743.10 $200.00 $1,000.00 $200.00 $1,000.00 $100.00 $500.00 $300.00 $1,500.00

75 Silt Fence 261 LF $3.25 $848 $3.50 $913.50 $1.50 $391.50 $3.14 $819.54 $2.75 $717.75 $5.00 $1,305.00 $2.00 $522.00 $5.00 $1,305.00

Subtotal $12,445 $20,157.00 $14,116.80 $17,347.31 $13,536.25 $19,825.00 $9,770.00 $17,343.00

$1,050,566 $1,147,045.08 $928,475.15 $1,067,469.62 $960,242.25 $1,181,888.00 $954,333.00 $1,251,744.00

City of Navasota

2019 Navasota Street Improvements Project

Bid Tabulation

Unit Price Extension

Engineer's Estimate

Item 

No.
Description Estimated Quantity Unit Unit Price Extension Unit PriceUnit Price Extension

Base Bid
General Items

Demolition

Sidewalk and Street Improvements: Full Reconstruction

Strorm Sewer Infrastructure Improvements

Alternate 1 - Full Reconstruction
Demolition

Water Infrastructure Improvements

Telecom Infrastructure Improvements

Electrical Infrastructure Improvements

 Landscaping Improvements & SWPP Elements

 TOTAL ESTIMATED BASE COST 

ExtensionUnit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

Palasota Solid Bridge TexconBPI BSI Dudley Larry Young Paving

Unit PriceUnit Price ExtensionExtension



Unit Price Extension

Engineer's Estimate

Item 

No.
Description Estimated Quantity Unit Unit Price Extension Unit PriceUnit Price Extension ExtensionUnit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

Palasota Solid Bridge TexconBPI BSI Dudley Larry Young Paving

Unit PriceUnit Price ExtensionExtension

1 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Pavement, All Thicknesses 1347 SY $24.00 $32,328 $12.00 $16,164.00 $5.00 $6,735.00 $25.72 $34,644.84 $11.00 $14,817.00 $20.00 $26,940.00 $36.00 $48,492.00 $40.00 $53,880.00

2 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Curb & Gutter 575 LF $14.00 $8,050 $13.50 $7,762.50 $15.00 $8,625.00 $8.00 $4,600.00 $4.75 $2,731.25 $20.00 $11,500.00 $10.00 $5,750.00 $20.00 $11,500.00

3 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Sidewalk, All Thicknesses 231 SY $29.00 $6,699 $14.00 $3,234.00 $5.00 $1,155.00 $20.58 $4,753.98 $11.00 $2,541.00 $20.00 $4,620.00 $30.00 $6,930.00 $25.00 $5,775.00

4 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Storm Downspout Drains 15 LF $15.00 $225 $40.00 $600.00 $25.00 $375.00 $13.72 $205.80 $15.00 $225.00 $20.00 $300.00 $25.00 $375.00 $30.00 $450.00

5 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 12" Storm Sewer Line 78 LF $15.00 $1,170 $20.00 $1,560.00 $20.00 $1,560.00 $30.14 $2,350.92 $15.00 $1,170.00 $25.00 $1,950.00 $25.00 $1,950.00 $30.00 $2,340.00

6 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 18" Storm Sewer Line 30 LF $15.00 $450 $25.00 $750.00 $20.00 $600.00 $36.05 $1,081.50 $15.00 $450.00 $25.00 $750.00 $30.00 $900.00 $30.00 $900.00

7 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 30" Storm Sewer Line 7 LF $18.00 $126 $30.00 $210.00 $25.00 $175.00 $42.13 $294.91 $21.00 $147.00 $40.00 $280.00 $100.00 $700.00 $35.00 $245.00

8 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 36" Storm Sewer Line 330 LF $20.00 $6,600 $35.00 $11,550.00 $35.00 $11,550.00 $32.46 $10,711.80 $21.00 $6,930.00 $40.00 $13,200.00 $45.00 $14,850.00 $35.00 $11,550.00

9 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Storm Sewer Manhole & Junction Box 3 EA $1,145.00 $3,435 $1,800.00 $5,400.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,143.25 $3,429.75 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,500.00 $7,500.00 $2,000.00 $6,000.00

10 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Storm Sewer Grate Inlet 3 EA $770.00 $2,310 $1,800.00 $5,400.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $743.11 $2,229.33 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,500.00 $7,500.00 $2,000.00 $6,000.00

11 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 6" Water Line; including Fittings & Appurtenances 260 LF $24.00 $6,240 $20.00 $5,200.00 $25.00 $6,500.00 $30.97 $8,052.20 $30.00 $7,800.00 $20.00 $5,200.00 $10.00 $2,600.00 $20.00 $5,200.00

12 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Water Service; including Fittings & Appurtenances 95 LF $12.00 $1,140 $45.00 $4,275.00 $25.00 $2,375.00 $5.72 $543.40 $18.00 $1,710.00 $20.00 $1,900.00 $10.00 $950.00 $20.00 $1,900.00

13 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Utility Pole 3 EA $1,000.00 $3,000 $560.00 $1,680.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $514.46 $1,543.38 $600.00 $1,800.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 $550.00 $1,650.00

14 Excavation & Removal of Spoils 2250 CY $15.66 $35,235 $20.00 $45,000.00 $20.00 $45,000.00 $24.01 $54,022.50 $19.00 $42,750.00 $20.00 $45,000.00 $10.00 $22,500.00 $18.00 $40,500.00

Subtotal $107,008 $108,785.50 $93,650.00 $128,464.31 $89,071.25 $120,640.00 $122,497.00 $147,890.00

15 4" Thick Reinforced Concrete Sidewalk w/ Concrete Pavers 104 SY $150.00 $15,648 $125.00 $13,000.00 $69.00 $7,176.00 $100.61 $10,463.44 $95.00 $9,880.00 $180.00 $18,720.00 $59.00 $6,136.00 $150.00 $15,600.00

16 4" Thick Reinforced Concrete Sidewalk 279 SY $57.00 $15,913 $60.00 $16,740.00 $54.00 $15,066.00 $59.45 $16,586.55 $38.00 $10,602.00 $45.00 $12,555.00 $58.00 $16,182.00 $54.00 $15,066.00

17 6" Thick Reinforced Concrete Pavement 1,360 SY $85.00 $115,600 $58.00 $78,880.00 $68.00 $92,480.00 $54.88 $74,636.80 $43.00 $58,480.00 $48.00 $65,280.00 $62.00 $84,320.00 $55.00 $74,800.00

18 6" Thick Reinforced Concrete Driveway 11 SY $85.00 $935 $64.00 $704.00 $68.00 $748.00 $54.88 $603.68 $43.00 $473.00 $48.00 $528.00 $80.00 $880.00 $100.00 $1,100.00

19 Reinforced Concrete Curb & Gutter 510 LF $39.00 $19,890 $18.00 $9,180.00 $28.00 $14,280.00 $16.01 $8,165.10 $8.25 $4,207.50 $25.00 $12,750.00 $12.00 $6,120.00 $20.00 $10,200.00

20 Signage 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000 $392.00 $392.00 $400.00 $400.00 $400.14 $400.14 $900.00 $900.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $500.00 $500.00

21 Pavement Striping 1 LS $3,500.00 $3,500 $1,646.40 $1,646.40 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,680.58 $1,680.58 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

Subtotal $172,486 $120,542.40 $131,950.00 $112,536.29 $85,792.50 $119,833.00 $121,638.00 $119,266.00

22 Pre-Cast 6' x 6' I.D. Reinforced Concrete Box Culvert 266 LF $750.00 $199,500 $895.00 $238,070.00 $600.00 $159,600.00 $664.08 $176,645.28 $600.00 $159,600.00 $690.00 $183,540.00 $785.00 $208,810.00 $650.00 $172,900.00

23 66" RCP, Structural Backfill 51 LF $650.00 $33,150 $775.00 $39,525.00 $460.00 $23,460.00 $657.34 $33,524.34 $340.00 $17,340.00 $456.00 $23,256.00 $400.00 $20,400.00 $420.00 $21,420.00

24 24" RCP, Structural Backfill 61 LF $115.00 $7,015 $110.00 $6,710.00 $67.00 $4,087.00 $207.74 $12,672.14 $100.00 $6,100.00 $180.00 $10,980.00 $65.00 $3,965.00 $143.00 $8,723.00

25 30" RCP, Structural Backfill 6 LF $146.00 $876 $125.00 $750.00 $75.00 $450.00 $274.25 $1,645.50 $200.00 $1,200.00 $210.00 $1,260.00 $100.00 $600.00 $215.00 $1,290.00

26 10' x 5' I. D. Cast-in-Place Reinforced Concrete Junction Box 1 EA $12,200.00 $12,200 $20,560.00 $20,560.00 $12,800.00 $12,800.00 $17,720.35 $17,720.35 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00

27 8 'x 8' I.D. Precast Reinforced Concrete Junction Box 1 EA $14,000.00 $14,000 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $7,900.00 $7,900.00 $10,860.86 $10,860.86 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00

28 5' Wide Reinforced Concrete Curb Inlet w/ (2) 5' Extenstions 3 EA $7,600.00 $22,800 $6,800.00 $20,400.00 $5,500.00 $16,500.00 $5,144.62 $15,433.86 $6,000.00 $18,000.00 $6,000.00 $18,000.00 $8,500.00 $25,500.00 $8,700.00 $26,100.00

29 10' Wide Reinforced Concrete Curb Inlet w/ (1) 5' Extension 1 EA $7,600.00 $7,600 $5,600.00 $5,600.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00 $6,630.84 $6,630.84 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $11,500.00 $11,500.00

30 Sidewalk Trench Drain 15 LF $150.00 $2,250 $185.00 $2,775.00 $400.00 $6,000.00 $198.16 $2,972.40 $300.00 $4,500.00 $425.00 $6,375.00 $55.00 $825.00 $200.00 $3,000.00

31 Existing Strom Sewer Connection to Proposed Inlet 2 EA $1,000.00 $2,000 $1,850.00 $3,700.00 $550.00 $1,100.00 $285.81 $571.62 $700.00 $1,400.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00

32 TV Inspection of Storm Sewer 384 LF $3.50 $1,344 $4.00 $1,536.00 $5.00 $1,920.00 $3.56 $1,367.04 $6.75 $2,592.00 $5.00 $1,920.00 $3.00 $1,152.00 $10.00 $3,840.00

33 Trench & Excavation Protective System(s) 384 LF $35.00 $13,440 $3.50 $1,344.00 $1.00 $384.00 $9.15 $3,513.60 $3.00 $1,152.00 $5.00 $1,920.00 $5.00 $1,920.00 $95.00 $36,480.00

Subtotal $316,175 $358,970.00 $240,901.00 $283,557.83 $249,884.00 $276,751.00 $322,672.00 $316,253.00

34 6" PVC Water Line, CL200 (C900) 265 LF $54.00 $14,310 $60.00 $15,900.00 $40.00 $10,600.00 $51.85 $13,740.25 $69.00 $18,285.00 $40.00 $10,600.00 $32.00 $8,480.00 $38.00 $10,070.00

35 4" PVC Water Line, CL200 (C900) (fire supression line) 16 LF $45.00 $720 $78.00 $1,248.00 $50.00 $800.00 $30.62 $489.92 $100.00 $1,600.00 $60.00 $960.00 $100.00 $1,600.00 $151.00 $2,416.00

36 6" M.J., D.I. Gate Valve 1 EA $1,200.00 $1,200 $1,400.00 $1,400.00 $800.00 $800.00 $914.60 $914.60 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $950.00 $950.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

37 Adjustment of Water Line 2 EA $3,000.00 $6,000 $4,000.00 $8,000.00 $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $514.46 $1,028.92 $4,000.00 $8,000.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00 $1,250.00 $2,500.00 $4,000.00 $8,000.00

38 Water Meter Vault 8 EA $210.00 $1,680 $6,500.00 $52,000.00 $16,000.00 $128,000.00 $109.03 $872.24 $200.00 $1,600.00 $18,000.00 $144,000.00 $2,500.00 $20,000.00 $500.00 $4,000.00

39 Water Service 1" Short Side (Meter provided by City) 7 EA $1,300.00 $9,100 $1,050.00 $7,350.00 $1,200.00 $8,400.00 $857.44 $6,002.08 $1,000.00 $7,000.00 $800.00 $5,600.00 $600.00 $4,200.00 $2,500.00 $17,500.00

40 Water Service 1" Long Side (Meter provided by City) 1 EA $1,800.00 $1,800 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,086.09 $1,086.09 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00

Subtotal $34,810 $88,098.00 $153,400.00 $24,134.10 $39,485.00 $170,160.00 $38,830.00 $46,486.00

41 4-4" Schedule 40 PVC Telecommunications Conduit 254 LF $49.00 $12,446 $56.00 $14,224.00 $67.00 $17,018.00 $23.31 $5,920.74 $60.00 $15,240.00 $65.00 $16,510.00 $8.00 $2,032.00 $60.00 $15,240.00

42 Telecommunications Vault, 6'x8'x7'H 1 EA $25,400.00 $25,400 $29,798.72 $29,798.72 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $16,577.11 $16,577.11 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $29,600.00 $29,600.00

Subtotal $37,846 $44,022.72 $35,018.00 $22,497.85  $45,240.00 $24,510.00 $12,032.00 $44,840.00

43 1-3" Schedule 40 PVC Electrical Conduit 210 LF $24.00 $5,040 $31.36 $6,585.60 $18.00 $3,780.00 $10.14 $2,129.40 $34.00 $7,140.00 $59.00 $12,390.00 $8.00 $1,680.00 $32.00 $6,720.00

44 Electrical Pull Box (Traffic Rated) 3 EA $370.00 $1,110 $1,425.76 $4,277.28 $2,500.00 $7,500.00 $1,143.25 $3,429.75 $2,000.00 $6,000.00 $8,000.00 $24,000.00 $1,500.00 $4,500.00 $1,415.00 $4,245.00

45 Street Light & Pole Base 2 EA $6,500.00 $13,000 $7,548.80 $15,097.60 $9,000.00 $18,000.00 $12,575.73 $25,151.46 $8,000.00 $16,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $7,490.00 $14,980.00

Subtotal $19,150 $25,960.48 $29,280.00 $30,710.61 $29,140.00 $46,390.00 $16,180.00 $25,945.00

46 Planter Boxes 4 EA $1,000.00 $4,000 $2,000.00 $8,000.00 $1,680.00 $6,720.00 $2,400.82 $9,603.28 $1,500.00 $6,000.00 $1,800.00 $7,200.00 $250.00 $1,000.00 $1,900.00 $7,600.00

47 Block Sod 125 SY $10.00 $1,250 $4.25 $531.25 $15.75 $1,968.75 $6.86 $857.50 $4.75 $593.75 $10.00 $1,250.00 $10.00 $1,250.00 $20.00 $2,500.00

48 1" Poly Irrigation Water Line 130 LF $10.00 $1,300 $25.00 $3,250.00 $2.80 $364.00 $8.33 $1,082.90 $12.00 $1,560.00 $20.00 $2,600.00 $6.00 $780.00 $4.00 $520.00

49 Irrigation Water Sleeves 130 LF $12.00 $1,560 $16.50 $2,145.00 $10.00 $1,300.00 $5.72 $743.60 $6.00 $780.00 $20.00 $2,600.00 $6.00 $780.00 $8.00 $1,040.00

50 Backflow Preventer and Irrigation Control Valve 1 EA $1,750.00 $1,750 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $2,252.80 $2,252.80 $1,657.71 $1,657.71 $2,250.00 $2,250.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,300.00 $2,300.00

51 Inlet Protection 6 EA $175.00 $1,050 $125.00 $750.00 $100.00 $600.00 $148.62 $891.72 $200.00 $1,200.00 $200.00 $1,200.00 $100.00 $600.00 $300.00 $1,800.00

52 Silt Fence 287 LF $3.25 $933 $3.50 $1,004.50 $1.50 $430.50 $3.14 $901.18 $2.75 $789.25 $5.00 $1,435.00 $2.00 $574.00 $5.00 $1,435.00

Subtotal $11,843 $19,180.75 $13,636.05 $15,737.89 $13,173.00 $18,785.00 $7,484.00 $17,195.00

53 Mobilization & Overhead 1 LS $41,959.08 $41,959 $48,900.00 $48,900.00 $34,895.00 $34,895.00 $53,136.21 $53,136.21 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $68,000.00 $68,000.00

54 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, File Notice of Intent with TCEQ, Maintain Records 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $2,858.12 $2,858.12 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

55 Traffic Control 1 LS $7,500.00 $7,500 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Subtotal $52,459 $53,100.00 $62,895.00 $59,494.33 $28,000.00 $115,000.00 $18,000.00 $88,000.00

$751,777 $818,659.85 $760,730.05 $677,133.21 $579,785.75 $892,069.00 $659,333.00 $805,875.00

1 Mobilization & Overhead 1 LS $23,687.59 $23,688 $28,650.00 $28,650.00 $15,175.00 $15,175.00 $39,852.16 $39,852.16 $13,300.00 $13,300.00 $45,000.00 $45,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00

2 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, File Notice of Intent with TCEQ, Maintain Records 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000 $1,650.00 $1,650.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $2,858.12 $2,858.12 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

3 Traffic Control 1 LS $2,500.00 $2,500 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Subtotal $28,188 $32,800.00 $29,175.00 $46,210.28 $16,000.00 $55,000.00 $13,500.00 $60,000.00

4 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Pavement, All Thicknesses 430 SY $24.00 $10,320 $18.00 $7,740.00 $5.00 $2,150.00 $25.72 $11,059.60 $11.00 $4,730.00 $20.00 $8,600.00 $36.00 $15,480.00 $52.00 $22,360.00

5 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Curb & Gutter 76 LF $14.00 $1,064 $20.00 $1,520.00 $15.00 $1,140.00 $8.00 $608.00 $4.75 $361.00 $20.00 $1,520.00 $10.00 $760.00 $20.00 $1,520.00

6 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Sidewalk, All Thicknesses 30 SY $29.00 $870 $20.00 $600.00 $5.00 $150.00 $20.58 $617.40 $11.00 $330.00 $20.00 $600.00 $30.00 $900.00 $50.00 $1,500.00

7 Excavation & Removal of Spoils 1870 CY $15.66 $29,284 $25.00 $46,750.00 $20.00 $37,400.00 $24.01 $44,898.70 $19.00 $35,530.00 $20.00 $37,400.00 $10.00 $18,700.00 $18.00 $33,660.00

Subtotal $41,538 $56,610.00 $40,840.00 $57,183.70 $40,951.00 $48,120.00 $35,840.00 $59,040.00

8 4" Thick Reinforced Concrete Sidewalk 18 SY $57.00 $1,026 $125.00 $2,250.00 $54.00 $972.00 $59.45 $1,070.10 $50.00 $900.00 $45.00 $810.00 $60.00 $1,080.00 $54.00 $972.00

9 6" Thick Reinforced Concrete Pavement 430 SY $85.00 $36,550 $64.00 $27,520.00 $60.00 $25,800.00 $54.88 $23,598.40 $65.00 $27,950.00 $48.00 $20,640.00 $62.00 $26,660.00 $75.00 $32,250.00

10 Reinforced Concrete Curb & Gutter 16 LF $39.00 $624 $25.00 $400.00 $17.00 $272.00 $16.01 $256.16 $8.25 $132.00 $25.00 $400.00 $25.00 $400.00 $50.00 $800.00

Subtotal $38,200 $30,170.00 $27,044.00 $24,924.66 $28,982.00 $21,850.00 $28,140.00 $34,022.00

11 Pre-Cast 6' x 6' Reinforced Concrete Box Culvert 266 LF $750.00 $199,500 $895.00 $238,070.00 $600.00 $159,600.00 $664.08 $176,645.28 $600.00 $159,600.00 $690.00 $183,540.00 $785.00 $208,810.00 $650.00 $172,900.00

12 66" RCP, Structural Backfill 51 LF $650.00 $33,150 $775.00 $39,525.00 $460.00 $23,460.00 $657.34 $33,524.34 $340.00 $17,340.00 $456.00 $23,256.00 $400.00 $20,400.00 $420.00 $21,420.00

13 24" RCP, Structural Backfill 61 LF $115.00 $7,015 $110.00 $6,710.00 $67.00 $4,087.00 $207.74 $12,672.14 $100.00 $6,100.00 $180.00 $10,980.00 $65.00 $3,965.00 $143.00 $8,723.00

14 30" RCP, Structural Backfill 6 LF $146.00 $876 $150.00 $900.00 $75.00 $450.00 $274.25 $1,645.50 $200.00 $1,200.00 $210.00 $1,260.00 $100.00 $600.00 $215.00 $1,290.00

15 10'x5' I. D. Cast-in-Place Reinforced Concrete Junction Box 1 EA $12,200.00 $12,200 $20,560.00 $20,560.00 $12,800.00 $12,800.00 $17,720.35 $17,720.35 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00

16 8'x8' I.D. Precast Reinforced Concrete Junction Box 1 EA $14,000.00 $14,000 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $7,900.00 $7,900.00 $10,860.86 $10,860.86 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $12,750.00 $12,750.00

17 5' Wide Reinforced Concrete Curb Inlet w/ (2) 5' Extenstions 3 EA $7,600.00 $22,800 $6,800.00 $20,400.00 $5,500.00 $16,500.00 $5,144.62 $15,433.86 $6,000.00 $18,000.00 $6,000.00 $18,000.00 $8,500.00 $25,500.00 $8,700.00 $26,100.00

18 10' Wide Reinforced Concrete Curb Inlet w/ (1) 5' Extension 1 EA $7,600.00 $7,600 $5,600.00 $5,600.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00 $6,630.84 $6,630.84 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00

Alternate 1-A Pavement & Storm Sewer

Demolition

Sidewalk and Street Improvements

General Items

Storm Sewer Infrastructure Improvements

Telecom Infrastructure Improvements

Electrical Infrastructure Improvements

Landscaping Improvements & SWPP Elements

General Items

 TOTAL ESTIMATED ALTERNATE 1 COST 

Sidewalk and Street Improvements: Full Reconstruction

Strorm Sewer Infrastructure Improvements

Water Infrastructure Improvements



Unit Price Extension

Engineer's Estimate

Item 

No.
Description Estimated Quantity Unit Unit Price Extension Unit PriceUnit Price Extension ExtensionUnit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

Palasota Solid Bridge TexconBPI BSI Dudley Larry Young Paving

Unit PriceUnit Price ExtensionExtension

19 Existing Storm Sewer Connection to Proposed Inlet 2 EA $1,000.00 $2,000 $1,850.00 $3,700.00 $550.00 $1,100.00 $198.16 $396.32 $700.00 $1,400.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,550.00 $3,100.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00

20 TV Inspection of Storm Sewer 384 LF $3.50 $1,344 $4.00 $1,536.00 $5.00 $1,920.00 $3.56 $1,367.04 $6.75 $2,592.00 $5.00 $1,920.00 $3.00 $1,152.00 $10.00 $3,840.00

21 Trench & Excavation Protective System(s) 384 LF $35.00 $13,440 $3.50 $1,344.00 $1.00 $384.00 $9.15 $3,513.60 $3.00 $1,152.00 $5.00 $1,920.00 $5.00 $1,920.00 $95.00 $36,480.00

Subtotal $313,925 $356,345.00 $234,901.00 $280,410.13 $245,384.00 $270,376.00 $317,947.00 $313,003.00

22 Block Sod 8 SY $10.00 $80 $50.00 $400.00 $7.50 $60.00 $6.86 $54.88 $4.75 $38.00 $10.00 $80.00 $20.00 $160.00 $100.00 $800.00

23 Inlet Protection 6 EA $175.00 $1,050 $125.00 $750.00 $100.00 $600.00 $148.62 $891.72 $200.00 $1,200.00 $200.00 $1,200.00 $100.00 $600.00 $500.00 $3,000.00

Subtotal $1,130 $1,150.00 $660.00 $946.60 $1,238.00 $1,280.00 $760.00 $3,800.00

Alternate 1-A Total $422,981 $477,075.00 $332,620.00 $409,675.37 $332,555.00 $396,626.00 $396,187.00 $469,865.00

24 Mobilization & Overhead 1 LS $3,008.58 $3,009 $7,250.00 $7,250.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $5,313.62 $5,313.62 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00

25 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, File Notice of Intent with TCEQ, Maintain Records 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000 $1,650.00 $1,650.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $2,858.12 $2,858.12 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

26 Traffic Control 1 LS $2,500.00 $2,500 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Subtotal $7,509 $11,400.00 $15,100.00 $11,671.74 $6,000.00 $38,000.00 $10,500.00 $60,000.00

27 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Pavement, All Thicknesses 118 SY $24.00 $2,832 $18.00 $2,124.00 $5.00 $590.00 $25.72 $3,034.96 $11.00 $1,298.00 $20.00 $2,360.00 $36.00 $4,248.00 $52.00 $6,136.00

28 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Curb & Gutter 21 LF $14.00 $294 $20.00 $420.00 $17.00 $357.00 $8.00 $168.00 $4.75 $99.75 $20.00 $420.00 $25.00 $525.00 $15.00 $315.00

29 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Sidewalk, All Thicknesses 12 SY $29.00 $348 $20.00 $240.00 $5.00 $60.00 $20.58 $246.96 $11.00 $132.00 $20.00 $240.00 $30.00 $360.00 $25.00 $300.00

30 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 6" Water Line; including Fittings & Appurtenances 260 LF $24.00 $6,240 $25.00 $6,500.00 $20.00 $5,200.00 $30.97 $8,052.20 $30.00 $7,800.00 $20.00 $5,200.00 $12.00 $3,120.00 $20.00 $5,200.00

31 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Water Service; including Fittings & Appurtenances 95 LF $12.00 $1,140 $20.00 $1,900.00 $20.00 $1,900.00 $5.72 $543.40 $18.00 $1,710.00 $20.00 $1,900.00 $25.00 $2,375.00 $20.00 $1,900.00

Subtotal $3,474 $11,184.00 $8,107.00 $12,045.52 $11,039.75 $10,120.00 $10,628.00 $13,851.00

32 4" Thick Reinforced Concrete Sidewalk 12 SY $57.00 $684 $125.00 $1,500.00 $54.00 $648.00 $59.45 $713.40 $95.00 $1,140.00 $45.00 $540.00 $58.00 $696.00 $54.00 $648.00

33 6" Thick Reinforced Concrete Pavement 120 SY $85.00 $10,200 $64.00 $7,680.00 $55.00 $6,600.00 $54.88 $6,585.60 $65.00 $7,800.00 $48.00 $5,760.00 $62.00 $7,440.00 $75.00 $9,000.00

34 Reinforced Concrete Curb & Gutter 25 LF $39.00 $975 $25.00 $625.00 $17.00 $425.00 $16.01 $400.25 $8.75 $218.75 $25.00 $625.00 $25.00 $625.00 $50.00 $1,250.00

Subtotal $11,859 $9,805.00 $7,673.00 $7,699.25 $9,158.75 $6,925.00 $8,761.00 $10,898.00

35 6" PVC Water Line, CL200 (C900) 265 LF $54.00 $14,310 $60.00 $15,900.00 $40.00 $10,600.00 $51.85 $13,740.25 $69.00 $18,285.00 $40.00 $10,600.00 $32.00 $8,480.00 $50.00 $13,250.00

36 4" PVC Water Line, CL200 (C900) (fire supression line) 16 LF $45.00 $720 $80.00 $1,280.00 $50.00 $800.00 $30.62 $489.92 $100.00 $1,600.00 $100.00 $1,600.00 $30.00 $480.00 $151.00 $2,416.00

37 6" M.J., D.I. Gate Valve 1 EA $1,200.00 $1,200 $1,400.00 $1,400.00 $800.00 $800.00 $914.60 $914.60 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

38 Adjustment of Water Line 2 EA $3,000.00 $6,000 $4,000.00 $8,000.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $514.46 $1,028.92 $4,000.00 $8,000.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $8,000.00

39 Water Meter Vault 8 EA $210.00 $1,680 $6,500.00 $52,000.00 $16,000.00 $128,000.00 $109.03 $872.24 $200.00 $1,600.00 $18,000.00 $144,000.00 $2,500.00 $20,000.00 $500.00 $4,000.00

40 Water Service 1" Short Side (Meter provided by City) 7 EA $1,300.00 $9,100 $1,050.00 $7,350.00 $1,200.00 $8,400.00 $857.44 $6,002.08 $1,000.00 $7,000.00 $800.00 $5,600.00 $650.00 $4,550.00 $2,500.00 $17,500.00

41 Water Service 1" Long Side (Meter Provided By City 1 EA $1,800.00 $1,800 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $1,880.00 $1,880.00 $1,086.09 $1,086.09 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00

Subtotal $34,810 $88,130.00 $152,880.00 $24,134.10 $39,485.00 $170,800.00 $37,610.00 $49,666.00

Alternate 1-B Total $57,652 $120,519.00 $183,760.00 $55,550.61 $65,683.50 $225,845.00 $67,499.00 $134,415.00

42 Mobilization & Overhead 1 LS $4,168.02 $4,168 $5,475.00 $5,475.00 $3,650.00 $3,650.00 $5,313.62 $5,313.62 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00

43 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, File Notice of Intent with TCEQ, Maintain Records 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000 $1,650.00 $1,650.00 $1,450.00 $1,450.00 $2,858.12 $2,858.12 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

44 Traffic Control 1 LS $2,500.00 $2,500 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,450.00 $1,450.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Subtotal $8,668 $9,625.00 $6,550.00 $11,671.74 $6,500.00 $25,000.00 $10,500.00 $50,000.00

45 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Pavement, All Thicknesses 60 SY $24.00 $1,440 $18.00 $1,080.00 $5.00 $300.00 $25.72 $1,543.20 $11.00 $660.00 $20.00 $1,200.00 $36.00 $2,160.00 $52.00 $3,120.00

46 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Utility Pole 3 EA $1,000.00 $3,000 $560.00 $1,680.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $514.46 $1,543.38 $600.00 $1,800.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 $550.00 $1,650.00

47 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Curb & Gutter 5 LF $14.00 $70 $25.00 $125.00 $15.00 $75.00 $8.00 $40.00 $8.75 $43.75 $20.00 $100.00 $500.00 $2,500.00 $20.00 $100.00

48 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Sidewalk, All Thicknesses 31 SY $29.00 $899 $20.00 $620.00 $5.00 $155.00 $20.58 $637.98 $11.00 $341.00 $20.00 $620.00 $30.00 $930.00 $25.00 $775.00

Subtotal $5,409 $3,505.00 $3,530.00 $3,764.56 $2,844.75 $3,420.00 $7,090.00 $5,645.00

49 4" Thick Reinforced Concrete Sidewalk 31 SY $57.00 $1,767 $125.00 $3,875.00 $54.00 $1,674.00 $59.45 $1,842.95 $90.00 $2,790.00 $45.00 $1,395.00 $55.00 $1,705.00 $54.00 $1,674.00

50 6" Thick Reinforced Concrete Pavement 60 SY $85.00 $5,100 $64.00 $3,840.00 $55.00 $3,300.00 $54.88 $3,292.80 $85.00 $5,100.00 $48.00 $2,880.00 $62.00 $3,720.00 $75.00 $4,500.00

51 Reinforced Concrete Curb & Gutter 5 LF $39.00 $195 $25.00 $125.00 $17.00 $85.00 $16.01 $80.05 $8.00 $40.00 $25.00 $125.00 $50.00 $250.00 $50.00 $250.00

Subtotal $7,062 $7,840.00 $5,059.00 $5,215.80 $7,930.00 $4,400.00 $5,675.00 $6,424.00

52 4-4" Schedule 40 PVC Telecommunications Conduit 254 LF $49.00 $12,446 $56.00 $14,224.00 $67.00 $17,018.00 $23.31 $5,920.74 $60.00 $15,240.00 $65.00 $16,510.00 $8.00 $2,032.00 $60.00 $15,240.00

53 Telecommunications Vault, 6'x8'x7'H 1 EA $25,400.00 $25,400 $29,798.72 $29,798.72 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $16,577.11 $16,577.11 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $29,570.00 $29,570.00

54 1-3" Schedule 40 PVC Electrical Conduit 210 LF $24.00 $5,040 $31.36 $6,585.60 $18.00 $3,780.00 $10.14 $2,129.40 $34.00 $7,140.00 $59.00 $12,390.00 $8.00 $1,680.00 $32.00 $6,720.00

55 Electrical Pull Box (Traffic Rated) 3 EA $370.00 $1,110 $1,425.76 $4,277.28 $2,500.00 $7,500.00 $1,143.25 $3,429.75 $2,000.00 $6,000.00 $8,000.00 $24,000.00 $2,500.00 $7,500.00 $1,415.00 $4,245.00

56 Street Light & Pole Base 2 EA $6,500.00 $13,000 $7,548.80 $15,097.60 $9,000.00 $18,000.00 $12,575.73 $25,151.46 $8,000.00 $16,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $6,200.00 $12,400.00 $7,500.00 $15,000.00

Subtotal $56,996 $69,983.20 $64,298.00 $53,208.46 $74,380.00 $70,900.00 $32,112.00 $70,775.00

Alternate 1-C Total $78,135 $90,953.20 $79,437.00 $73,860.56 $91,654.75 $103,720.00 $55,377.00 $132,844.00

57 Mobilization & Overhead 1 LS $2,526.81 $2,527 $3,900.00 $3,900.00 $2,095.00 $2,095.00 $5,313.62 $5,313.62 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00

58 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, File Notice of Intent with TCEQ, Maintain Records 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000 $1,650.00 $1,650.00 $850.00 $850.00 $2,858.12 $2,858.12 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

59 Traffic Control 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $850.00 $850.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Subtotal $5,527 $8,050.00 $3,795.00 $11,671.74 $7,500.00 $11,000.00 $7,500.00 $55,000.00

60 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Sidewalk, All Thicknesses 231 SY $29.00 $6,699 $20.00 $4,620.00 $5.00 $1,155.00 $25.72 $5,941.32 $11.00 $2,541.00 $20.00 $4,620.00 $32.00 $7,392.00 $25.00 $5,775.00

Subtotal $6,699 $4,620.00 $1,155.00 $5,941.32 $2,541.00 $4,620.00 $7,392.00 $5,775.00

61 4" Thick Reinforced Concrete Sidewalk w/ Concrete Pavers 104 SY $57.00 $5,946 $125.00 $13,000.00 $68.00 $7,072.00 $100.61 $10,463.44 $95.00 $9,880.00 $180.00 $18,720.00 $100.00 $10,400.00 $200.00 $20,800.00

62 4" Thick Reinforced Concrete Sidewalk 279 SY $57.00 $15,913 $64.00 $17,856.00 $54.00 $15,066.00 $59.45 $16,586.55 $45.00 $12,555.00 $45.00 $12,555.00 $60.00 $16,740.00 $54.00 $15,066.00

63 6" Thick Reinforced Concrete Driveway 20 SY $85.00 $1,705 $25.00 $500.00 $60.00 $1,200.00 $54.88 $1,097.60 $95.00 $1,900.00 $48.00 $960.00 $62.00 $1,240.00 $75.00 $1,500.00

64 Sidewalk Trench Drain 15 LF $150.00 $2,250 $225.00 $3,375.00 $400.00 $6,000.00 $198.16 $2,972.40 $8.75 $131.25 $425.00 $6,375.00 $45.00 $675.00 $50.00 $750.00

Subtotal $25,815 $34,731.00 $29,338.00 $31,119.99 $24,466.25 $38,610.00 $29,055.00 $38,116.00

65 Planter Boxes 4 EA $1,000.00 $4,000 $2,000.00 $8,000.00 $1,680.00 $6,720.00 $2,400.82 $9,603.28 $1,500.00 $6,000.00 $1,800.00 $7,200.00 $250.00 $1,000.00 $1,800.00 $7,200.00

66 Block Sod 99 SY $10.00 $990 $10.00 $990.00 $7.50 $742.50 $6.86 $679.14 $4.75 $470.25 $10.00 $990.00 $10.00 $990.00 $25.00 $2,475.00

67 1" Poly Irrigation Water Line 130 LF $10.00 $1,300 $25.00 $3,250.00 $2.80 $364.00 $8.33 $1,082.90 $12.00 $1,560.00 $20.00 $2,600.00 $6.00 $780.00 $4.00 $520.00

68 PVC Irrigation Water Sleeves 130 LF $12.00 $1,560 $16.50 $2,145.00 $10.00 $1,300.00 $5.72 $743.60 $7.00 $910.00 $20.00 $2,600.00 $8.00 $1,040.00 $8.00 $1,040.00

69 Backflow Preventer and Irrigation Control Valve 1 EA $1,750.00 $1,750 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $2,253.00 $2,253.00 $1,657.71 $1,657.71 $2,250.00 $2,250.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,250.00 $2,250.00

Subtotal $9,600 $17,885.00 $11,379.50 $13,766.63 $11,190.25 $15,890.00 $6,310.00 $13,485.00

Alternate 1-D Total $47,640 $65,286.00 $45,667.50 $62,499.68 $45,697.50 $70,120.00 $50,257.00 $112,376.00

1 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Pavement, All Thicknesses 415 SY $24.00 $9,960 $12.00 $4,980.00 $5.00 $2,075.00 $25.72 $10,673.80 $11.00 $4,565.00 $20.00 $8,300.00 $36.00 $14,940.00 $40.00 $16,600.00

2 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Curb & Gutter 41 LF $14.00 $574 $18.00 $738.00 $15.00 $615.00 $8.00 $328.00 $4.75 $194.75 $20.00 $820.00 $36.00 $1,476.00 $20.00 $820.00

3 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 18" Storm Sewer Line 36 LF $29.00 $1,044 $25.00 $900.00 $20.00 $720.00 $36.05 $1,297.80 $15.00 $540.00 $25.00 $900.00 $10.00 $360.00 $30.00 $1,080.00

4 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 36" Storm Sewer Line 15 LF $20.00 $300 $35.00 $525.00 $35.00 $525.00 $45.00 $675.00 $21.00 $315.00 $40.00 $600.00 $40.00 $600.00 $35.00 $525.00

5 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Storm Sewer Manhole & Junction Box 1 EA $1,145.00 $1,145 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,143.25 $1,143.25 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

6 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Storm Sewer Grate Inlet 2 EA $770.00 $1,540 $1,800.00 $3,600.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $743.11 $1,486.22 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $250.00 $500.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00

7 Excavation & Removal of Spoils 1590 CY $15.66 $24,899 $20.00 $31,800.00 $25.00 $39,750.00 $24.01 $38,175.90 $19.00 $30,210.00 $20.00 $31,800.00 $10.00 $15,900.00 $18.00 $28,620.00

Subtotal $39,462 $44,343.00 $46,685.00 $53,779.97 $38,824.75 $45,420.00 $36,276.00 $55,145.00

Demolition

General Items

Sidewalk and Street Improvements

Telecom & Electrical Infrastructure Improvements

Demolition

Alternate 1-D Sidewalk

General Items

Alternate 2

Sidewalk and Street Improvements

Landscaping Improvements

Sidewalk and Street Improvements

General Items

Alternate 1-B Pavement & Water

Landscaping Improvements

Demolition

Water Infrastructure Improvements

Alternate 1-C Pavement, Electrical, & Telecom

Demolition



Unit Price Extension

Engineer's Estimate

Item 

No.
Description Estimated Quantity Unit Unit Price Extension Unit PriceUnit Price Extension ExtensionUnit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

Palasota Solid Bridge TexconBPI BSI Dudley Larry Young Paving

Unit PriceUnit Price ExtensionExtension

8 6" Thick Reinforced Concrete Pavement 415 SY $85.00 $35,275 $62.00 $25,730.00 $60.00 $24,900.00 $54.88 $22,775.20 $65.00 $26,975.00 $48.00 $19,920.00 $62.00 $25,730.00 $75.00 $31,125.00

9 Reinforced Concrete Curb & Gutter 41 LF $39.00 $1,599 $25.00 $1,025.00 $28.00 $1,148.00 $16.01 $656.41 $8.75 $358.75 $25.00 $1,025.00 $50.00 $2,050.00 $15.00 $615.00

Subtotal $36,874 $26,755.00 $26,048.00 $23,431.61 $27,333.75 $20,945.00 $27,780.00 $31,740.00

10 66" RCP, Structural Backfill 382 LF $650.00 $248,300 $895.00 $341,890.00 $460.00 $175,720.00 $657.34 $251,103.88 $340.00 $129,880.00 $456.00 $174,192.00 $400.00 $152,800.00 $420.00 $160,440.00

11 24" RCP, Structural Backfill 16 LF $115.00 $1,840 $110.00 $1,760.00 $67.00 $1,072.00 $207.74 $3,323.84 $200.00 $3,200.00 $180.00 $2,880.00 $85.00 $1,360.00 $200.00 $3,200.00

12 36" RCP, Structural Backfill 6 LF $146.00 $876 $165.00 $990.00 $135.00 $810.00 $298.25 $1,789.50 $200.00 $1,200.00 $250.00 $1,500.00 $150.00 $900.00 $400.00 $2,400.00

13 8'x8' I. D. Precast Reinforced Concrete Junction Box 1 EA $14,000.00 $14,000 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $7,900.00 $7,900.00 $10,860.86 $10,860.86 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00

14 5' Wide Reinforced Concrete Curb Inlet w/ (2) 5' Extenstions 1 EA $7,600.00 $7,600 $6,800.00 $6,800.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,144.62 $5,144.62 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00

15 15' Wide Type II Reinforced Concrete Curb Inlet 1 EA $14,100.00 $14,100 $7,200.00 $7,200.00 $13,560.00 $13,560.00 $9,256.15 $9,256.15 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $13,500.00 $13,500.00

16 Existing Storm Sewer Connection to Proposed Inlet 1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $550.00 $550.00 $625.00 $625.00 $700.00 $700.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,850.00 $1,850.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

17 TV Inspection of Storm Sewer 404 LF $3.50 $1,414 $4.00 $1,616.00 $5.00 $2,020.00 $3.56 $1,438.24 $6.75 $2,727.00 $5.00 $2,020.00 $3.00 $1,212.00 $10.00 $4,040.00

18 Trench & Excavation Protective System(s) 404 LF $35.00 $14,140 $3.50 $1,414.00 $1.00 $404.00 $9.15 $3,696.60 $3.00 $1,212.00 $5.00 $2,020.00 $5.00 $2,020.00 $95.00 $38,380.00

Subtotal $303,270 $381,870.00 $207,536.00 $287,238.69 $172,919.00 $208,112.00 $199,142.00 $244,960.00

19 Block Sod 10 SY $10.00 $100 $25.00 $250.00 $10.00 $100.00 $6.86 $68.60 $4.75 $47.50 $10.00 $100.00 $10.00 $100.00 $100.00 $1,000.00

20 Inlet Protection 2 EA $175.00 $350 $125.00 $250.00 $100.00 $200.00 $148.62 $297.24 $200.00 $400.00 $200.00 $400.00 $100.00 $200.00 $300.00 $600.00

Subtotal $450 $500.00 $300.00 $365.84 $447.50 $500.00 $300.00 $1,600.00

21 Mobilization & Overhead 1 LS $22,803.38 $22,803 $29,300.00 $29,300.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00

22 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, File Notice of Intent with TCEQ, Maintain Records 1 LS $2,500.00 $2,500 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $5,600.00 $5,600.00 $450.00 $450.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

23 Traffic Control 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000 $3,200.00 $3,200.00 $5,600.00 $5,600.00 $1,054.65 $1,054.65 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Subtotal $30,303 $34,500.00 $25,200.00 $21,504.65 $19,500.00 $37,000.00 $23,000.00 $80,000.00

$410,360 $487,968.00 $305,769.00 $386,320.76 $259,025.00 $311,977.00 $286,498.00 $413,445.00

1 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Pavement, All Thicknesses 235 SY $24.00 $5,640 $14.00 $3,290.00 $5.00 $1,175.00 $25.72 $6,044.20 $11.00 $2,585.00 $20.00 $4,700.00 $36.00 $8,460.00 $40.00 $9,400.00

2 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Curb & Gutter 92 LF $14.00 $1,288 $18.00 $1,656.00 $15.00 $1,380.00 $8.00 $736.00 $4.75 $437.00 $20.00 $1,840.00 $25.00 $2,300.00 $20.00 $1,840.00

3 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 36" Storm Sewer Line 160 LF $20.00 $3,200 $35.00 $5,600.00 $35.00 $5,600.00 $32.46 $5,193.60 $21.00 $3,360.00 $40.00 $6,400.00 $40.00 $6,400.00 $35.00 $5,600.00

4 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Storm Sewer Manhole & Junction Box 1 EA $1,145.00 $1,145 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,143.25 $1,143.25 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

5 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Junction Box and Curb Inlet 1 EA $1,145.00 $1,145 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $743.11 $743.11 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

6 Excavation & Removal of Spoils 575 CY $15.66 $9,005 $30.00 $17,250.00 $25.00 $14,375.00 $24.01 $13,805.75 $19.00 $10,925.00 $20.00 $11,500.00 $10.00 $5,750.00 $18.00 $10,350.00

Subtotal $21,423 $31,396.00 $24,530.00 $27,665.91 $19,707.00 $26,440.00 $27,910.00 $32,190.00

7 6" Thick Reinforced Concrete Pavement 235 SY $85.00 $19,975 $68.00 $15,980.00 $55.00 $12,925.00 $54.88 $12,896.80 $65.00 $15,275.00 $48.00 $11,280.00 $62.00 $14,570.00 $75.00 $17,625.00

8 Reinforced Concrete Curb & Gutter 136 LF $39.00 $5,304 $25.00 $3,400.00 $17.00 $2,312.00 $16.01 $2,177.36 $8.75 $1,190.00 $25.00 $3,400.00 $15.00 $2,040.00 $15.00 $2,040.00

Subtotal $25,279 $19,380.00 $15,237.00 $15,074.16 $16,465.00 $14,680.00 $16,610.00 $19,665.00

9 66" RCP, Structural Backfill 146 LF $650.00 $94,900 $785.00 $114,610.00 $460.00 $67,160.00 $657.34 $95,971.64 $340.00 $49,640.00 $456.00 $66,576.00 $400.00 $58,400.00 $420.00 $61,320.00

10 10' x 8' I.D. Reinforced Concrete Curb Inlet 1 EA $12,000.00 $12,000 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00 $17,720.35 $17,720.35 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $13,500.00 $13,500.00

11 15' Wide Type II Reinforced Concrete Curb Inlet 1 EA $14,100.00 $14,100 $7,200.00 $7,200.00 $13,560.00 $13,560.00 $9,256.15 $9,256.15 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00

12 Existing Strom Sewer Connection to Proposed Inlet 1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $550.00 $550.00 $625.00 $625.00 $700.00 $700.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

13 TV Inspection of Storm Sewer 146 LF $3.50 $511 $4.00 $584.00 $5.00 $730.00 $3.56 $519.76 $6.75 $985.50 $5.00 $730.00 $3.00 $438.00 $10.00 $1,460.00

14 Trench & Excavation Protective System(s) 146 LF $35.00 $5,110 $3.50 $511.00 $1.00 $146.00 $9.15 $1,335.90 $3.00 $438.00 $5.00 $730.00 $5.00 $730.00 $95.00 $13,870.00

Subtotal $127,621 $133,605.00 $88,846.00 $125,428.80 $74,763.50 $87,536.00          $99,568.00          $105,650.00

15 Adjustment of Water Line 1 EA $3,000.00 $3,000 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $514.46 $514.46 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00

Subtotal $3,000 $4,000.00 $1,200.00 $514.46 $3,500.00 $3,000.00 $2,500.00 $7,500.00

16 Block Sod 177 SY $10.00 $1,770 $6.50 $1,150.50 $7.50 $1,327.50 $6.86 $1,214.22 $4.75 $840.75 $10.00 $1,770.00 $10.00 $1,770.00 $15.00 $2,655.00

17 Topsoil Replacement and Finish Grading 89 CY $33.33 $2,966 $50.00 $4,450.00 $100.00 $8,900.00 $25.00 $2,225.00 $35.00 $3,115.00 $100.00 $8,900.00 $30.00 $2,670.00 $25.00 $2,225.00

18 Haybale Check Dam 1 EA $400.00 $400 $200.00 $200.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $120.00 $120.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $150.00 $150.00 $300.00 $300.00

Subtotal $5,136 $5,800.50 $11,227.50 $3,559.22 $4,455.75 $11,170.00 $4,590.00 $5,180.00

19 Mobilization & Overhead 1 LS $10,947.53 $10,948 $12,750.00 $12,750.00 $7,050.00 $7,050.00 $8,750.00 $8,750.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00

20 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, File Notice of Intent with TCEQ, Maintain Records 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,800.00 $2,800.00 $450.00 $450.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

21 Traffic Control 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000 $3,200.00 $3,200.00 $2,800.00 $2,800.00 $1,054.65 $1,054.65 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Subtotal $15,948 $17,950.00 $12,650.00 $10,254.65 $8,500.00 $22,000.00 $13,500.00 $60,000.00

$198,406 $212,131.50 $153,690.50 $182,497.20 $127,391.25 $164,826.00 $164,678.00 $230,185.00

1 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Pavement, All Thicknesses 45 SY $24.00 $1,080 $24.00 $1,080.00 $5.00 $225.00 $25.72 $1,157.40 $11.00 $495.00 $20.00 $900.00 $36.00 $1,620.00 $40.00 $1,800.00

2 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing HMAC, All Thicknesses 126 SY $8.00 $1,008 $10.00 $1,260.00 $5.00 $630.00 $18.00 $2,268.00 $11.00 $1,386.00 $20.00 $2,520.00 $10.00 $1,260.00 $10.00 $1,260.00

3 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Curb & Gutter 6 LF $14.00 $84 $20.00 $120.00 $15.00 $90.00 $8.00 $48.00 $8.75 $52.50 $20.00 $120.00 $20.00 $120.00 $50.00 $300.00

4 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 30" Storm Sewer Line 19 LF $18.00 $342 $30.00 $570.00 $25.00 $475.00 $42.13 $800.47 $21.00 $399.00 $40.00 $760.00 $35.00 $665.00 $35.00 $665.00

5 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 36" Storm Sewer Line 206 LF $20.00 $4,120 $35.00 $7,210.00 $35.00 $7,210.00 $32.46 $6,686.76 $21.00 $4,326.00 $40.00 $8,240.00 $40.00 $8,240.00 $35.00 $7,210.00

6 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Storm Sewer Inlet 2 EA $770.00 $1,540 $1,800.00 $3,600.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $743.11 $1,486.22 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00

7 Remove Existing Fencing (Return to Owner) 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $265.00 $265.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

8 Excavation & Removal of Spoils 900 CY $15.66 $14,094 $20.00 $18,000.00 $25.00 $22,500.00 $24.01 $21,609.00 $19.00 $17,100.00 $20.00 $18,000.00 $10.00 $9,000.00 $18.00 $16,200.00

Subtotal $23,268 $34,340.00 $58,130.00 $34,320.85 $27,358.50 $37,540.00 $27,905.00 $35,435.00

9 2" Thick Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete, Type D 185 SY $15.00 $2,775 $25.00 $4,625.00 $55.00 $10,175.00 $25.00 $4,625.00 $18.00 $3,330.00 $25.00 $4,625.00 $14.00 $2,590.00 $30.00 $5,550.00

10 6" Compacted Limestone Base 185 SY $18.00 $3,330 $25.00 $4,625.00 $20.00 $3,700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18.00 $3,330.00 $25.00 $4,625.00 $14.00 $2,590.00 $30.00 $5,550.00

11 6" Lime Stabilized Subgrade 210 SY $13.50 $2,835 $18.00 $3,780.00 $10.00 $2,100.00 $9.00 $1,890.00 $15.00 $3,150.00 $25.00 $5,250.00 $12.00 $2,520.00 $55.00 $11,550.00

12 6" Thick Reinforced Concrete Pavement 45 SY $85.00 $3,825 $68.00 $3,060.00 $60.00 $2,700.00 $54.88 $2,469.60 $65.00 $2,925.00 $48.00 $2,160.00 $62.00 $2,790.00 $75.00 $3,375.00

13 Reinforced Concrete Curb & Gutter 46 LF $39.00 $1,794 $25.00 $1,150.00 $28.00 $1,288.00 $16.01 $736.46 $8.75 $402.50 $25.00 $1,150.00 $14.00 $644.00 $20.00 $920.00

Subtotal $14,559 $17,240.00 $19,963.00 $9,721.06 $13,137.50 $17,810.00 $11,134.00 $26,945.00

14 60" RCP, Structural Backfill 44 LF $555.00 $24,420 $705.00 $31,020.00 $300.00 $13,200.00 $630.51 $27,742.44 $330.00 $14,520.00 $400.00 $17,600.00 $400.00 $17,600.00 $420.00 $18,480.00

15 60" RCP, Non-Structural Backfill 274 LF $525.00 $143,850 $680.00 $186,320.00 $300.00 $82,200.00 $450.51 $123,439.74 $300.00 $82,200.00 $360.00 $98,640.00 $385.00 $105,490.00 $400.00 $109,600.00

16 66" RCP, Structural Backfill 11 LF $650.00 $7,150 $850.00 $9,350.00 $460.00 $5,060.00 $657.34 $7,230.74 $350.00 $3,850.00 $456.00 $5,016.00 $420.00 $4,620.00 $600.00 $6,600.00

17 8'x8' I.D. Precast Reinforced Concrete Junction Box 1 EA $14,000.00 $14,000 $16,000.00 $16,000.00 $7,900.00 $7,900.00 $10,860.86 $10,860.86 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

18 10'x5' Cast-in-Place Reinforced Concrete Headwall for 60" Storm Pipe 1 EA $17,500.00 $17,500 $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $17,720.35 $17,720.35 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

19 10' Wide Reinforced Concrete Curb Inlet 1 EA $6,500.00 $6,500 $6,200.00 $6,200.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00 $6,630.84 $6,630.84 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00

20 20'x5' Concrete Lined Channel w/ Protective Pipe 20 LF $350.00 $7,000 $500.00 $10,000.00 $1,000.00 $20,000.00 $970.97 $19,419.40 $600.00 $12,000.00 $1,000.00 $20,000.00 $100.00 $2,000.00 $1,000.00 $20,000.00

21 Existing Strom Sewer Connection to Proposed Headwall 3 EA $1,000.00 $3,000 $1,200.00 $3,600.00 $550.00 $1,650.00 $285.81 $857.43 $1,200.00 $3,600.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,850.00 $11,550.00 $2,500.00 $7,500.00

22 TV Inspection of Storm Sewer 329 LF $3.50 $1,152 $4.00 $1,316.00 $5.00 $1,645.00 $3.56 $1,171.24 $6.75 $2,220.75 $5.00 $1,645.00 $3.00 $987.00 $10.00 $3,290.00

23 Trench & Excavation Protective System(s) 329 LF $35.00 $11,515 $3.50 $1,151.50 $1.00 $329.00 $9.15 $3,010.35 $3.00 $987.00 $5.00 $1,645.00 $5.00 $1,645.00 $95.00 $31,255.00

Subtotal $236,087 $278,957.50 $153,684.00 $218,083.39 $153,377.75 $167,546.00 $179,892.00 $222,225.00

24 Relocate Existing Power Service Pole 1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000 $3,304.00 $3,304.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $4,678.00 $4,678.00 $2,950.00 $2,950.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00

25 Adjustment of Gas Line 1 EA $1,385.00 $1,385 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

Subtotal $2,385 $7,304.00 $14,500.00 $11,178.00 $4,750.00 $20,000.00 $12,500.00 $18,300.00

Sidewalk and Street Improvements: Full Reconstruction

Storm Sewer Infrastructure Improvements

Utility Infrastructure Improvements

 TOTAL ESTIMATED ALTERNATE 2 COST 

Alternate 3

Sidewalk and Street Improvements: Full Reconstruction

Storm Sewer Infrastructure Improvements

Water Infrastructure Improvements

Demolition

Landscaping Improvements & SWPP Elements

General Items

 TOTAL ESTIMATED ALTERNATE 3 COST 

Alternate 4

Demolition

Street Improvements

Strorm Sewer Infrastructure Improvements

Landscaping Improvements & SWPP Elements

General Items



Unit Price Extension

Engineer's Estimate

Item 

No.
Description Estimated Quantity Unit Unit Price Extension Unit PriceUnit Price Extension ExtensionUnit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

Palasota Solid Bridge TexconBPI BSI Dudley Larry Young Paving

Unit PriceUnit Price ExtensionExtension

26 Block Sod 848 SY $10.00 $8,480 $4.15 $3,519.20 $7.50 $6,360.00 $6.86 $5,817.28 $4.75 $4,028.00 $10.00 $8,480.00 $10.00 $8,480.00 $10.00 $8,480.00

27 Topsoil Replacement and Finish Grading 848 CY $33.33 $28,264 $35.00 $29,680.00 $40.00 $33,920.00 $25.00 $21,200.00 $35.00 $29,680.00 $20.00 $16,960.00 $28.00 $23,744.00 $25.00 $21,200.00

28 Haybale Check Dam 5 EA $400.00 $2,000 $200.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $5,000.00 $120.00 $600.00 $300.00 $1,500.00 $500.00 $2,500.00 $100.00 $500.00 $300.00 $1,500.00

Subtotal $38,744 $34,199.20 $45,280.00 $27,617.28 $35,208.00 $27,940.00 $32,724.00 $31,180.00

29 Mobilization & Overhead 1 LS $18,902.54 $18,903 $23,800.00 $23,800.00 $17,150.00 $17,150.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $11,000.00 $11,000.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00

30 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, File Notice of Intent with TCEQ, Maintain Records 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $6,800.00 $6,800.00 $450.00 $450.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

31 Traffic Control 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000 $3,200.00 $3,200.00 $6,800.00 $6,800.00 $1,054.65 $1,054.65 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Subtotal $23,903 $29,000.00 $30,750.00 $14,004.65 $16,000.00 $37,000.00 $16,500.00 $60,000.00

$338,945 $401,040.70 $322,307.00 $314,925.23 $249,831.75 $307,836.00 $280,655.00 $394,085.00

1 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Pavement, All Thicknesses 125 SY $24.00 $3,000 $18.00 $2,250.00 $5.00 $625.00 $25.72 $3,215.00 $11.00 $1,375.00 $20.00 $2,500.00 $36.00 $4,500.00 $40.00 $5,000.00

2 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Concrete Curb & Gutter 147 LF $14.00 $2,058 $20.00 $2,940.00 $15.00 $2,205.00 $8.00 $1,176.00 $8.75 $1,286.25 $20.00 $2,940.00 $10.00 $1,470.00 $20.00 $2,940.00

3 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 24" Storm Sewer Line 37 LF $15.00 $555 $30.00 $1,110.00 $20.00 $740.00 $38.05 $1,407.85 $18.00 $666.00 $25.00 $925.00 $25.00 $925.00 $30.00 $1,110.00

4 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing 30" Storm Sewer Line 124 LF $18.00 $2,232 $35.00 $4,340.00 $25.00 $3,100.00 $42.13 $5,224.12 $21.00 $2,604.00 $40.00 $4,960.00 $30.00 $3,720.00 $35.00 $4,340.00

5 Demolish, Remove, & Properly Dispose of Existing Storm Sewer Grate Inlet 2 EA $770.00 $1,540 $1,800.00 $3,600.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $743.11 $1,486.22 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,250.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00

6 Excavation & Removal of Spoils 250 CY $15.66 $3,915 $30.00 $7,500.00 $25.00 $6,250.00 $24.01 $6,002.50 $19.00 $4,750.00 $20.00 $5,000.00 $10.00 $2,500.00 $18.00 $4,500.00

Subtotal $13,300 $21,740.00 $14,920.00 $18,511.69 $13,081.25 $18,325.00 $15,615.00 $22,890.00

7 6" Thick Reinforced Concrete Pavement 125 SY $85.00 $10,625 $68.00 $8,500.00 $60.00 $7,500.00 $54.88 $6,860.00 $65.00 $8,125.00 $48.00 $6,000.00 $62.00 $7,750.00 $75.00 $9,375.00

8 Reinforced Concrete Curb & Gutter 147 LF $39.00 $5,733 $25.00 $3,675.00 $28.00 $4,116.00 $16.01 $2,353.47 $8.75 $1,286.25 $25.00 $3,675.00 $15.00 $2,205.00 $15.00 $2,205.00

Subtotal $16,358 $12,175.00 $11,616.00 $9,213.47 $9,411.25 $9,675.00 $9,955.00 $11,580.00

9 24" RCP, Structural Backfill 36 LF $115.00 $4,140 $120.00 $4,320.00 $67.00 $2,412.00 $207.74 $7,478.64 $100.00 $3,600.00 $180.00 $6,480.00 $65.00 $2,340.00 $143.00 $5,148.00

10 30" RCP, Structural Backfill 115 LF $146.00 $16,790 $125.00 $14,375.00 $75.00 $8,625.00 $274.25 $31,538.75 $200.00 $23,000.00 $210.00 $24,150.00 $90.00 $10,350.00 $215.00 $24,725.00

11 5' Wide Reinforced Concrete Curb Inlet w/ (2) 5' Extenstions 1 EA $7,600.00 $7,600 $6,800.00 $6,800.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,144.62 $5,144.62 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $6,900.00 $6,900.00

12 15' Wide Type II Reinforced Concrete Curb Inlet 1 EA $14,100.00 $14,100 $7,200.00 $7,200.00 $13,560.00 $13,560.00 $9,256.15 $9,256.15 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00

13 Existing Strom Sewer Connection to Proposed Inlet 1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000 $1,850.00 $1,850.00 $550.00 $550.00 $285.81 $285.81 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,850.00 $1,850.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

14 TV Inspection of Storm Sewer 151 LF $3.50 $529 $4.00 $604.00 $5.00 $755.00 $3.56 $537.56 $6.75 $1,019.25 $5.00 $755.00 $3.00 $453.00 $10.00 $1,510.00

15 Trench & Excavation Protective System(s) 151 LF $35.00 $5,285 $3.50 $528.50 $1.00 $151.00 $9.15 $1,381.65 $3.00 $453.00 $5.00 $755.00 $2.00 $302.00 $95.00 $14,345.00

Subtotal $49,444 $35,677.50 $31,553.00 $55,623.18 $43,272.25 $46,640.00 $30,295.00 $67,628.00

16 Block Sod 56 SY $10.00 $560 $25.00 $1,400.00 $7.50 $420.00 $6.86 $384.16 $4.75 $266.00 $10.00 $560.00 $10.00 $560.00 $50.00 $2,800.00

17 Inlet Protection 2 EA $3.25 $7 $125.00 $250.00 $100.00 $200.00 $148.62 $297.24 $210.00 $420.00 $200.00 $400.00 $100.00 $200.00 $300.00 $600.00

Subtotal $567 $1,650.00 $620.00 $681.40 $686.00 $960.00 $760.00 $3,400.00

18 Mobilization & Overhead 1 LS $4,780.08 $4,780 $4,850.00 $4,850.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00

19 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, File Notice of Intent with TCEQ, Maintain Records 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,175.00 $1,175.00 $200.00 $200.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

20 Traffic Control 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $1,175.00 $1,175.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Subtotal $9,780 $10,350.00 $5,350.00 $3,800.00 $6,500.00 $15,000.00 $9,500.00 $50,000.00

$89,448 $81,592.50 $64,059.00 $87,829.74 $72,950.75 $90,600.00 $66,125.00 $155,498.00

Landscaping Improvements & SWPP Elements

General Items

 TOTAL ESTIMATED ALTERNATE 5 COST 

Demolition

Landscaping Improvements & SWPP Elements

 TOTAL ESTIMATED ALTERNATE 4 COST 

Alternate 5

Sidewalk and Street Improvements: Full Reconstruction

Storm Sewer Infrastructure Improvements

General Items



BPI BSI Dudley Larry Young Paving Palasota Solid Bridge Texcon

Base 1,147,045.08$ 928,475.15$     1,067,469.62$ 960,242.25$           1,181,888.00$ 954,333.00$     1,251,744.00$ 

Base+Alt1 1,965,704.93$ 1,689,205.20$ 1,744,602.83$ 1,540,028.00$        2,073,957.00$ 1,613,666.00$ 2,057,619.00$ 

Base+Alt1-2 2,453,672.93$ 1,994,974.20$ 2,130,923.59$ 1,799,053.00$        2,385,934.00$ 1,900,164.00$ 2,471,064.00$ 

Base+Alt1-3 2,665,804.43$ 2,148,664.70$ 2,313,420.79$ 1,926,444.25$        2,550,760.00$ 2,064,842.00$ 2,701,249.00$ 

Base+Alt1-4 3,066,845.13$ 2,470,971.70$ 2,628,346.02$ 2,176,276.00$        2,858,596.00$ 2,345,497.00$ 3,095,334.00$ 

Base+Alt1-5 3,148,437.63$ 2,535,030.70$ 2,716,175.76$ 2,249,226.75$        2,949,196.00$ 2,411,622.00$ 3,250,832.00$ 

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

Base Base+Alt1 Base+Alt1-2 Base+Alt1-3 Base+Alt1-4 Base+Alt1-5

Total Cost with Alternatives

BPI

BSI

Dudley

Larry Young

Palasota

Solid Bridge

Texcon



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on a professional
services agreement with Hdl Companies for consulting of sales tax
and use collections.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Hdl will review the City’s business’ sales/use tax remittances in an
effort to ensure proper application of local sales/use tax law. 
Businesses found to have errors in their city sales tax will be
submitted to the Comptroller of Public Accounts for past
reallocation of city sales/use taxes. The fees for the audit is a
30% contingency fee on sales taxes that were reported in error.

Hdl also charges a annual fee $3,600.00 for utilization of multiple
reporting tools the company provides.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
Contingent on findings.
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the professional services
agreement with Hdl for consulting services related to the state
sales and use tax.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Hdl services agreement

Lance Hall, Finance Director

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596572885x_at.pdf


Page 1/1 

CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between HdL COMPANIES, whose mailing address is 
8700 Manchaca Rd., Suite 106, Austin, TX 78748, hereinafter referred to as "HDL" and the 
CITY OF NAVASOTA, whose mailing address is P.O. BOX 910, NAVASOTA, TX 77868, 
hereinafter referred to as "CLIENT."  

WHEREAS, CLIENT desires to engage HDL, as an independent contractor, to provide 
CLIENT consulting services related to its sales and use tax and; 

WHEREAS, HDL desires to consult with CLIENT to assist CLIENT with its sales and use 
collections;  

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed as follows: 

1. Term.  The respective duties and obligations of the Parties to the Agreement shall be 
for a period of twelve (12) months, commencing on August 1, 2020 (“Commencement Date”).   
The Agreement automatically renews in twelve (12) month increments unless terminated in 
accordance with Section 10 or unless HDL has notified CLIENT of HDL’s inability to continue 
the Agreement under its current terms at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the 
then in-place Agreement term.     Notifications by either party shall be according to Section 12 
F. 

2. Consulting Services.  HDL will provide consulting services as defined in Exhibit I and 
will include audit/recovery and reports.  

A. Additional Services.   CLIENT may request HDL provide additional consulting 
services at any time during the term of the Agreement.   If CLIENT and HDL mutually agree 
on the scope of the additional consulting, then HDL will provide those services on a Time and 
Materials basis, or otherwise, as the parties agree.   Hourly rates will vary depending on the 
scope and structure of the work and the personnel required.   Any additional consulting services 
shall be agreed in writing by the parties prior to any services being performed.   HDL will 
invoice monthly any fees and expenses for additional consultation services.   

3. Report Fee.  A report fee of three thousand six hundred dollars ($3,600.00) is due and 
payable on the commencement date of the agreement and at the beginning of each subsequent 
twelve (12) month period of the Agreement.   

4. Commission Fee.  HDL is due a commission fee only if HDL work or recommendations 
made during the term of this Agreement, or any extensions thereof, directly resulted in 
Recovered, Future, or Increased Taxes actually being received by CLIENT.   Any commissions 
earned during the Agreement or extensions thereof survive termination of the Agreement and 
CLIENT’s commission fee obligations remain until completed.  

  



Page 1/1 

 

A. Definitions. 

(1) Recovered Taxes. Recovered Taxes are taxes incorrectly paid to another 
jurisdiction which are, as a result of HDL recommendations or work, 
subsequently re-allocated to CLIENT; or are taxes that were not 
collected and paid to CLIENT for historical periods but are subsequently 
paid as a result of HDL recommendations or work.   

(2) Future Taxes.   Future Taxes are taxes received by CLIENT as a result 
of HDL finding and fixing errors which result in taxes received by 
CLIENT moving forward from the error correction. 

(a) An error correction can result in both Recovered Taxes and 
Future Taxes.    

(3) Increased Taxes.   Increased Taxes are taxes received by CLIENT as a 
result of HDL finding and fixing errors which result in an increase in 
taxes received above historic levels from the point of error correction.    

B. Commission Fees.  The amount of Commission fees are calculated based on the 
sales and use tax specific businesses or individuals reported to the Texas Comptroller of Public 
Accounts (TCPA) and were allocated to CLIENT and are documented by data and reports 
received from the TCPA. 

(1) Recovered Taxes Commission.   HDL is due a commission of thirty 
percent (30%) of Recovered Taxes. 

(2) Future Taxes Commission.    HDL is due a commission of thirty percent 
(30%) of Future Taxes received by the CLIENT for a period of twenty-
four (24) months, which period begins upon CLIENT’s first receipt of the 
correct Future Taxes. 

(3) Increased Taxes Commission.   HDL is due a commission of thirty 
percent (30%) of Increased Taxes received by the CLIENT for a period 
of twenty-four (24) months, which period begins upon CLIENT’s first 
receipt of the correct Increased Taxes. 

C. Commission Fees Determinations.   Commissions fees due are determined and 
invoiced on a quarter basis. CLIENT shall not be required to pay any commission fees which 
CLIENT disputes in good faith until HdL provides written documentation showing the accuracy 
of the fees.  

D. Commission Refund.   If HDL received commissions based on Taxes that are 
subsequently found to have been incorrectly paid to CLIENT and which Taxes are subsequently 
re-allocated from CLIENT or CLIENT is required to return those taxes to the TCPA, HDL will 
to return to or credit to CLIENT any commissions related to those taxes.    HDL and CLIENT 



Page 1/1 

agree to negotiate a mutually agreeable commission repayment schedule on a case-by-case 
basis.  

E. Cooperation after Termination.    CLIENT agrees to cooperate and to provide 
HDL necessary authorizations or provide HDL access to reports or information necessary to 
allow HDL to calculate its commission fees for the Recovered Taxes, Future Taxes and/or 
Increased Taxes until such time as CLIENT’s obligations for those are complete. 

5. Expenses.  Expenses incurred by HDL in providing services in Exhibit I are the 
responsibility of HDL.  If approved in advance in writing by CLIENT, HDL shall be reimbursed 
for any expenses, including travel, incurred by HDL beyond the scope of services included in 
Exhibit I.   HDL shall invoice those expenses quarterly and they are due on receipt of invoice.   

6. Client Obligations.    

A. Authorizations.   

(1) Information.    CLIENT authorizes HDL to request, receive and discuss 
tax information, whether or not confidential, related to CLIENT from the 
Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts (TCPA) officials, from County or 
other appraisal district officials and any other individuals or parties who 
are or may be obligated to collect sales and use tax on behalf of CLIENT.   
CLIENT authorizes HDL to initiate, request and to represent CLIENT in 
any discussions or reviews with parties obligated to collect sales and use 
tax on behalf of CLIENT but in no circumstance may these actions be 
construed to be, or HDL represent that HDL is an employee of CLIENT.   
CLIENT agrees and understands that the Texas Comptroller of Public 
Accounts has the exclusive authority and responsibility to administer and 
collect sales and use taxes on behalf of CLIENT and agrees that in 
retaining HDL, CLIENT is not delegating any of its responsibilities or 
authority to administer and enforce its sales and use taxes. 

(2) Transmission of Confidential Information.   CLIENT will designate a 
person or location (CONTACT POINT) to whom or which HDL is 
authorized to transmit CLIENT specific reports and information, some 
of which may be confidential.   CLIENT acknowledges that on receipt 
of any confidential information from HDL, CLIENT assumes 
responsibility for assuring compliance with Section 9A.   CLIENT will 
designate who is authorized to establish and/or change the CONTACT 
POINT and will communicate it or any change in CONTACT POINT in 
writing to HDL.  

B. Map.   CLIENT will provide HDL a detailed map of CLIENT’s jurisdiction 
boundaries and its sales tax boundaries, if different from its jurisdiction boundaries.   If CLIENT 
cannot provide a detailed map HDL will arrange for one to be made and the costs for the map 
will be billed to CLIENT. 



Page 1/1 

C. Coordination.   CLIENT will designate a person to serve as the coordination 
point for CLIENT with HDL for sales/use tax issues related to CLIENT and who will be 
available to discuss with and provide HDL information, in a timely manner, to resolve questions 
related to CLIENT’s jurisdiction boundaries. CLIENT agrees HDL will be the principal 
communications point related to sales tax between CLIENT and the TCPA and businesses and 
agrees to refer all contacts from the TCPA or businesses related to sales tax to HDL.    

D. Boundary Changes.   CLIENT will promptly notify HDL of any annexations 
or de-annexations of its territory or of any other jurisdiction boundary changes during the term 
of this Agreement. 

7. Copyrights and License.   HDL retains all the rights, title and interest in to the 
processes, procedures, software, ideas, and know-how, whether patentable, copyrightable or 
proprietary that HDL may develop or utilize in performing services for CLIENT.   HDL grants 
CLIENT a non-exclusive license to reproduce for CLIENT’s sole internal use and benefit any 
copyrighted materials provided by HDL to CLIENT under the Agreement as long as the 
copyright mark and any confidentiality notices, if applicable, are not removed in the copying 
process.  

8. Data Source and Accuracy.    In performing services under this Agreement HDL will 
rely on data and information from the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts (TCPA) and 
potentially other public and private sources.   In relying on such data and information HDL will 
exercise reasonable due diligence as to its accuracy; however, HDL makes no warranties or 
representations as to its accuracy. 

9. Parties Document Retention and Confidentiality Obligations.   HDL, its principals, 
employees, agents, contractors and associates agree to maintain confidential, for a period of 5 
years or any other period as required by statute, any information marked or designated as 
confidential by CLIENT or received for CLIENT’S benefit, and agree to destroy, at the written 
request of the CLIENT, all such documents and any other documents obtained by HDL on 
CLIENT’s behalf, whether or not confidential, within 30 days of termination of this Agreement.   
CLIENT, its officers, employees, associates, agents or contractors agree, except as required by 
the Texas Open Records Act or other legal process, to maintain confidential any HDL contacts 
disclosed to CLIENT, any proprietary analytical methods, procedures or any software disclosed 
to and/or used on behalf of CLIENT. 

A. CLIENT and HDL acknowledge certain data received from the TCPA and 
utilized by HDL in providing services under this Agreement is made confidential by Texas Tax 
Code, ¶ 321.3022, 322.2022, 323.2022, as applicable, and may be used only for the purpose of 
economic forecasting and internal audit.   Unauthorized distribution or disclosure of 
confidential information by an individual or employee of a company or an officer or employee 
of a government agency is punishable by six (6) months in jail and a $1,000 fine (Texas 
Government Code ¶ 552.352).   CLIENT agrees any confidential information provided 
CLIENT by HDL will be maintained confidential and will not be utilized in any manner 
inconsistent with the law.    HDL agrees it will not use confidential information in any manner 
other than for providing services to CLIENT for CLIENT’s internal audit and economic 
forecasting.    



Page 1/1 

  
10. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party by giving ninety (90) 
days' written notice to the other party at the address above or at an address chosen subsequent 
to the execution of this Agreement and communicated in writing. If either party terminates this 
Agreement prior to a term’s expiration, HDL will return to CLIENT, pro-rata, the portion of 
the retainer fee paid to HDL based upon the proportionate number of days remaining in the 
Agreement period for which the prior payment was due, but any payments due HDL as defined 
in Section 4 continue until fulfilled.    

11. Dispute Resolution.  If a dispute arises out of this Agreement, and if the dispute cannot 
be settled through negotiation, the parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the dispute by 
mediation before resorting to arbitration, litigation, or some other dispute resolution procedure.   
The fees for the mediation will be borne equally by the parties.    

12. General Provisions. 

A. Fee Payments.    Fee payments are governed by Texas Government Code, 
Title 10, Subtitle F, Chapter 2251 - Payment for Goods and Services. All fees (retainer, report 
or commissions) due to HDL will be paid out of CLIENT’S General Revenue Fund. HDL 
acknowledges funds for payment of service provided by HDL under the Agreement are 
provided for or approved by CLIENT only for its current fiscal year. HDL further 
acknowledges Texas Statutes prohibit obligation and expenditure of public funds beyond the 
fiscal year for which a budget has been approved. HDL further acknowledges and agrees 
HDL has no recourse against CLIENT for CLIENT’s failure to appropriate funds for this 
agreement for any fiscal year other than the year in which the Agreement was executed. 
Should CLIENT fail to appropriate funds for payment of work in any fiscal year for which 
this Agreement applies, CLIENT must notify HDL in writing by the beginning of that fiscal 
year, and HDL may immediately terminate this Agreement without any recourse by CLIENT. 
 

B. Non-Waiver.   It is expressly understood and agreed that, in the execution of 
this Agreement, neither party waives, nor shall be deemed hereby to waive, any immunity or 
defense that would otherwise be available to it against claims arising in the exercise of its rights 
pursuant to the Texas Tort Claims Act or other applicable statute, law, rule, or regulation. 

C. Assignment; No Third-Party Beneficiaries.   This Agreement shall bind and 
benefit the Parties hereto.  This Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the 
Parties hereto and their legal successors and assigns and shall not be construed to confer any 
rights upon any third party. Neither party may assign this agreement or any of their rights or 
obligations under this agreement without the other party’s written consent. 

D. Choice of Law and Venue.   This Agreement shall be governed by and 
interpreted in accordance with laws of the State of Texas, without giving effect to any conflict-
of-laws provisions.  Venue shall be in the County of Texas in which CLIENT is located. 

E. Insurance.    HDL will maintain general business liability insurance of not less 
than $1,000,000 from an A+ or better carrier and will provide CLIENT a Certificate of 
Insurance on request. CLIENT shall be listed as an additional insured.  



Page 1/1 

F. Notices  All notices and other communications required or permitted 
hereunder or necessary or convenient in connection herewith shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed to have been given when hand delivered, sent by facsimile or electronic mail with 
evidence of receipt, sent by reputable overnight courier with signature of recipient required or 
mailed by registered or certified mail, as follows (provided that notice of change of address 
shall be deemed given only when received): 

If to HDL to:  HdL Companies   
    8700 Manchaca Rd., Suite 106 
    Austin, Texas 78748 
    Attention: Richard Fletcher 

If to CLIENT to: City of Navasota  
P.O. Box 910 

   Navasota, TX 77868 
   Attention:  City Manager    
   
or to such other names or addresses as HDL or CLIENT, as the case may be, shall 

designate by notice to each other person entitled to receive notices in the manner specified in 
this Section.  

G. Counterparts 

This Agreement shall become binding when any one or more counterparts hereof, 
individually or taken together, shall bear the signatures of CLIENT and HDL.  This Agreement 
may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original 
as against any Party whose signature appears thereon, but all of which together shall constitute 
but one and the same instrument. 

13. Boycotting Israel. As required by Chapter 2270, Texas Government Code, HDL 
hereby verifies that it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott Israel through the term of 
this Agreement. For purposes of this verification, "Boycott Israel" means refusing to deal with, 
terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, 
inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel, or with a 
person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not 
include an action made for ordinary business purposes. 

14. No Business with Foreign Terrorist Organizations. As required by Subchapter F, 
Chapter 2252, Texas Government Code, HDL hereby verifies that it is not a company engaged 
in business with Iran, Sudan, or a foreign terrorist organization (as defined in Section 2252.151 
(2), Texas Government Code) and that it is not on a list prepared and maintained by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas under Section 806.051, 807.051, or 
2252.153, Texas Government Code. 

 



Page 1/1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto executed this Agreement as of 

the dates set forth below.  

 

CITY OF NAVASOTA       HdL COMPANIES  
     
 

  
________________________________ _____________________________ 

By:  By: Richard Fletcher 

Authorized Agent V.P. of Operations and Client Services 

Date: Date:  July 20, 2020 

 

  



Page 1/1 

Exhibit I 
 Sales/Use Tax Compliance Consulting Services 

In providing CLIENT comprehensive sales/use tax review, compliance and recovery services HDL 
will: 

Serve as the primary contact point for CLIENT with the TCPA and businesses collecting sales/use tax 
for benefit of CLIENT, 

1. Provide coordination and information as appropriate with and to the TCPA and businesses in 
order for CLIENT to receive its correct sales/use tax payments, 

2. Research and review businesses reporting sales tax to CLIENT to assure they should be and 
are collecting and paying sales tax appropriately to CLIENT, 

3. Research new businesses established in CLIENT’s locale and fix any not registered 
appropriately to collect sales tax for the District, 

4. Develop the requisite information and work with certain out-of-jurisdiction services and sales 
providers to assure the appropriate tax is collected and reported for CLIENT, 

5. Review monthly details of CLIENT’s sales tax receipts and research any anomalies which 
could result in missing tax, 

6. Provide CLIENT monthly a series of reports, individually or aggregated in a package, as listed 
below.   HDL may from time-to-time include additional reports, modify reports or eliminate 
reports. 

a. Monthly Sales Tax Graphic (MSTG) 
b. Sales Tax Payment Detail (STPD 
c. Sales Tax Snapshot (STS)  
d. Top 100 Taxpayers (TOP100) 
e. Top 30 Taxpayers (TOP 30) 
f. Monthly Variance (MVAR) 
g. Fiscal Year-to-Date Variance (FYTDVAR) 
h. Industry Segment Rank and Distribution (ISRD) 
i. Industry Segment Rank and Change (ISRC) 
j. Industry Segment Trend (IST) 
k. Telecom Sales Tax Graphic (TST) 
l. STAR Summary Package (all reports above in a pdf file) 
m. Taxpayer Payment History (TPH) 
n. NAICS Range Report (NRR) 
o. Sales Tax Forecast (STF) 
p. STAR Detail (all reports below in an Excel workbook) 

i. Major TPs Historic Rank 
ii. Major Juris TPs Rank 

iii. Juris Lrg. Co._Loc. Cross Ref 
iv. Top 100 TPs Rank 
v. NAICS Major TP Rank 

vi. NAICS Segments Analysis 
 

7. Provide special reports and analyses of issues not included in the above reports but are within 
the scope of the Agreement, 

8. Provide CLIENT’s governing officials and management consultations as appropriate. 



Page 1/1 

CITY OF NAVASOTA 
200 E. MCALPINE STREET 

NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
 

July 20, 2020 
 

The Honorable Glenn Hegar 
Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts  
Post Office Box 13528, Capitol Station  
Austin, Texas 78711-3528 
 
Re:    AUTHORIZATION TO RECEIVE INFORMATION 
 CITY OF NAVASOTA  
 
Dear Mr. Hegar: 
 
Please be advised that the CITY OF NAVASOTA (CITY) has retained HDL COMPANIES 
(HDL) to provide CITY administrative assistance related to its sales and use tax.   CITY hereby 
authorizes HDL, its principals, employees and associates, to discuss, request, and receive any 
data, reports, and information, including any that may be confidential, which CITY would 
normally be entitled to receive, and which are pertinent to CITY sales and use taxes.   This 
authorization applies to the State of Texas Comptroller’s Office and to any entities which collect 
taxes on behalf of CITY.    This authorization is effective on the date of this notification and 
continues three hundred sixty-five (365) days from the date of this notification unless cancelled, 
in writing, by CITY. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
________________________________________ 
Signature 
 
________________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
________________________________________ 
Title 
 
Cc:   HdL Companies 



Page 1/1 

CITY OF NAVASOTA 
200 E. MCALPINE STREET 

NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
 

July 20, 2020 
 

 
Re:    AUTHORIZATION TO RECEIVE INFORMATION 
 CITY OF NAVASOTA 
 
 
To whom it may concern: 
 
Please be advised that the CITY OF NAVASOTA (CITY) has retained HDL COMPANIES 
(HDL) to provide CITY administrative assistance related to its tax revenue.   CITY hereby 
authorizes HDL, its principals, employees and associates to discuss, request, and receive any 
data, reports, and information, including any that may be confidential, which CITY would 
normally be entitled to receive, and which are pertinent to CITY property or sales taxes.   This 
authorization is effective on the date of this notification and continues until cancelled, in 
writing, by CITY. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
________________________________________ 
Signature 
 
________________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
________________________________________ 
Title 
     
Cc: HdL Companies 



Page 1/1 

CITY OF NAVASOTA 
200 E. MCALPINE STREET 

NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
 

July 20, 2020 
 
HdL COMPANIES  
8700 MANCHACA RD., STE 106 
AUSTIN, TX 78748 
 
Re:    CONTACT POINT FOR TRANSMITTAL OF INFORMATION 
 
The NEW CITY OF NAVASOTA (CITY) authorizes HDL COMPANIES (HDL) to transmit 
information, some of which may be confidential, to the following: 
 
CONTACT POINT NAME OR DESCRIPTION: ________________________________ 
CONTACT POINT TITLE OR AFFILIATION: ________________________________ 
CONTACT E-MAIL ADDRESS: ____________________________________________ 
 
CITY authorizes HDL to change CONTACT POINT only when directed in writing from: 
NAME: ____________________________________________ 
TITLE: ____________________________________________ 
E-MAIL ADDRESS: ______________________________________ 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Signature 
 
________________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
________________________________________ 
Title 
 

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 677-
20, accepting the water, sewer, gas, street and storm drainage
improvements of Phase three section one in Pecan Lakes Estates
Subdivision, except signage, common areas and maintenance of
open channel storm drainage, in the City of Navasota, Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
City staff received a letter from James C. Hassell dedicating public
improvements and requesting acceptance of public improvements.
Hassell Construction has completed the water, sewer, gas, street
and storm drainage public improvements in Pecan Lakes Estates
Phase 3, Section 1 subdivision. Installation of lighting will be
coordinated between the developer and Entergy Texas per
approved construction plans. Missing sidewalks, street signs,
cluster mailbox area and street lights will be installed in
accordance with approved plans per signed Subdivision
Agreement.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
None
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 677-20, accepting
the water, sewer, gas, street and storm drainage improvements
of Phase three section one in Pecan Lakes Estates Subdivision,
except signage, common areas and maintenance of open channel
storm drainage, in the City of Navasota, Texas.

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director



 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution No. 677-20
2. Request Letter from Hassell

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596720373x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596720401x_at.pdf


RESOLUTION NO.  677-20 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE WATER, SEWER, GAS, STREET AND STORM WATER 
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN PECAN LAKES ESTATES PHASE THREE SECTION 1, 

DESCRIBED AS BLOCK 1, LOTS 1-5, BLOCK 2, LOTS 1-10, BLOCK 3, LOTS 1-10, 
BLOCK 4, LOTS 1-10 AND BLOCK 8, LOTS 1-4, EXCEPT ENTRANCE SIGNAGE, 

COMMON AREAS AND MAINTENANCE OF OPEN CHANNEL STORM DRAINAGE, IN THE 
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 

 
WHEREAS, Pecan Lakes Estates Phase Three Section One is a thirty-nine (39) lot 

subdivision developed by Hassell Construction, James C. Hassell, President; and 

WHEREAS, water, sewer, gas, street and storm drainage improvements were 
constructed by the developer; and 

WHEREAS, said water, sewer, gas, street and storm drainage improvements have been 
offered for dedication to public use forever; and 

WHEREAS, the water, sewer, gas, street and storm drainage improvements have been 
inspected by the City and found to be constructed in accordance with the City’s Standards and 
Specifications; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota desires to formally accept the water, sewer, gas, 
street and storm drainage improvements of Pecan Lakes Estates Phase Three Section One, 
described as BLOCK 1, LOTS 1-5, BLOCK 2, LOTS 1-10, BLOCK 3, LOTS 1-10, BLOCK 4, LOTS 1-
10 AND BLOCK 8, LOTS 1-4 except entrance signage, common areas and maintenance of open 
channel storm drainage; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS THAT: 

The City of Navasota hereby accepts the water, sewer, gas, street and storm drainage 
improvements of Phase Three in Pecan Lakes Estates Subdivision, except entrance signage, 
common areas and maintenance of open channel storm drainage in the City of Navasota, Texas 
described as BLOCK 1, LOTS 1-5, BLOCK 2, LOTS 1-10, BLOCK 3, LOTS 1-10, BLOCK 4, LOTS 1-
10 AND BLOCK 8, LOTS 1-4 and authorizes the Mayor to execute any necessary documentation.  
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS THE 10th DAY OF AUGUST, 2020. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
                                                                          BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 





ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 8. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on employee health,
vision, dental and life insurance benefits for Fiscal Year 2020-
2021.

 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City must consider employee Benefits annually, and it is time
to consider the benefits  for Fiscal Year 2020-2021. The City made
some plan changes in an effort to save the City and
employees money on employee benefits. The following is the price
change along with the plan changes for the City Council to
consider: 

Renew rates for the health plan year 2020 - 2021 with
Texas Municipal League reflecting a 4.15% increase.

Change TML Plan from Copay-1500-3K to Alternate Copay-
1500 - 3K-ER ($250.00 Facility Fee Copay).

Health Insurance: 

Old Rates

Employee Rate $508.80 + Spouse $524.06 (City pays 30%
$157.22 - Employee pays $366.84)

Employee $169.31 per pay period

Employee Rate $508.80 + Children $386.70 (City pays 10%
$38.67 - Employee pays $348.03)

Employee $160.65 per pay period

Peggy Johnson, Human Resource Director



Employee Rate $508.80 + Family $992.16 (City pays 61%
$605.22 - Employee pays $386.94)

Employee $178.59 per pay period

Grandfathered - Employees hired prior to August 18, 2003
and Employment Contracts

Employee Rate $508.80 + Spouse $524.06 (City pays 62%
$324.92 - Employee pays $199.14)

Employee $91.91 per pay period

Employee Rate $508.80 + Children $386.70 (City pays 51%
$197.22 - Employee pays $189.48)  Employee $87.45 per pay
period

Employee Rate $508.80 + Family $992.16 (City pays 79%
$783.81 - Employee pays $208.35)

Employee $96.16 per pay period

New Rates

Employee Rate $529.90 + Spouse $545.78 (City pays 29%
$157.22 - Employee pays $388.56)

Employee $179.34 per pay period

Employee Rate $529.90 + Children $402.74 (City pays
10% $38.63 - Employee pays $364.11)

Employee $168.05 per pay period

Employee Rate $529.90 + Family $1,033.30 (City pays 59%
$605.22 - Employee pays $428.08)

Employee $197.58 per pay period

Grandfathered - Employees hired prior to August 18, 2003
and Employment Contracts

Employee Rate $529.90 + Spouse $545.78 (City pays 60%
$324.92 - Employee pays $220.86)

Employee $101.94 per pay period



Employee Rate $529.90 + Children $402.74 (City pays
49% $197.22 - Employee pays $205.52)  Employee $94.86 per
pay period

Employee Rate $529.90 + Family $1,033.30 (City pays 59%
$783.81 - Employee pays $249.49)  Employee $115.15 per pay
period

Vision Insurance - Renew with TML, the rates remained the
same which is $6.76 per employee and $13.50 for dependents.

Life Insurance - Renew with Sun Life, the rate remained the
same

Dental Insurance - Renew with Guardian, the rate remained the
same which is $22.43 per employee and $47.00 for dependents.  
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the renewal of TML health benefits
with the 4.15% increase, Guardian for dental benefits, Sun Life
for life insurance benefits and TML for vision benefits for Fiscal
Year 2020-2021.
 

ATTACHMENTS:



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 9. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on agreement from
XEROX Business solutions Southwest for copier rental and
maintenance.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City's current copier rental and maintenance agreement is
coming to end in June 2021. The equipment currently under
contract is having a lot of maintenance issues making it beneficial
to go ahead and enter into a new contract with Xerox Business
Solutions. The new contract will be a 5 year agreement and will
save the City an estimated $90.00 per month. The Xerox proposal
is pricing from Choice Partners Coop so the bidding has already
been taken care of by Choice Partners Coop.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
Xerox proposes total cost (25,000 bw copies and 6,400 color
copies, all parts labor, service toner and supplies including
staples) for 8 copiers at $1876 per month for 60 months. Any bw
copies over 25,000 billed at .0055 --color copier over 6,400 billed
at .049.
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends accepting the 60 month copier rental and
maintenance proposal from Xerox Business Solutions
Southwest in the amount of $1876.00 per month.
 

Lance M. Hall, Finance Director



ATTACHMENTS:

1. xerox contract
2. Xerox Business Solutions proposal

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596572960x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1595528541x_at.pdf






































ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 10. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on acceptance of bids for
the sale of City properties legally described as Park Place, Block H,
Lot 1, 2 and H&TC, Block J, Lot 4 (S21') 5 located in Navasota,
Grimes County, Texas, 77868.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
City Council directed staff to move forward on selling the following
properties by way of sealed bid: March 9, 2020 City, Park Place,
Block H, Lot 1, 2. And on June, 22, 2020, H&TC, Block J, Lot 4
(S21') 5. Staff has received one bid for each property attached for
review.

A notice of bid was published in the local newspaper on July 1st
and July 8th 2020 with a bid submittal deadline of July 22, 2020
at 4:00 pm.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
Bid from Javier Olvera - $9,000.00.  Bid from Janice Sheve -
$10,105.00. Both bids received total: $19,105
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends accepting bids for the sale of City properties
legally described as Park Place, Block H, Lot 1, 2 to Javier Olvera
in the amount of $9,000.00 and H&TC, Block J, Lot 4 (S21') 5 to
PA Smith Hotel, Janice Sheve in the amount of $10,105.00. Both
are located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868.

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director



 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bid received for Park Place Property
2. Bid received for H&TC Property

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1595944475x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1595944457x_at.pdf






ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 11. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the addendum lease
agreement between the City of Navasota and Anderson-Grimes,
LLC.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Anderson-Grimes, LLC  has proposed to build an 11,781 Sq Ft. T-
Hangar north of the existing ramp.  In order to build the T-
Hangar, an additional ramp is required for the entry into the north
side of the T-Hangar.  Anderson-Grimes, LLC will be responsible
for all costs of the design and construction of the ramp and
drainage improvements (not to exceed $125,000) to be
reimbursed by the City of Navasota thirty days (30) days after
final completion of the ramp and drainage improvements. 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
Estimated Cost $125,000 

Current Airport fund balance - $464,742
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the addendum to the lease
agreement between the City of Navasota and Anderson-Grimes,
LLC  for ramp and drainage improvements and to be reimbursed
up to $125,000 after a thirty (30) completion of the project.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Jennifer Reyna, Utility Administrative
Assistant



1. Addendum

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596660313x_at.pdf


 1 

ADDENDUM TO LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA AND ANDERSON-GRIMES, LLC 

 

 

STATE OF TEXAS   } 

     } 

COUNTY OF GRIMES  } 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas (the “Lessor”) and Anderson-Grimes, LLC (the “Lessee”) 

entered into a Lease Agreement  dated and effective on October 5th, 2014, as amended on January 19, 2017 (the 

“Lease”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the parties to the Lease desire to modify the provisions of said Lease as provided in this 

Addendum to Lease Agreement Between the City of Navasota and Anderson-Grimes, LLC (the “Addendum”); 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Lessee desires to develop the real property described in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto 

and incorporated herein for all purposes pertinent (the “Property”), by constructing T-Hangar and ramp and 

drainage improvements (collectively, the “Improvements”) on said Property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Lessee intends to make a significant capital investment in the additional Improvements to 

the Property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Lessor desires to establish the economic development program outlined herein and 

offer incentives to Lessee to develop the Improvements on the Property in the manner set forth herein, and 

Lessee desires to participate in the economic development program established in this Addendum; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Lessor is authorized by §380.001, et seq., Texas Local Government Code, to promote 

state and local economic development and to stimulate business and commercial activity within the City of 

Navasota and surrounding area.  The Lessor has determined that a substantial economic benefit and the creation 

of new opportunities of employment and commercial activity will accrue to the City and the surrounding area if 

the Improvements are successfully developed on the Property; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Lessee estimates that the cost of the construction of the ramp and drainage portion of 

the Improvements is approximately $125,000.00; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Lessor desires to participate in the cost of the ramp and drainage improvements as set 

forth in this Addendum on a reimbursement basis; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Lessee agrees to be responsible for all costs of the design and construction of the 

Improvements described herein, except for the portion of the costs of the ramp and drainage improvements 

($125,000.00) to be reimbursed by the Lessor to the Lessee; and  

 

WHEREAS, Lessee and Lessor agree that under no circumstances shall Lessor’s share of the costs 

related to the Improvements exceed $125,000.00; and 

 

WHEREAS, Lessor has reviewed the data, plans, and estimated costs of the Improvements to be 

designed and constructed by Lessee, and Lessor and Lessee desire to enter into this Addendum; 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions provided for herein, the parties 

agree as follows: 

 



 2 

1. The real property described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes 

pertinent, consisting of approximately 11,781 square feet (the “Property”), shall be included in and is 

deemed to be part of the “Leased Premises” as defined in the Lease, except for the purposes of 

calculating the annual rental payments due to the Lessor pursuant to the Lease, which is addressed 

herein below. The real property described in Exhibit “A” shall also be referred to herein as the 

“Additional Leased Premises.” 

 

2. Beginning on the effective date of this Addendum and continuing until October 5th, 2021, the Lessee 

shall not be required to pay any annual rental payment to the Lessor for the Lessee’s use and occupancy 

of the Additional Leased Premises, and the square footage of the real property described in Exhibit “A” 

shall be excluded when calculating the annual rental payment due to the Lessor. However, beginning on 

October 5th, 2021, and continuing until termination of the Lease, the Lessee shall make annual rental 

payments to the Lessor for the Lessee’s use and occupancy of the Additional Leased Premises described 

in Exhibit “A”, and the square footage of the real property described in Exhibit “A” shall be added to 

and included when calculating the annual rental payment due to the Lessor pursuant to the Lease. 

Beginning October 5th, 2021, the annual rental payments for the Additional Leased Premises shall be 

calculated in the same manner and on the same schedule as set forth in paragraph 3 of the Lease, which 

shall be Year 8 of the Lease with regard to calculating annual rental payments. 

 

3. The term of the Lease shall be effective from October 5, 2014 and will continue and remain in full force 

and effect for a period of thirty-two (32) years from said date, except as may be modified by the Lease 

or this addendum thereto, however, Lessee will have the option to extend the Lease upon the terms 

(with the exception of the Annual Rental Payments) for additional periods of ten (10) years each upon 

giving written notice to the Lessor of Lessee’s intent to extend at least six (6) months prior to the 

expiration of the Lease or any renewal thereof. Any extension must be approved by the City of 

Navasota. The City agrees not to unreasonably or arbitrarily deny an equitable extension of the Lease. 

Any extension shall be subject to the parties’ mutual agreement as to the Annual Rental Payment.  

 

4. The Lessee shall use and occupy the Property solely for the purpose of developing, designing 

constructing and leasing T-Hangar units and associated ramp and drainage improvements in accordance 

with the provisions set forth herein, said Improvements and location being further described in Exhibit 

“B” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes pertinent. 

 

5. The Lessee will develop, design and construct the Improvements with the Specifications set forth in 

Exhibit “C” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes pertinent. Further, the Lessee shall 

comply with all current, applicable building codes and all other applicable ordinances and regulations in 

developing and constructing the Improvements. However, the City will waive the City’s building permit 

and inspection fees associated with the development and construction of the Improvements. 

 

6. Lessee acknowledges and agrees that the estimated total costs for the ramp and drainage portion of the 

Improvements is $125,000.00. Lessee agrees to be responsible for and pay all costs associated with the 

design and construction of the Improvements, except that the Lessor shall reimburse Lessee for the costs 

of construction of the ramp and drainage Improvements described herein. Lessor’s participation shall 

not under any circumstances exceed $125,000.00. Lessee shall construct the Improvements in 

accordance with all applicable laws, regulations, ordinances, and codes. Lessee and Lessor agree that 

the Improvements costs shall include but not be limited to design, labor, construction, materials, and all 

other associated construction costs. Lessee shall also be responsible for the engineering and design work 

related to the Improvements. Lessee and the Lessor acknowledge and agree that the actual costs related 

to the Improvements may change during the project due to unforeseen circumstances, and are subject to 

any change orders approved by Lessee and Lessor. Lessor shall not be responsible for paying any 

portion of the design costs, construction costs or other expenses related to the Improvements under any 

circumstances, except as otherwise provided herein. 



 3 

 

7. Lessor shall reimburse Lessee for the costs of construction of the ramp and drainage improvements, not 

to exceed $125,000.00, within thirty (30) days after final completion of the Improvements and the 

Lessor’s determination that the Improvements conform to the plans, specifications and standards 

contained in or referred to in this Addendum and all applicable regulations, codes, ordinances, and laws. 

Lessee shall provide detailed receipts, invoices, and other documentation as requested by Lessor 

detailing the total costs of construction of the ramp and drainage improvements.   

 

8. The Lessee shall be responsible for paying all utility costs, expenses and charges in the same manner as 

set forth in paragraph 5 of the Lease. 

 

9. The Lessee shall be responsible for marketing and promoting the new and existing T-Hangar units and 

L-Hangar units in order to stimulate business and commercial activity at the airport and in the City of 

Navasota. 

 

10. Upon completion of the Improvements on the real property described in Exhibit “A” the Lessee shall, at 

no cost to the City and subject to the approval of the City Manager, design and install signage on the 

west wall of the building containing said Hangar units. The signage shall promote the airport and 

display the airport telephone number(s) and other appropriate information. 

 

 

This Addendum shall prevail over any provision or term contained in the Lease dated and effective October 5th, 

2014, as amended, to the extent said Lease may be inconsistent with the terms of this Addendum. Except as 

otherwise provided herein, or to the extent the Lease is inconsistent with the provisions of this Addendum, the 

Additional Leased Premises shall be subject to and governed by all terms and provisions of the Lease. This 

Addendum is agreed to and accepted by both parties to the Agreement, and shall be effective as of the ____ day 

of ________________________, 2020. 

  

 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS   ANDERSON-GRIMES, LLC 

 

 

 

_______________________________________  _____________________________________ 

Hon. Bert Miller, Mayor     Michael P. Dearing 

       Member 

 

 

ATTEST:      ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________________   ______________________________________ 

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary   Name: 

       Title:      

      



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 12. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 679-
20, authorizing submission of an application to the Texas
Department of Agriculture for a 2020 Texas Capital Fund Program
Downtown Revitalization grant to construct sidewalk and
handicap-accessibility improvements in the designated downtown
district.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Staff proposes to apply for funding through the 2020 Texas
Capital Fund Program Downtown Revitalization grant in order to
assist the City in the repair/replacement of sidewalks and
handicap accessibility improvements.

Grant Amount - $500,000

Match - $75,000 - Navasota EDC approved  payment of matching
funds
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 679-20, authorizing
submission of an application to the Texas Department of
Agriculture for a 2020 Texas Capital Fund Program Downtown
Revitalization grant to construct sidewalk and handicap-
accessibility improvements in the designated downtown district.

Brad Stafford, City Manager



 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution No. 679-20

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596469149x_at.pdf


RESOLUTION NO.  679-20 

  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION TO THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF 
AGRICULTURE FOR THE DOWNTOWN REVITALIZATION FUND; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER TO ACT AS THE CITY'S 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES IN ALL MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE 
CITY'S PARTICIPATION IN THE TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 
GRANT PROGRAM.  

  

WHEREAS,  the City Council of the City of Navasota desires to develop a viable community, 
including decent housing and a suitable living environment and expanding 
economic opportunities, principally for persons of low-to-moderate 
income; and  

  

WHEREAS,  certain conditions exist which represent a threat to the public health and safety; 
and  

  

WHEREAS,  it is necessary and in the best interests of the City of Navasota to apply for 
funding under the Texas Community Development Block Grant Program;  

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS:  

  

SECTION 1.  That a Texas Community Development Block Grant Program application for the 
Downtown Revitalization Fund is hereby authorized to be filed on behalf of 
the City with the Texas Department of Agriculture.    

  

SECTION 2.  That the City's application be placed in competition for funding under the 
Downtown Revitalization Fund.    

  

SECTION 3.  That the application be for $500,000 of grant funds to provide sidewalks, ADA 
ramps and rails, and lighting.  

  

SECTION 4.  That the City Council directs and designates the Mayor and the City Manager as 
the City’s Authorized Representatives to act in all matters in connection with 
this application and the City's participation in the Texas Community 
Development Block Grant Program.    

  

SECTION 5.  That all funds will be used in accordance with all applicable federal, state, local 
and programmatic requirements including but not limited to procurement, 
environmental review, labor standards, real property acquisition, and civil 
rights requirements.   



  

SECTION 6.  That it further be stated that the Navasota Economic Development Commission 
is committing $75,000 as a cash contribution toward this Downtown 
Revitalization project.  

 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2020.  

 

 

 

                                                                             _________________________ 
                                                                                                   BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 13. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 678-
20, a resolution of the City of Navasota, Texas, finding that
conditions exist within the designated Historic Commercial District
of the City which are detrimental to the public health, safety and
welfare of the community and, therefore, are declared to
constitute a blighted area.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Sidewalks, curbs and other infrastructure in the Downtown area
are cracked and broken causing a dangerous and unsightly
condition.  The City plans to apply for funding through the Texas
Capital Fund Downtown Revitalization program to fund the
repair/replacement of this infrastructure.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 678-20, a resolution
of the City of Navasota, Texas, finding that conditions exist within
the designated Historic Commercial District of the City which are
detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare of the
community and, therefore, are declared to constitute a blighted
area.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Kathrine Thogersen, Administrative
Assistant



1. Resolution No. 678-20

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596469437x_at.pdf


 

RESOLUTION NO. 678-20 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, 
DETERMINING THAT AN AREA OF THE CITY CONTAINS CONDITIONS WHICH ARE 

DETRIMENTAL TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE OF THE 
COMMUNITY AND CONSTITUTES A BLIGHTED AREA. 

  
WHEREAS,  the City Council of the City of Navasota has reviewed and evaluated conditions in 

the Historical District of the municipality; and  
  
WHEREAS,  The City Council has found conditions which are detrimental to the public health, 

safety, and welfare of the community within the Historical district, as follows:  
  

This area has broken sidewalks at different elevations and 1 street light which 
makes this area a hazard after dark.  This area also only has 1 ADA parking 
space and no ADA ramps past the intersection, making pedestrians with 
disabilities hard to traverse around the downtown area.  There are missing 
sidewalks in some locations and no street lights at all. 

 
WHEREAS,  the City Council of the City of Navasota has authorized an application for funding 

under the Downtown Revitalization program, as follows:   
The project will install approximately 1,130 linear feet of sidewalks, 207 linear 
feet of curb and gutter, 1,095 linear feet of concrete pavers, 2 ADA parking 
spaces, 6 ADA ramps, and 9 street lights. This will eliminate the hazards of 
pedestrians walking in the highway and ADA  
barriers in this area. 
 

WHEREAS,  these project activities will aid in the elimination of blight in the community by 
improving the sidewalks and allowing handicapped persons to travers on the 
sidewalks and patronize the stores.  

  
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS THAT THE AREA IDENTIFIED BY THE FOLLOWING BOUNDARIES 
AND OUTLINE ON THE MAP ATTACHED HERETO AS HISTORIC DISTRICT MAP WAS 
DETERMINED TO BE A BLIGHTED AREA ON AUGUST 14, 2017 THROUGH 
RESOLUTION 627-17.  
  
Boundaries: 

Beginning where the center of the main line of the G.C. & S.F.R.R. intersects the 
center of Fanthorp Street: thence in a northeasterly direction with the center of 
Fanthorp Street to that point where the center of said Fanthorp Street intersects 
the center of the bed of Cedar Creek: thence up Cedar Creek with its 
meanderings  to that point where the center of the bed of said Cedar Creek 
intersects the southwest boundary line of Block 15 of the Nolan Addition: thence 
with the southwest boundary line or said Block 15 of the Nolan Addition to the 
southwest corner of said Block 15 of the Nolan Addition; thence in a 
northeasterly direction with the southeast boundary lines of Block 15 and 14 of 



the Nolan Addition to the southwest corner of Block 13 and said Nolan Addition: 
thence in a southeasterly direction with the southwest boundary line of Block 6 
of the Nolan Addition projected across Washington Avenue and Block 85 of the 
H. & T.C.R.R. Addition to the southwest boundary line of the alleyway of said 
Block 85 of the R.R. Addition for corner; thence in a southwesterly direction with 
the southeast boundary line of said alleyway of Block 85 to the northeast corner 
of Lot 6 of said Block 85 of the H. & T.C.R.R.  Addition; thence in a southeasterly 
direction with the northeast boundary line of Lot 1 Block 85, H. & T.C.R.R. 
Addition, and across McAlpine Street and with the northeast boundary line of 
Lots 1 and 6 of Block 99 of the H. & T.C.R.R. Addition, across Holland Street and 
with the northeast boundary line of Lot 1 in Block 109 to the southeast corner of 
said Lot 1 in Block 109 of the H. & T.C.R.R. Addition; thence in a southwesterly 
direction with the southeast boundary line of said Lot 1 Block 109 and across La 
Salle Street and with the northwest boundary line of the alleyway through Block 
108 of the H. & T.C.R.R. Addition and in a straight line that is a prolongation of 
said northwest boundary line of the alleyway of Block 108 H. & T.C.R.R.  
Addition; alleyway f Block 108 H. & T.C.R.R. Addition, across Farquhar Street, 
across Block 1 pf the Camp Addition, across the I. & G.N.R.R main line, the H. & 
T.C.R.R.  Addition main line to the center of the main line of the G.C & S.F.R.R.; 
thence in a westerly direction with the main line of the G.C & S.F.R.R to the 
place of beginning. 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2020.  

 

 

 

                                                                    ___________________________ 

                                                                                 BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

         



 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 14. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of
Ordinance No. 936-20, amending Chapter 12 Traffic and Vehicles,
Article 12.04 Parking of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Navasota, Texas regarding parking regulations.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:

Alicia Ortman, Intern



The existing wording of Chapter 12, Article 12.04, Sections
12.04.008, 12.04.009, 12.04.052-12.04.057, 12.04.060, and
12.04.062-12.04.065 are unneeded and unnecessary. These
sections refer to parking meters which were installed in 1978 and
removed in the late 1980s. These sections also refer to two-hour
parking and loading zones that have since been eliminated. The
removal of Chapter 12, Article 12.04, Sections 12.04.008,
12.04.009, 12.04.052-12.04.057, 12.04.060, and 12.04.062-
12.04.065 will allow the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Navasota to be updated, and benefits citizens by cleaning up
codes that are no longer relevant or enforced.

The existing wording of Chapter 12, Article 12.04, Section
12.04.010 currently states that no person may park five hundred
(500) feet north and south, for an extension of fifty (50) feet,
from any railroad crossing. However, this means that the new
parking lot on Railroad Street north of Washington Avenue, as
well as the parking in front of the businesses located on Railroad
Street south of Washington Avenue, are not in compliance with
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas. This
recommendation suggests that the Code of Ordinances should be
amended to read that no person may park twenty-five  (25) feet
both north and south of any railroad crossing, as well as twenty-
five (25) feet east and west of any crossing. Shortening this
distance will allow current and future parking to be in compliance,
as well as keeping vehicles and property safe from harm.

 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the first reading of Ordinance No.
936-20, amending Chapter 12 Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04
Parking of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas
regarding parking regulations.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 936-20

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596474167x_at.pdf


ORDINANCE NO. 936-20   
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 12 TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES, ARTICLE 12.04 PARKING, 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 
REGARDING PARKING REGULATIONS IN THE CITY OF NAVASOTA; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY AND REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FINDING PROPER NOTICE OF MEETING. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota (“City”) is a Texas home-rule municipality; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.001, the City has the 
authority to adopt ordinances and regulations that are for good government, peace and order 
of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, as a home-rule municipality, Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.072 
confirms that the City has the full power of local self-government; and 

 
WHEREAS, parking regulations benefit the citizens of the City by protecting the public 

health and safety of the citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend Article 12.04 of the Code of Ordinances 

of the City of Navasota to reflect changes in the regulations applicable to parking within the 
City;  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

NAVASOTA, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

SECTION 1. 
 

 Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.010 No parking 
zones at railroad crossings and near railroad property, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:  
 

Sec. 12.04.010       No parking zones at railroad crossings and near railroad property 
 
(a)     Declaration of necessity. Parking of vehicles (i) within twenty-five (25) feet east of any 
railroad crossing and within twenty-five (25) feet west of any railroad crossing within the city 
limits, (ii) within twenty-five (25) feet east of the east railroad rail of the Union Pacific Railroad 
for a distance of two hundred fifty (250) feet south of the intersection of Railroad Street with 
Washington Avenue within the City, (iii) within twenty-five (25) feet west of the west railroad 
rail of the Union Pacific Railroad for a distance of two hundred fifty (250) feet south of the 
intersection of Railroad Street with Washington Avenue within the City, and (iv) within twenty-
five (25) feet east of the east railroad rail of the Union Pacific Railroad for a distance of two 
hundred fifty (250) feet north of the intersection of Railroad Street with Washington Avenue 
within the City is hereby declared to be a dangerous condition and detrimental to the general 



welfare of the citizens of the City, necessitating the location of no parking zones within all such 
areas. 
 
(b)     Prohibited parking. 
 

(1) Parking prohibited within twenty-five (25) of railroad crossing. A person commits 
an offense if they park a vehicle, whether occupied or not, within twenty-five (25) 
feet of the nearest rail of a railroad crossing within the city limits, except when 
temporarily for the purpose of and while actually engaged in loading or unloading 
merchandise or passengers. 
 

(2) Prohibited parking near railroad property. A person commits an offense if they 
stop, park, or stand a vehicle, at a location other than a railroad crossing, so that 
any portion of the vehicle is closer than: 

 
(A) Twenty-five (25) feet east of the east railroad rail of the Union Pacific 

Railroad for a distance of two hundred and fifty (250) feet south of the 
intersection of Railroad Street with Washington Avenue within the City; 
 

(B) Twenty-five (25) feet west of the west railroad rail of the Union Pacific 
Railroad for a distance of two hundred and fifty (250) feet south of the 
intersection of Railroad Street with Washington Avenue within the City; 
and 

 
(C) Twenty-five (25) feet east of the east railroad rail of the Union Pacific 

Railroad for a distance of two hundred and fifty (250) feet north of the 
intersection of Railroad Street with Washington Avenue within the City. 

 
This subsection does not apply to the parking or standing of vehicles for the purpose of 
loading or unloading passengers, freight, or merchandise to or from a railroad car or 
building adjoining the track. 
 

(c)     Violations; penalty. A violation of this section shall constitute a misdemeanor and upon 
conviction thereof shall be punishable pursuant to the general penalty provisions set out in 
section 1.01.009 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota. 
 
 

SECTION 2. 
 

Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.008, One-hour 
parking areas, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas is hereby repealed and 
rescinded in its entirety.  

 
SECTION 3. 

 
Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.009, No parking 

zone on McAlpine Street, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas is hereby 
repealed and rescinded in its entirety.  



SECTION 4. 
 

Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.052, Parking 
meter zone, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas is hereby repealed and 
rescinded in its entirety.  

 
SECTION 5. 

 
Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.053, Designation 

of meter spaces and loading zones, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas is 
hereby repealed and rescinded in its entirety.  

 
SECTION 6. 

 
Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.054, Lengths of 

time and rates charged for parking, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas is 
hereby repealed and rescinded in its entirety.  

 
SECTION 7. 

 
Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.055, Installation 

and operation of meters, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas is hereby 
repealed and rescinded in its entirety.  

 
SECTION 8. 

 
Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.056, Deposit of 

coins in meter, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas is hereby repealed and 
rescinded in its entirety.  

 
SECTION 9. 

 
Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.057, Overtime 

parking prohibited, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas is hereby repealed 
and rescinded in its entirety.  

 
SECTION 10. 

 
Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.058, Manner of 

parking, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas is hereby repealed and 
rescinded in its entirety.  

 
SECTION 11. 

 
Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.060, Use of 

loading zones, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas is hereby repealed and 
rescinded in its entirety.  

 



SECTION 12. 
 

Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.062, Parking 
overlength vehicles or trailers in parking meter space, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Navasota, Texas is hereby repealed and rescinded in its entirety.  

 
SECTION 13. 

 
Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.063, Defacing 

meter, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas is hereby repealed and 
rescinded in its entirety.  

 
SECTION 14. 

 
Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.064, Deposit of 

slugs in meter, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas is hereby repealed and 
rescinded in its entirety.  

 
SECTION 15. 

 
Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04, Parking, Section 12.04.065, Penalty for 

overtime parking, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas is hereby repealed 
and rescinded in its entirety.  

 
SECTION 16. 

REPEALER AND SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 

All provisions of any ordinance, resolution, or other action of the City in conflict with this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent they are in conflict. Any remaining portions of said 
ordinances, resolutions, or other actions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 17. 

SEVERABILITY 
 

Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance be 
declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is expressly provided 
that any and all remaining portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. The 
City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section, 
subsection, sentences and clauses and phrases remaining should any provision be declared 
unconstitutional or invalid. 

 
SECTION 18. 

EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and publication, 

as may be required by governing law.  
 

 



SECTION 19. 
PROPER NOTICE AND MEETINGS 

 
It is hereby officially found and determined that the meetings at which this Ordinance 

was passed were open to the public as required and that public notice of the time and purpose 
of said meetings were given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 10TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2020. 
 
 
 
                                                                        ___________________________ 
                                                                                BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 24TH DAY OF AUGUST, 
2020. 
 
 
 
                                                                        ___________________________ 
                                                                                BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 15. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on approval of the order
of election for the November 3, 2020 election to elect three City
Councilmembers to Positions 1, 2 and 3.

Consideraci'on y acci'on posible en aprobar la orden de la elecci'on
para que la elecci'on del 3 de noviembre de 2020 elija tres la
ciudad Councilmembers a las posiciones 1, 2 y 3.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The statutory last day to order the General Election for November
3, 2020 is August 17,2020.  The Election was postponed due to a
proclamation issued by Governor Abbott dated March 18, 2020
allowing cities to move their election to the November 3rd date. 
The Election Order will be sent to recipients of the agenda as a
separate attachment on Friday.  The Election Administrator will
meet with the County Commissioners on Thursday at 4:00 p.m. to
approve all the poling places which have to be listed in the order.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approving the order of election for the
November 3, 2020 election to elect three City Councilmembers to
Positions 1, 2 and 3.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 16. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of
Ordinance No. 937-20, vacating a remaining portion of a public
alleyway located at Block 3 of the McNair addition of the City of
Navasota, Texas, and authorizing execution of an instrument
conveying said property to abutting property owners.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Dorothy Grupa submitted an application to the City of Navasota
requesting abandonment of a twenty-foot (20) alleyway located at
Block 3 of the McNair Addition abutting N Jones Street back in the
fall of 2019. In July of 2020 City staff received a replat application
and realized only the portion abbuting Mrs. Grupa's (Now Mr.
Dubbledee's) property had been abandoned. The proposed
ordinance closes the remaining open section of public alleyway.

 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
None.
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the first reading of Ordinance No.
937-20, vacating a remaining portion of a public alleyway located
at Block 3 of the McNair addition of the City of Navasota, Texas,
and authorizing execution of an instrument conveying said
property to abutting property owners.
 

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director



ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 937-20

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596634858x_at.pdf


ORDINANCE NO. 937-20 

  

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ABANDONMENT 

OF THE REMAINING SECTION OF TWENTY FOOT (20’) 

PUBLIC ALLEYWAY OWNED BY THE CITY; PROVIDING 

FOR THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH 

ABANDONMENT 

 

   WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas (“City”) owns a twenty 

foot (20’) public alleyway as shown on Exhibit “A”; and 

 

   WHEREAS, on September 23, 2019 the City abandoned and closed 

a portion of the alleyway as shown on Exhibit “B”; and 

 

   WHEREAS, the City desires to abandon and close the remaining 

section of alleyway as shown on Exhibit ”A”; and  

 

   WHEREAS, the abandonment and closing of the remaining section 

of alleyway as shown on Exhibit “A” will not create an undue burden on 

traffic; and 

 

   WHEREAS, the City has no need or use for the alleyway as a 

public thoroughfare; and  

 

   WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Navasota desires to 

abandon and close the alleyway as shown on Exhibit “A” as a public 

thoroughfare, said closure and abandonment being in the best interest of 

the citizens of Navasota;  

  

   NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS:  

  

PART 1: That the following portion of a public alleyway, to wit: a twenty foot 

(20’) alleyway located between McNair Block 3, Lots 3, 4, 5 and McNair Block 3 

Lots 6, 7, 8 as shown on Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part of this 

ordinance for all purposes, be, and the same is hereby ABANDONED, 

VACATED, and CLOSED insofar as the right, title or easement of the public is 

concerned. 

  

PART 2: That said portion of the public alleyway is not needed for public 

purposes and it is in the public interest of the City of Navasota, Texas, to 

abandon said described portion of the public alleyway.  



PART 3:  That the City hereby reserves all public utility easements located 

within that portion of the public alleyway so abandoned.  

  

PART 4:  That all right, title, and interest of the City in the oil, gas, and other 

minerals in, on, under, and that may be produced from that portion of the public 

alleyway be reserved by and to the benefit of the City.  

  

PART 5:  That the abandonment provided for herein shall extend only to the 

public right, title and easement in and to the tracts of land described in Part 1 of 

this Ordinance and shall be construed only to that interest the governing body of 

the City of Navasota may legally and lawfully abandon and excepting therefrom 

the reservations in favor of the City noted herein.  

 

PART 6:  That the Mayor of the City of Navasota is hereby authorized to 

execute any documents necessary for the conveyance of the portion of the 

public alleyway as shown on Exhibit “A” to the adjoining property owners. 

  

PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 10th DAY OF AUGUST 

2020.   

                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                       

                                                _____________________                                                                         

                                                        BERT MILLER, MAYOR  

  

 

ATTEST:  

  

  

________________________________         

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY          

  

  

PASSED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 24TH DAY OF AUGUST 

2020.                                                                                                                                                          

                                                      

                                              _____________________                                                                         

                                                     BERT MILLER, MAYOR  

 

ATTEST:  

 

________________________________         

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY   



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 17. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon
with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is
necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City Councilmember,
in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda
for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of
the regular agenda.

Consent Items are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month
of July 2020; and

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the
month of July 2020.

 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the consent agenda items which
include the minutes and expenditures for the month of July 2020. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



1. Minutes - 07/13/2020
2. Minutes - 07/27/2020
3. Expenditures for July 2020

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596462707x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596490605x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596482595x_at.pdf


MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 13, 2020 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 

Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, Texas on 

the above date with the following being present: 

 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Geoff Horn, Councilmember, Place # 2 

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3  

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Lance Hall, 

Finance Director; Lupe Diosdado, Community Development Director; Michael Mize, Lieutenant; 

Kathrine Thogersen, Administrative Assistant/Deputy City Secretary; Hung Mai, IT Specialist; 

Madison Brooks, Marketing and Communication Coordinator; Rayna Willenbrink, Economic 

Development Specialist; Alicia Ortman, Intern(Virtually); James McKenzie, Intern; Shawn Myatt, 

Police Chief/Assistant City Manager; and Luke Cochran, Legal Counsel. 

 

VISITORS:  Connie Clements, Deborah Richardson, Archie Sauls, Vicki Spiess, Todd Wisner, J. 

Sanders, Mac Vaughn, Phillis Allen, Janis Frenzel, Paul Malek, Phillip Cox, Richard Grimes, Nancy 

Franek, Patty Tokoly, Gary Dycus, Nancy Perry, Andre Perrard (Virtually) and others. 

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2.  Invocation was given by Mac Vaughn.  The City Council, staff members and visitors 

then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas Flag. 

 

3.  Remarks of visitors: (a) Mr. J. Sanders addressed the City Council to voice his concerns 

about COVID-19 and find out what the criteria is as to why some people wear a mask 

and some do not. 

 

(b) Todd Wisner addressed the City Council about his displeasure of the recent 

Proclamation that was passed on July 7, 2020.  He asked that the Proclamation be 

rescinded for the safety of the citizens. 

 



(c) Patty Tokoly addressed the City Council to voice her concerns about a mobile home 

that was put in on Judson Street. 

 

(d) Gary Dycus addressed the City Council and thanked them for the work that was 

done on Brule Drive. 

 

4.  Staff report: 

 

(a) City Manager Brad Stafford gave an update on COVID-19 response; 

 

(b) Marketing and Communication Coordinator Madison Brooks gave a final report on 

the on the July 4th Freedom Festival event; 

 

(c) City Manager Brad Stafford gave an update on the swimming pool; 

 

(d) Intern James McKenzie gave a report on economic growth in the City and Grimes 

County; 

 

(e) Councilmember Geoff Horn gave an update on the latest Planning and Zoning 

meeting; 

 

(f) There were not any reports from Councilmembers about upcoming events. 

 

5.  A public hearing was held regarding a zoning change application submitted by Miriah 

Cunneen on behalf of Anthony J. Cunneen for the properties located along Fairway 

Drive in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas 77868.  The zoning change application 

requests to change the zoning from A/O: Agriculture Open Space District to B-1: 

General Business District for the properties legally described as Fly Away Field, Block 1, 

Lot 1, 2 and change the zoning from A/O: Agriculture Open Space District to R-1A:  

High Density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the 

property legally described as Fly Away Field, Block 1, Lot 3.  Mayor Bert Miller opened 

the public hearing at 6:42 p.m.  Citizen Nancy Perry addressed the City Council about 

the plans for this piece of property.  With no other comments from the public, Mayor 

Bert Miller closed the public hearing at 6:45 p.m. 

 

6.  Citizen Archie Sauls addressed the City Council on the proposed zoning change for Fly 

Away Field.  He said he was speaking on behalf of the Torres’s family that owns 

property near Fly Away Field.  He said the family will be requesting a zoning change on 

their property to be commercial and in line with the city’s future plans.  Councilmember 

Bernie Gessner moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 934-20,  changing 

the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture Open Space District to B-1: General Business 

District for the properties legally described as Fly Away Field, Block 1, Lot 1, 2 and 



change the zoning from A/O: Agriculture Open Space District to R-1A:  High Density, 

single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property legally 

described as Fly Away Field, Block 1, Lot 3, seconded by Councilmember Geoff Horn 

and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

7.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve $5,500.00 to support the Grimes Health 

Resource Center in Fiscal Year 2020-2021, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and 

with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

8.  A public hearing was held regarding a specific use permit application submitted by 

Glenn Fuqua for the development of an RV Park within the B-2: General Business 

District, single structures/uses over 50,000 sf, for the property located behind 9524 

Hwy 6 Loop S., legally described at A0055-5 D. Tyler, Tract 5, Par 8-6, Acres 2.271, 

Navasota, Grimes County, Texas 77868.  Mayor Bert Miller opened the public hearing at 

7:00 p.m.  With no comments from the public, Mayor Bert Miller closed the public 

hearing at 7:06 p.m. 

 

9.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 935-20, 

specific use permit for the development of a RV Park within the B-2: General Business 

District, single structures/uses over 50,000 sf, for the property located behind 9524 

Hwy 6 Loop S, legally described as A0055-5 D. Tyler, Tract 5, Par 8-6, Acres 2.271, 

Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868, seconded by Councilmember Geoff Horn and 

with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

10. Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the request to renew the annual funding 

contract with the Arts Council of the Brazos Valley in the amount of $21,600.00 to 

administer HOT fund grants, seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with 

each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

11. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve Resolution No. 675-20, designating 

GrantWorks, Inc. as the administration provider for the 2020 CDBG-MIT, seconded by 

Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 

carried. 

 

12. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve Resolution No. 676-20, designating 

Bleyl Engineering as the engineering provider for the 2020 Texas Capital Fund 

Downtown Revitalization Program, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with 

each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

13. Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the Citizen Participation Plan for the 

Texas Community Development Block Grant, Downtown Revitalization Program, 



seconded by Councilmember Geoff Horn and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the 

motion carried. 

 

14. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to a lease agreement with Larry and Mildred 

Wood for grazing and baling purposes at the closed landfill site for $30.00 per acre 

annually, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting 

AYE, the motion carried. 

 

15. There was not any action taken on nominations to the Board of Trustees of the Texas 

Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool. 

 

16. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the minutes and expenditures for the 

month of June 2020, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each 

Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

17.  Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 7:21 p.m. 

  

 

                                                  ______________________________ 

                                                           BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 27, 2020 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 

Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, 

Texas on the above date with the following being present: 

 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Geoff Horn, Councilmember, Place # 2 

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3  

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 

Lance Hall, Finance Director (virtually); Lupe Diosdado, Community Development 

Director; Michael Mize, Lieutenant; Hung Mai, IT Specialist; Madison Brooks, Marketing 

and Communication Coordinator; Alicia Ortman, Intern; James McKenzie, Intern; Cary 

Bovey, Legal Counsel; Jose Coronilla, Director of Streets and Sanitation; Matt Julian, 

Utility Supervisor; and Erik Covarrubias, Code Enforcement Specialist. 

 

VISITORS:  Connie Clements, Deborah Richardson, Todd Wisner, Debbie Grimes, 

Richard Grimes, Mac Vaughn, Lauren Julian, Andre Perrard (Virtually), Benjamin 

Mendez, Jace Julian and members of the Boy Scout Troop 361. 

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2.  Invocation was given by Mac Vaughn.  The City Council, staff members and 

visitors then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas 

Flag. 

 

3.  Remarks of visitors:  Todd Wisner addressed the City Council about his 

disappointment with the City Council and their reporting of COVID-19. 

 

 



4.  Staff report: 

 

(a) City Manager Brad Stafford gave an update on COVID-19 response; 

 

(b) Community Development Director Lupe Diosdado introduced Erik Covarrubias 

as the new Code Enforcement Specialist;  

 

(c) Marketing and Communication Coordinator Madison Brooks gave an update 

on the Kid Fish event; 

 

(d) Director of Streets and Sanitation Jose Coronilla gave an update on the street 

department;  

 

(e) There was not an update on Boards and Commissions; and  

 

(f) Councilmembers and staff informed the audience about upcoming events. 

 

5.  Councilmember Geoff Horn moved to authorize the City Manager and Legal 

Counsel to negotiate a lease agreement with the Kiwanis Club for the Boy 

Scouts and Cub Scouts to utilize the old pro shop at August Horst Park, 

seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting 

AYE, the motion carried. 

 

6.  The City Council reviewed the City of Navasota Quarterly Investment Report 

ending June 30, 2020. 

 

7.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the consent agenda items 

which includes the second reading of Ordinance No. 934-20, changing the 

current zoning from A/O: Agriculture Open Space District to B-1: General 

Business District for the properties legally described as Fly Away Field, Block 1, 

lot 1, 2 and changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture Open Space 

District to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, 

residential district for the property legally described as Fly Away Field, Block 1, 

lot 3 and the second reading of Ordinance No. 935-20, specific use permit for 

the development of a RV Park within the B-2: General Business District, single 

structures/uses over 50,000 sf, for the property located behind 9524 Hwy 6 

Loop S, legally described as A0055-5 D. Tyler, Tract 5, Par 8-6, Acres 2.271, 

Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868, seconded by Councilmember Josh 

Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 



 

8.  A workshop was held on the proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 

 

8.  Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 6:50 p.m. 

  

 

                                                  ______________________________ 

                                                           BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 











































































































ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 18. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on approval of the
creation of a Financial Analyst position in Finance Department.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City continues to grow, and with that comes a greater
demand for duties within the Finance Department, also during the
City Council planning retreat it was requested that a couple of
positions be added to improve services. Staff proposes the
creation of the  Financial Analyst position to assist the Finance
Director with duties within the department such as budgeting,
accounts payable, debt service, etc..  The current budget contains
adequate funding available to fill the role and the position is
included in the 2020-2021 budget. 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the creation of the Financial Analyst
position.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Job Description

Lance Hall, Finance Director

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596723723x_at.pdf


Job Description: Budget Analyst  
 
 

CLASS NO. 205 EEOC CATEGORY: Office and Clerical 
 
PAY GROUP:  FLSA: Nonexempt 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
 
Performs a variety of accounting and financial tasks as support for the Director of Finance including 
handling accounts payable and accounts receivable, writing checks, and making deposits. Maintains 
records in the finance department, which includes maintaining city records in a complete and orderly 
fashion according to current records storage, retention, and disposition laws and guidelines. 
Responsible for analyzing budget proposals, determining funding allocations, and defending funding 
allocations.  
 
ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS 
 
1. Reports to: Director of Finance  
 
2. Directs: This is a non-supervisory position. 
 
3. Other: Has contact with other city employees and the general public. 
 
EXAMPLES OF WORK 
 
Essential Duties* 
 
Processes and records accounts receivable and accounts payable; 
 
Assists Director of Finance with preparing various monthly and annual reports on the city's financial 
transactions and condition for management information purposes; 
 
Evaluate department budget proposals and funding requests, collaborate with department heads to 
develop budget, estimate and forecasting revenues 
 
Reconciles bank statements and ledger balances on multiple city accounts; 
 
Prepares and delivers departmental deposits; Prepares accounts payable checks and types manual 
payable checks; Performs data entry into the general ledger; 
 
Manages finance department records, including filing and maintaining inventory and retention 
schedule; 
 
Maintains computer files and records, and regularly performs computer back-ups; 
 
Maintains adequate inventory of departmental supplies and reorders as needed; and 
 
 
 
 



CLASS NO. 205 (Continued) 
 
Other Important Duties* 
 
Assists Utilities/Accounting Clerks as needed; 
 
Performs such other related duties as may be assigned. 
 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES 
 
Knowledge of: modern office procedures and equipment; generally accepted accounting principles; 
and records storage, retention, and disposition laws and guidelines, especially relating to municipalities. 
 
Skill/Ability to: apply generally accepted accounting principles; understand and follow oral or written 
instructions; perform a volume of numerical detail work with speed and accuracy; prepare financial and 
other records in a systematic, neat, and legible manner; demonstrate proficiency in both oral and 
written communication; establish and maintain effective working relationships with co-workers; and 
operate standard office equipment, including computer, ten-key calculator, typewriter, copy machine, 
etc. 
 
ACCEPTABLE EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING 
 
Bachelor’s Degree preferred 
 
Or Two years of college coursework in accounting, records management, or a related field, plus at least 
one year of experience in accounting and records management, including experience in governmental 
accounting; 
 
or high school graduation, or its equivalent, plus at least three years of experience in accounting and 
records management, including experience in governmental accounting; 
 
or any equivalent combination of experience and training which provides the required knowledge, skills, 
and abilities. 
 
CERTIFICATES AND LICENSES REQUIRED 
None. 
 
 
JOB PHYSICAL, MENTAL AND/OR EMOTIONAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
The City will comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, including the American Disability Act 
Amendment Act, and all other Federal, State and Local legislative requirements.  The  
Facility will ensure that reasonable accommodations may be made to enable a qualified individual with 
a disability to perform the essential functions of that position.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Navasota                                                                                                                06/2020 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 19. AGENDA DATE: August 10,
2020

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Workshop on proposed budget for fiscal year 2020-2021.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Staff is preparing the proposed budget.  Staff will provide current
status of the budget preparation and answer questions regarding
budget.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends holding a budget workshop.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Budget Summary

Lance Hall, Finance Director

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596483264x_at.pdf


PROPOSED BUDGET SUMMARY AS OF AUG 1

FUND REV BUDGET % BUD EXP BUDGET % BUD BALANCE

General 11,514,420.00$ 0% 11,585,713.00$ 0% (71,293.00)$        
Water 1,862,000.00$   0% 1,870,000.00$   # 0% (8,000.00)$          

Utility Cap IMP 144,000.00$      0% 144,000.00$      -$                    
Gas 2,972,000.00$   0% 2,895,902.00$   0% 76,098.00$         

Sewer 1,762,500.00$   0% 1,770,500.00$   0% (8,000.00)$          
cemetery perm 3,000.00$          0% 3,000.00$          0% $0.00
cemetery oper 65,000.00$        0% 65,000.00$        0% -$                    

fire retire 700.00$             0% 700.00$             0% -$                    
grant 3,413,500.00$   0% 3,413,500.00$   0% -$                    
edc 682,000.00$      0% 682,000.00$      0% -$                    

capital 1,600,000.00$   0% 1,600,000.00$   0% -$                    
hotel 141,000.00$      0% 141,000.00$      0% -$                    
bond 960,143.00$      0% 960,143.00$      0% -$                    

foundation 5,500.00$          0% 5,500.00$          0% -$                    
#DIV/0! #DIV/0! -$                    
#DIV/0! #DIV/0! -$                    

GRAND TOTAL
25,125,763.00$ 25,136,958.00$ #REF! #REF! (11,195.00)$       

$24,476,249.00



CITY OF NAVASOTA
MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

1. PLANNING CALENDAR

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1596660105x_at.pdf


 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 

 
 

AUGUST 10, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 7/27/2020 

1.  Called to order 
2.  Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Remarks of visitors 
4.  Staff Report: (a) COVID-19 update; (b) Introduction of new employees; (c) Recognition of 

Little League All Stars; (d) Arts Council quarterly report for the 3rd quarter; (e) Board and 
Commission update; and (f) Reports from staff and City Council 

5.  Bid award for Railroad Street storm sewer extension 
6.  Professional service agreement with HdL – consulting of sales tax and use collection 
7.  Resolution No. 677-20 – accepting infrastructure at Pecan Lakes 
8.  Renewal of health, dental, vision and life insurance policies 
9.  Agreement with Xerox Business Solutions Southwest copiers 
10.Accept or reject bids for Sale of city property 
11.Amendment to airport lease agreement with Anderson Grimes 
12.Resolution No. 679-20, CDBG Downtown Revitalization Grant 
13.Resolution No. 678-20, blighted area – Grant application 
14.1st reading of Ordinance No. 936-20 - repealing outdated parking ordinances 
15. Order calling the election for November 3, 2020 
16. Alleyway closure – McNair Addition – Block 3 
17. Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of July; and (b) Expenditures for the month of 

July 2020  
18. Hiring of a budget analyst 
19. Budget workshop 
20. Adjourn 

 
 

AUGUST 24, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 8/10/2020 

1.  Called to order 
2.  Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Remarks of visitors 
4.  Staff Report: (a) COVID-19 update; (b) Board and Commission update; and (c) Reports from 
     staff and City Council 
5.  Public hearing for a specific use permit at 313 S. Judson 
6.  1st reading of Ordinance No. ______, specific use permit for 313 S. Judson 
7.  Contract for City Elections – August 2020 - 2021 
8.  Proposal to adopt tax rate 
9.  Consent agenda: (a) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 936-20 - repealing outdated parking    
     Ordinances; (b) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 937-20 - alcohol in the central  
     business district; and (b)  
10. Adjourn 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 8/31/2020 

1.  Called to order 
2.  Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Remarks of visitors 
4.  Staff Report: (a) COVID-19 update; (B) Board and Commission update; and (c) Reports from  
     staff and City Council 
5.  1st reading of Ordinance No. _____ - alcohol in the central business district 
6.  Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of August, 2020; (b) Expenditures for the  
     month of August 2020; and © 2nd reading of Ordinance No. _____-20, specific use permit 
for 313 S. Judson 
7.  Adjourn 

 
 

SEPTEMBER 28, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 9/14/2020 

1.  Called to order 
2.  Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Remarks of visitors 
4.  Staff Report: (a) COVID-19 update; (B) Board and Commission update; and (c) Reports from  
     staff and City Council 
5.  2nd reading of Ordinance No. _____ - alcohol in the central business district 
6.  Adjourn 

 


	Regular Council Meeting
	Agenda Item No.  -  City Manager's Message and Statements and Priorities
	 City Manager's Message
	 Statements and Priorities

	Agenda Item No. 4 -  Staff Report:
(a) COVID-19 response;
(b) Introduction of new employees;
(c) Recognition of Little League All Stars;
(d) Arts Council quarterly report for 3rd quarter; 
(e) Board and Commission reports; and
(f) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
	 Arts Council Quarterly Report - 3rd

	Agenda Item No. 5 -  Consideration and possible action on award of bid for the 2016 GLO CDBG-DR, Railroad Storm Sewer Extension Project.
	 Recommendation of Award & Bid Tabulation

	Agenda Item No. 6 -  Consideration and possible action on a professional services agreement with Hdl Companies for consulting of sales tax and use collections.
	 Hdl services agreement

	Agenda Item No. 7 -  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 677-20, accepting the water, sewer, gas, street and storm drainage improvements of Phase three section one in Pecan Lakes Estates Subdivision, except signage, common areas and maintenance of open channel storm drainage, in the City of Navasota, Texas.
	 Resolution No. 677-20
	 Request Letter from Hassell

	Agenda Item No. 8 -  Consideration and possible action on employee health, vision, dental and life insurance benefits for Fiscal Year 2020-2021.

	Agenda Item No. 9 -  Consideration and possible action on agreement from XEROX Business solutions Southwest for copier rental and maintenance.
	 xerox contract
	 Xerox Business Solutions proposal

	Agenda Item No. 10 -  Consideration and possible action on acceptance of bids for the sale of City properties legally described as Park Place, Block H, Lot 1, 2 and H&TC, Block J, Lot 4 (S21') 5 located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868.
	 Bid received for Park Place Property
	 Bid received for H&TC Property

	Agenda Item No. 11 -  Consideration and possible action on the addendum lease agreement between the City of Navasota and Anderson-Grimes, LLC.
	 Addendum

	Agenda Item No. 12 -  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 679-20, authorizing submission of an application to the Texas Department of Agriculture for a 2020 Texas Capital Fund Program Downtown Revitalization grant to construct sidewalk and handicap-accessibility improvements in the designated downtown district.
	 Resolution No. 679-20

	Agenda Item No. 13 -  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 678-20, a resolution of the City of Navasota, Texas, finding that conditions exist within the designated Historic Commercial District of the City which are detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare of the community and, therefore, are declared to constitute a blighted area.
	 Resolution No. 678-20

	Agenda Item No. 14 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 936-20, amending Chapter 12 Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.04 Parking of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas regarding parking regulations.
	 Ordinance No. 936-20

	Agenda Item No. 15 -  Consideration and possible action on approval of the order of election for the November 3, 2020 election to elect three City Councilmembers to Positions 1, 2 and 3. 
Consideraci'on y acci'on posible en aprobar la orden de la elecci'on para que la elecci'on del 3 de noviembre de 2020 elija tres la ciudad Councilmembers a las posiciones 1, 2 y 3.
	Agenda Item No. 16 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 937-20, vacating a remaining portion of a public alleyway located at Block 3 of the McNair addition of the City of Navasota, Texas, and authorizing execution of an instrument conveying said property to abutting property owners.
	 Ordinance No. 937-20

	Agenda Item No. 17 -  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the regular agenda.
Consent Items are:
A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of July 2020; and
B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of July 2020.

	 Minutes - 07/13/2020
	 Minutes - 07/27/2020
	 Expenditures for July 2020

	Agenda Item No. 18 -  Consideration and possible action on approval of the creation of a Financial Analyst position in Finance Department.
	 Job Description

	Agenda Item No. 19 -  Workshop on proposed budget for fiscal year 2020-2021.
	 Budget Summary

	Agenda Item No. 20 -  1. Planning Calendar

	 Planning Calendar


